FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.

a California corporation

2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1
Rancho Cordova, California 95742
(916) 852-2222

WWW.DiZZEl,QUVS.COH’I

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. franchises others to offer and sell a limited menu of foods,
beverages and other merchandise for consumption off premises from takeout and delivery only
pizza stores identified by the "Pizza Guys" trade name and service mark which are decorated and
equipped according to our specifications, and are operated according to our policies and
procedures, all of which we have developed and will continue to develop (referred to as the
"franchise" or the "franchise system" as the context requires).

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Pizza Guys franchise is $211,300
to $427,600 with the Store Equipment and Furnishings purchased, or $146,300 to $334,600 with
the Store Equipment and Furnishings leased. This includes $25,000 that must be paid to the
franchisor or affiliate. The total investment necessary to begin the operation under a multi-Unit
Development Agreement, assuming the purchase of 3 to 5 locations, is $241,300 to $496,600 with
the Store Equipment and Furnishings purchased, or $176,300 to $394,600 with the Store
Equipment and Furnishings leased. This includes $55,000 to $85,000 that must be paid to the
franchisor or affiliate. There is no minimum number of Pizza Guys franchises that you are required
to develop under a multi-Unit Development Agreement.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and
other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has
verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more
convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the Pizza
Guys Corporate Offices at 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A1, Rancho Cordova, California 95742 and
(916) 852-2222.

‘ The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the
disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show
your contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document
can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s
Guide to Buying a Francgise”, which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document,
is available from the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”). You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-
HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You
can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state

agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 17, 2023



How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information
about outlet sales, costs, profits or
losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like
current and former franchises. You can
find their names and contact
information in Item 20.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be
paying to the franchisor or at the
franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the
initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit 3 includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing, or
shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history
of the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Pizza Guys
business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions
in the franchise agreement describe
whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled legal
history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Pizza Guys
franchisee?

Item 20 lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to
ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things
you should look for. Review all 23
Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of
contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean
that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this
document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your
state, use the agency information in Exhibit 4.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments

be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific
Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation
only in California. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force
you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to
mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in California than in your own
state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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ITEM 1. THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS., AND
AFFILIATES

The franchisor is Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc., a California corporation incorporated on April
7, 1995, which sells pizza store franchises under the "Pizza Guys' name. To simplify language in
this Disclosure Document, "Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc." will generally be referred to as "us," "we"
or "our" and "you" and "your" will mean a person whom we grant a franchise.

The Pizza Guys® franchises to be offered in this state consist of a system for serving to the
general public, during lunch, dinner and other hours, a limited menu of foods and beverages prepared
according to certain recipes, formulas and other procedures, for consumption off premises at takeout
and delivery only pizza stores decorated and equipped according to our specifications, and operated
under the ""Pizza Guys" name according to our marketing, business, inventory, accounting, and other
policies and procedures, all of which we have developed and will continue to develop (referred to as
the "franchise" or the "franchise system" as the context requires). We also offer the opportunity to add
virtual kitchen models to your Pizza Guys® franchise under the names Calzone.life and Pizza Piatta.

If you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement (“MUDA”) (attached as Exhibit 2 to this
disclosure document), you will develop multiple Pizza Guys® franchises on an agreed-upon schedule.
Franchisees who sign a MUDA must agree to develop and operate a minimum of two outlets. There
is no maximum number of outlets that may be opened under a MUDA. At the time you sign the
MUDA, you will also sign the franchise agreement for your first Pizza Guys® location. Before
opening each subsequent location, you will sign our then-current franchise agreement. For future unit
franchisees, an area developer may be required to sign a franchise agreement in a form that differs
from the form of franchise agreement in this offering.

We have offered Pizza Guys® franchises since April 1995. We have never offered franchises
in another line of business. We do not operate any Pizza Guys® stores our self. Our principal business
address is 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1, Rancho Cordova, California 95742, which is also the address
of our agent for service of process, Shahpour M. Nejad. We have no affiliates that offer franchises in
any line of business or provide products or services to our franchisees. We have one affiliate, RSM,
Inc., a California corporation, owned by our principals, formed on January 27, 1995 which operates
Pizza Guys® stores. Since 1995, RSM has owned and operated Pizza Guys® stores in the Sacramento,
California area, and maintains its principal place of business at 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-2, Rancho
Cordova, CA 95742. RSM has never conducted business in any other line of business nor has it
offered franchises in this or any other lines of business. RSM does not provide you with products or
services.

The pizza market is a highly competitive and developed market with low profit margins
requiring a high volume of sales to be profitable. Additionally, the market is dominated by large
nationally based companies such as Papa Johns®, Dominoes®, Godfather's®, Pizza Hut®, Round
Table®, and Little Caesars® with much greater capital resources than us and a multitude of small
chain or single restaurant stores. There may be other risks concerning this franchise.

There are state and local laws, regulations and ordinances applicable to the operation and
management of a restaurant. You should consider these and other applicable laws and regulations
when evaluating your purchase of a franchise. Under the Franchise Agreement, you are responsible
for understanding and complying with the particular laws of your state as they pertain to a restaurant
business and general businesses. We advise that you consult with an attorney to ensure compliance
with all relevant laws.

Your Pizza Guys® store will be subject to laws and regulations in your state, county, or
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municipality regarding the operation of a restaurant, including laws and regulations relating to the
preparation and dispensation of food products, occupational hazards and health laws, sanitation laws,
and consumer protection laws.

You will also be subject to laws or regulations that are not specific to the restaurant industry,
but applicable to businesses in general, including zoning laws, labor laws and the Fair Labor
Standards Act, workers’ compensation laws, business licensing laws, tax regulations, and the
Americans with Disabilities Act.

We have not investigated the laws or regulations applicable to your Pizza Guys® store. You
are responsible for investigating all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and your
cost to comply with such laws and regulations, and you should do so before purchasing a franchise
from us. We strongly suggest that you consult with an attorney, consultant and/or financial advisor
regarding such regulations prior to purchasing a franchise from us. Applicable laws and regulations
are subject to change.

Federal, state and local jurisdictions have enacted laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that
may apply to the operation of your Pizza Guys® store, including those that (i) establish general
standards, specifications and requirements for the construction, design and maintenance of restaurant
premises; (ii) regulate matters affecting the health, safety and welfare of your customers, such as
general health and sanitation requirements for restaurants; employee practices concerning the storage,
handling, cooking and preparation of food and beverages; restrictions on smoking; availability of and
requirements for public accommodations, including restrooms; (iii) set standards pertaining to
employee health and safety; (iv) set standards and requirements for fire safety and general emergency
preparedness; (v) govern the use of vending machines; (vi) control the sale of alcoholic beverages;
and (vii) regulate the proper use, storage and disposal of waste, insecticides, and other hazardous
materials. You should investigate whether there are regulations and requirements that may apply in
the geographic area in which you are interested in locating your Pizza Guys® store and should
consider both their effect and cost of compliance.

In addition, you must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your Pizza
Guys® store including health, sanitation, no smoking, EEOC, OSHA, discrimination, employment,
and sexual harassment laws, including all requirements set forth in the Alcoholic Beverage Control
Act and in the California Code of Regulations, Title 4 with regard to the sale of alcoholic beverages.
The Americans with Disability Act of 1990 requires readily accessible accommodation for disabled
people and therefore may affect your building construction, site elements, entrance ramps, doors,
seating, bathrooms, etc. You must obtain all required real estate permits, licenses and operational
licenses. You must also comply with all menu and menu board labeling laws and rules requiring
restaurant operators to disclose certain calorie or other nutritional information about the foods they
sell, including, for example, the FDA’s Nutrition Labeling of Standard Menu Items in Restaurants
and Similar Food Establishments Rule. California law requires each food facility that meets specified
criteria (which cover franchised outlets with at least 19 other franchised outlets with the same name
among certain other food facilities) to provide nutritional information that includes, per standard menu
item, the total number of calories, grams of saturated fat, grams of trans fat, and milligrams of sodium
and to have menu boards to include the total number of calories. In California, local county health
departments inspect restaurants and other retail food facilities to ensure compliance with safe food
handling practices and adequacy of kitchen facilities. Other states and cities may have laws similar to
these California laws.

The Nutrition Labeling and Education Act (NLEA) sets regulations for food labeling,
including nutritional label standards, nutrient content claims, and health claims. NLEA applies to
virtually all foods in the food supply, including food served and sold in restaurants. While NLEA
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specifies a number of exemptions for restaurants, there are many instances where a nutritional label
is required. The Food and Drug Administration’s Nutritional Labeling Guide for Restaurants and
Other Retail Establishments provides answers to commonly asked questions regarding the application
of NLEA. The Health Care Reform Bills that became law in March 2010 additionally contain
provisions that require disclosure of nutrition and calorie information in chains of more than 20
restaurants.

Additionally, you and every employee of your Pizza Guys® store(s) must comply with and
follow any and all polices we and/or the federal government and you state and local government put
into place regarding the cleanliness and sanitation of your Pizza Guys® store(s) and the health and
safety of your employees and customers. If you fail to follow any or all of these policies, you will be
in default of your Franchise Agreement and you will have thirty (30) days to cure such default. If the
default is not cured after thirty (30) days, we reserve the right to terminate your Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

President
Member, Board of Directors: Shahpour M. Nejad

From April 1995 to the present, Shahpour M. Nejad has been President and a member of
Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. and a member of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. 2-person Board of
Directors. Mr. Nejad has also served as Chief Operating Officer and Director of Advertising for Pizza
Guys Franchises, Inc. since April 1995 to the present.

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary
Member, Board of Directors: Reza Kalantari

From April 1995 to the present, Reza Kalantari has been Chief Financial Officer and a
member of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. 2-person Board of Directors. In early 1998, Mr. Kalantari also
became our Secretary.

VP of Operations. Michael J. Morgan

From March 2007 to the present, Michael J. Morgan has been VP of Operations.
ITEM 3. LITIGATION
No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item,

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcies are required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5. INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee: If we grant you a Franchise Agreement you must pay us an Initial
Franchise Fee of $25,000. We currently offer a 15% discount to qualifying military veterans. The
military discount is available to veterans who have received a discharge (other than dishonorable) as
well as any active-duty personnel. The Initial Franchise Fee is uniform and non-refundable, and you
are not entitled to interest thereon.

However, you must execute the Franchise Agreement prior to looking for a site or beginning
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training. Your signing of the Franchise Agreement constitutes your offer to purchase a franchise and
operate a Pizza Guys store at the premises approved by us in accordance with the terms of the
Franchise Agreement. If you fail to find an approved location within nine months after you sign your
Franchise Agreement, we can terminate your Franchise Agreement.

Multi-Unit Development Agreement. If you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you
will pay us an Initial Franchise Fee of $25,000 for the first Pizza Guys® store along with a franchise
fee of $15,000 for each additional Pizza Guys® store you agree to open and operate (the
“Development Fee”). The Development Fee will be due at the time you sign the MUDA. The
Development Fee is fully earned by us upon receipt and is not refundable under any circumstances.
The Development Fee is calculated uniformly for all Multi-Unit Operators. You must sign the
Franchise Agreement for the first Franchised Business at the same time you sign the Multi-Unit
Development Agreement. The entire Development Fee is payable in full at the time you sign the
Multi-Unit Development Agreement. In 2021, we did not collect any Development Fees.

Notice of Negotiated Sales: For California Residents only. The California Franchise
Investment Law requires that we notify California residents of items of this Disclosure Document
which we have negotiated with other franchisees. There have been no Notices of Negotiated Sales
filed in California in the last twelve months. Except as set forth herein and in any Notice of Negotiated
Sales which may be included as an Appendix to this Disclosure Document, an identical Initial
Franchise Fee will or will not be charged in connection with each type of franchise offered and sold
pursuant to this franchise Disclosure Document. Our affiliate, RSM, Inc., builds Pizza Guys® stores
and sells them to our franchisees as "turnkey" Pizza Guys® operations. RSM, Inc. does not pay us an
Initial Franchise Fee or Weekly Franchise Fees, however, buyers of a turnkey store from RSM, Inc.
pays us an Initial Franchise Fee, Initial and Weekly Franchise Fees.

ITEM 6. OTHER FEES
Type of Fee! Amount Due Date' Remarks
Weekly Franchise 5% of Gross Sales'> Wednesday each See footnotes
Fee? week!6
Minimum Monthly $7,500 per month As it becomes due See footnote
Advertising during the first 6
Expenditure’ months of operations.
The greater of 4% of
gross sales or $3,200
per month during
months 7 through 12.
Thereafter, 4% of
gross sales
Additional Training* | Actual cost of travel, | Upon your request for | See footnote
meals and lodging additional training
plus $100 per day
Retraining’ Actual cost of travel, | As we determine See footnote
meals and lodging
plus $250 per day




Transfer Fee®

Y5 of then current

After our approval of

See footnote

Initial Franchise Fee | your proposed
buyer(s)
Renewal/Extension 2 of the then-current | At least 180 days prior | See footnote
Fee? initial franchise fee to expiration of term
Inspection & Audits® | Cost of inspection and From the opglnal dat‘e See footnote
audit the inspection or audit
was due. If audit
reveals understatement
of 2% or more.
Proof Of Compliance’® | Actual cost of travel, | Upon Reinspection See footnote
meals and lodging
plus $250
Maintenance And You must reimburse As incurred If you do not
Refurbishing Of Store | our expenses undertake efforts to
correct deficiencies in
your Store’s
appearance promptly
after we notify you of
the deficiencies, then
we can undertake the
repairs and you must
reimburse our costs.
Late Charges'’ $35 per occurrence From the date See footnote

originally due until
paid

Interest!! 18% per annum or the | From the date See footnote
maximum legal rate originally due until
whichever is lower paid
Loyalty Card Our then current Monthly See footnote
Program'? program fee, plus
percentage for sales
dollar
Social media Our then current fee Monthly You will pay these
management, website fees to us
hosting, email hosting,
etc.!”
Calzone.life Training | $250 As incurred If you elect to sign a

Fee

Calzone.life Virtual
Kitchen addendum,
you must pay us a
$250 training fee.




Pizza Piatta Training | $250 As incurred If you elect to sign a

Pizza Piatta Virtual
Kitchen addendum,
you must pay us a
$250 training fee.

FOOTNOTES:

1

All fees are not imposed, collectible or payable to us. Of the fees which are payable to us,
none are refundable.

Weekly Franchise Fee: The Weekly Franchise Fee for the Franchise Agreement is 5% of
Gross Sales for each week of the franchise term and any renewal/extension term, due on the
Wednesday of each week for the preceding week immediately ended. See Franchise
Agreement, section 6.01(b) and 6.10.

Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure: Advertising expenses are paid to third parties
nottous. Proof of your Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure must be submitted with
your Monthly Advertising Report (see Section 6.05(b)). We retain the right to unilaterally
increase the Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure in the event that, in our sole opinion,
an increase is required to be competitive in the market.

We will provide an approved format for you to promote your Pizza Guys@ store, however,
we have not established an advertising fund and we are not required to advertise or otherwise
increase recognition of and goodwill toward the Pizza Guys® chain. For the first six (6)
months your store is open, we will plan the advertising of your store. You must expend up
to $7,500 each month for the first six (6) months your store is open to advertise the opening
of your store. See Franchise Agreement, Articles 5 and 6.

In the Sacramento, California area a Pizza Guys® advertising cooperative exists which
determines what advertisements are placed on the basis of one- store-one-vote. Our affiliate,
RSM, Inc., operates the majority of the Pizza Guys® stores in the Sacramento area and,
accordingly, controls what advertisements are placed in the Sacramento area.

When two or more franchised businesses have been established in a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA), we may establish an advertising cooperative in that area. If an advertising
cooperative has been established in your territory, you are required to participate in the
cooperative advertising group. If the group approves by majority an advertising program you
must pay for your share of the expense. (Franchise Agreement, Article 5.) Although we may
not have an advertising cooperative in your area, we may, from time to time, require that you
join a specific advertising campaign and we will electronically withdrawal money from your
account for the campaign. (Franchise Agreement, Article 5, and Exhibit 4.)

Additional Training: If you believe that our Initial Training Program is not adequate for you
or for the particular circumstances of your store, additional training to be conducted by our
representative at your store may be purchased from us for the actual cost of travel, meals and
lodging plus $100 per day. Pursuant to your Franchise Agreement, you are required to train
your employees/managers. If you want your employees/managers trained by us, we will do
so for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $250 per day. See Franchise
Agreement, section 3.01.

Retraining: If we determine that you are not operating your store in compliance with our Store
6




10

11

12

Operations Manual, we, in our sole discretion, have the right to make you go through Phase I
training again, and will do so for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $250 per
day. See Franchise Agreement, section 4.01(0).

Transfer Fee: To voluntarily transfer the franchise, you must pay us a Transfer Fee of one-
half of the then current Initial Franchise Fee for Franchise Agreements or $12,500 in the event
we are not then granting new franchises if the proposed buyer is new to the franchise system,
whichever is applicable and greater. The Transfer Fee is due after our approval of your
proposed buyer(s) but is nonrefundable even if for any reason, the proposed transfer does not
occur. See Item 17, below, and see Franchise Agreement, Article 14.

Renewal/Extension Fee: To renew (or extend) the franchise term you must pay us a renewal
fee equal to 50% of the then-current initial franchise fee (or in the event we are not then
granting new franchises, an extension fee of $12,500). The Renewal/Extension Fee applies
only to Franchise Agreements and is due upon your request to renew or extend. See Item 17,
below, and see Franchise Agreement, section 12.02(a).

Inspection and Audit: You must permit us, our representatives, accountants, attorneys and
other agents to inspect and audit your books and records without notice during regular
business hours. This authorization is continuing and irrevocable. If an inspection or audit
discloses that actual Gross Sales exceed your reported Gross Sales, you must pay us: (a) the
additional amounts owed, (b) interest on said amounts from the date originally due until paid,
and (c) if actual Gross Sales exceed your reported Gross Sales by 2% or more, the cost of the
inspections and audits which revealed the under-reported sales including, but not limited to,
our agents’ fees, travel, meals and lodging. See Franchise Agreement, section 6.07.

Proof of Compliance: You shall permit us, our representatives, accountants, attorneys and
other agents to inspect your store premises at any time during regular business hours, without
notice, and to observe all aspects of the business and you shall furnish us with such evidence
as we may request from time to time for the purpose of determining your compliance with the
franchise system. If we determine that you are not in compliance with the franchise system,
we will provide you with written notice thereof and you will have thirty (30) days to provide
evidence of compliance. Upon reinspection, if needed, you agree to pay us for such
reinspection at the rate of $250 per day plus actual cost of travel, meals and lodging.

Late Charges: Under the Franchise Agreement, you must pay us a late charge of $35 per
occurrence on any amount not paid when due, however, the payment of such interest will not
be deemed to authorize any delay in payment of any amount. See Franchise Agreement,
section 6.04, attached hereto as Exhibit 1. This late charge may be considered a liquidated
damage. Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are
unenforceable.

Interest: Under the Franchise Agreement, any amount not paid when due will bear interest at
the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum legal rate in the jurisdiction in which the store is
located, whichever is lower, from the date due until paid, however, the payment of such
interest will not be deemed to authorize any delay in payment of any amount. See Franchise
Agreement, section 6.04, attached hereto as Exhibit 1. This interest charge may be considered
a liquidated damage. Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages
clauses are unenforceable. The highest interest rate allowed by law in the state of California
1s 10% annually.

Loyalty Program: You must participate in our Customer Loyalty Card programs when
established. Loyalty Cards will be available for use and redemption at any location. We
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currently do not charge you for this Loyalty Program.

Preauthorized Bank Deduction Procedure: All fees may be collected by us from you will be
collected by way of a preauthorized bank deduction procedure. Upon signing the Franchise
Agreement and from time to time as requested by us, you must sign all documents necessary
to establish and maintain a preauthorized bank deduction procedure whereby your bank is
authorized to pay your Weekly Franchise Fee and any other payment (such as advertising
campaigns as may be required by us) including electronically deducting any default
You shall maintain sufficient funds in the account to assure the timely
preauthorized transfer of the appropriate funds and you shall pay to us a reasonable service
fee, not less than $25, and all bank charges in the event that sufficient funds are not available
to honor such deduction. You must not cancel the preauthorized bank deduction procedure
and you must require your bank to provide written notice 30 days in advance of any change
to your account which would affect it. You release, indemnify and agree to defend your bank
from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, payments
pursuant to the preauthorized bank deduction procedure. See Franchise Agreement, section
6.03 and see the Preauthorized Bank Deduction Procedure attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

“Gross Sales” means all revenue and other compensation, including catering and delivery,
derived from your business exclusive of: 1) sales taxes actually paid by you to governmental
authorities and 2) authorized “complimentary items” as defined in the Store Operations
Manual from time to time. Sales for checks or credit shall be treated as occurring for the full
price in the week during which the sale is made irrespective of the time when you actually
receive payment (whether full or partial) therefor. See Franchise Agreement, section 6.10.

“Week” means a period of 7 days as designated by the calendar, but beginning on Monday
and ending on Sunday for fee payments and financial reports. See Franchise Agreement,

Social media management, website hosting, email hosting, etc. We, or an affiliate of ours,
will manage your social media accounts, websites, and provide you with email hosting. You
are required to pay our then-current fee each month for these services.

14

payments.
15
16

section 6.09.
17
ITEM 7.

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

A. Franchise Agreement

TYPE OF AMOUNT METHOD OF | WHEN DUE | TO WHOM
EXPENDITURE PAYMENT PAYMENT
IS TO BE
MADE
Initial Franchise Fee! $25,000 Lump sum Upon signing | Franchisor
Franchise
Agreement
Grand Opening Period? $7,500 As incurred Prior to Third party
opening
Store Premises Lease? $2,000 - $6,000 Lump sum Upon signing | Franchisor or
Advance Rent & Deposit Lease lessor
Agreement




Leasehold Improvements* | $78,000 - $251,000 | As incurred Prior to Third party
opening

Equipment & Furnishings® | $70,000 - $112,000 | As incurred Prior to Third party
opening

Construction Project $1,000 - $3,500 As incurred Prior to Third party

Manager Fees® opening

Signage’ $5,500 As incurred Prior to Third party
opening

Insurance® $1,800 - $2,600 Lump sum Prior to Third party
opening

Miscellaneous Opening $3,000 - $6,000 As incurred Prior to Third party

Costs’ opening

Opening Inventory!” $7,500 Lump sum Prior to Third party
opening

Additional Funds — 3 $10,000 As incurred After opening | Employees,

Months!! suppliers,

utilities

Total (with the Store
Equipment and
Furnishings Purchased)

$211,300 - $427,600

Total (with the Store
Equipment and
Furnishings Leased'?)

$146,300 - $334,600

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

B. Multi-Unit Development Agreement

THERE ARE NO OTHER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INITIAL PAYMENTS TO PIZZA GUYS IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE FRANCHISE UNDER A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. NONE OF
THESE FEES OR EXPENDITURES ARE REFUNDABLE UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES.

TYPE OF AMOUNT METHOD OF | WHEN DUE | TO WHOM

EXPENDITURE™" PAYMENT PAYMENT
ISTO BE
MADE

Development Fee (3 to 5 $55,000 - $85,000 Lump sum Upon signing | Franchisor

Locations)'# the MUDA

Initial Investment to Open | $186,300 - $411,600 See Table A of this Item 7.

Initial Location (with the
Store Equipment and
Furnishings Purchased)'”




Initial Investment to Open | $121,300 - $309,600 See Table A of this Item 7.
Initial Location (with the
Store Equipment and
Furnishings Leased)"

Total (with the Store $241,300 - $496,600
Equipment and
Furnishings Purchased)

Total (with the Store $176,300 - $394,600
Equipment and
Furnishings Leased'?)

NONE OF THESE FEES OR EXPENDITURES ARE REFUNDABLE UNDER ANY
CIRCUMSTANCES.

FOOTNOTES:

1 Initial Franchise Fee: See Item 5, and see Franchise Agreement, section 6.01(a).

2 Grand Opening Period: We estimate that your grand opening costs will be $7,500 per month
for the first six (6) months.

3 Store Premises [Lease Advance Rent & Deposit: Upon signing the lease for the store premises,
you must pay the third party lessor the first month’s rent and a security deposit (and any other payment
required by the lessor). The first month’s rent and security deposit will vary depending upon the
amount of the monthly rent. The monthly rent will vary from store to store depending upon a number
of factors including, but not limited to: the location and size of the store premises, the length of the
store premises lease, the extent of leasehold improvements needed, whether the cost of leasehold
improvements are included in the rent, and the amount of the first month’s rent and security deposit.
Depending upon the desirability of the location, the current monthly rental rates for store premises
suitable for Pizza Guys® takeout and delivery only stores in the greater Sacramento, California area
range from approximately $1.50 per square foot to $ 3.50 per square foot per month, plus common
area maintenance (“CAM”) charges where applicable. Pizza Guys®. Stores generally operate in
approximately 1000 to 1500 square foot premises in retail areas. We estimate that monthly CAM
charges in the Northern California area for a typical 1,200 square foot Pizza Guys®. Store will range
from $315 to $800. Based on recent trends, you should anticipate a rent increase of 3% to 7% per
year. [Note: The foregoing information is derived from our experience in the Northern California
area. Rental rates in other areas may be greater or less.) See note 5 of Item 6 of this Disclosure
Document and see Franchise Agreement, sections 6.02 and 2.01 attached to this Franchise Disclosure
Document as Exhibit 1.

4 Leasehold Improvements: If you sign a Franchise Agreement, it is likely that the store
premises will need to be improved in order to make the premises suitable for use as a Pizza Guys®
store (commonly referred to as “leasehold” or “tenant improvements”). The cost of such leasehold
improvements will vary with the size and location of the store premises and the extent of the
improvements required. In some instances, the store premises will already have been improved for
use as a store, thereby potentially decreasing the extent of improvements necessary for use as a Pizza
Guys® store, resulting in cost savings to you. In other cases (such as premises which have never
before been occupied), extensive leasehold improvements will be necessary in order to make the
premises suitable for use as a Pizza Guys® store, thereby significantly increasing your costs beyond
those estimated here. We estimate that leasehold improvements will cost from $100,000 to $278,000,

10



depending upon the size of the premises and whether or not the premises have been previously used
as a store. See note 6 of Item 6 of this franchise Disclosure Document.

5 Equipment and Furnishings: If you sign a Franchise Agreement, you must fixture, furnish,
equip and decorate the store in accordance with our standards and specifications as revised from time
to time. You must have a pair of conveyor ovens, hood and ventilation system, mixer, pizza
preparation table, cut table, vegetable dicer and slicer, dough sheeter, freezer, safe, walk-in
refrigerator, dry storage shelving, counter tops, cabinetry, digital menus, digital artwork, telephone
system and a POS System which must be approved by Franchisor, high speed internet connection, as
well as other equipment and furnishings on the store premises in order to operate the premises as a
Pizza Guys® store. You are required to notify us prior to changing your internet provider. The
required equipment and furnishings may be purchased outright, or may be leased, or leased and
acquired through a lease/purchase agreement from a variety of sources with costs varying according
to the size of the store and the specific features of the equipment and furnishings selected. See Item
11.

We estimate that the cost to purchase the required equipment and furnishings outright will range from
$51,500 to $89,000 depending upon whether or not you choose new or reconditioned equipment or
equipment with basic features or more sophisticated equipment including automatic and electronic
features. You will contract directly and make all financial and credit arrangements with the seller or
lessor of the equipment and furnishings. All equipment and furnishings must meet our standards and
specifications and be purchased from an approved supplier. We may, but are not obligated to, sell or
lease the equipment and furnishings to you.

6 Construction Project Manager Fees: You are required to use a construction coordinator
approved by us.
7 Signage: If you sign a Franchise Agreement you must install approved signage on your store

premises. We estimate that the store signage or awning will cost from $1,500 to $8,400 depending
upon the size and location of the premises and the number of streets or walkways on which the store
premises front. You will contract directly and make all financial and credit arrangements with the
signage provider. All Signage must meet our standards and specifications and be purchased from a
designated or approved supplier. All Signage designs must be approved by us prior to fabrication. We
may, but are not obligated to, lease or sell the signage to you. Notwithstanding this paragraph or any
provision of the Franchise Agreement, the signage shall immediately belong to Franchisor.

8 Insurance Coverage: You are required to have Worker’s or Workmen’s Compensation
Insurance as prescribed by law in the state in which the store is located; Comprehensive General
Liability Insurance (including products liability coverage, excess and non-owned driver liability and
a broad form advertising injury endorsement) with a $1,000,000 combined single limit for Bodily
Injury and Property Damage per occurrence; any additional insurance required by the store premises
lease; and any additional insurance required by any equipment lease. A $2,000,000 umbrella policy
is recommended but not required. See Franchise Agreement, section 9.02. Although the expense of
such coverage will vary from state to state and region to region, we estimate that you will expend
approximately $14,000 per year to maintain such coverage. Payments are made monthly. Only two
months’ payments (e.g., $1,800 to $2,600) must be paid initially. We recommend that you take out
an Employment Practices Liability Insurance policy which covers potential claims made by your
employees for: wrongful refusal to employ a qualified applicant for employment; wrongful failure to
promote, or wrongful deprivation of career opportunity; wrongful demotion, negligent evaluation,
negligent reassignment or wrongful discipline; wrongful termination; employment related
misrepresentation; harassment, coercion, discrimination; or oral or written publication or material that
slanders, defames or libels or violates or invades a right of privacy.
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9 Miscellaneous Costs: You are required to have on hand sufficient funds to meet
miscellaneous expenses including, but not limited to, the payment of telephone and utilities deposits,
health department licensing fees, initial sales tax deposit, small equipment and other isolated or
recurring charges. The total amount of funds necessary will vary from store to store depending upon
a number of factors including, but not limited to, location and size of the store and the number of
persons employed. We estimate that miscellaneous costs will range from $3,000 to $6,000.

Security deposits, utility deposits, sales tax deposits, business licenses, and other prepaid expenses
are included under miscellaneous costs. The advance rent and deposit for the store premises lease are
discussed in detail in Items 6 and 7, above. If you have previously established business credit, then
security deposits will fall within the aforementioned range for miscellaneous costs. However, if you
have not previously established business credit, your required deposits will exceed that amount.

Additionally, in the event that you lease the store equipment and furnishings, you will generally be
required to pay the equipment lessor advance rent and/or a security deposit of $5,000 to $10,000 (i.e.,
10% to 20% of the lessor's purchase price for the equipment, varying with the quality of your credit).
You should also expect to pay for other miscellaneous leased equipment.

Municipal Sewer Hook-up Fees: It has come to our attention that some municipalities have begun
charging a substantial fee for the first time a building is connected to the municipal sewer system. The
fee, if charged, can range from $3,000 to $20,000. Whether or not a sewer hook-up fee is charged and
the amount of the fee is totally dependent upon the local ordinances of the county, city or other
municipality having jurisdiction over the proposed store premises. It is your responsibility to ascertain
and to inform us of what fees will be charged by the local jurisdiction. The sewer hookup fee is not
included in our estimate of miscellaneous costs for the following reasons: since the sewer hook-up
remains a permanent part of the building, if negotiated prior to signing the lease, the lessor will
sometimes pay the fee; also, in our experience, where the fee is charged, it is either less or normally
not charged in the case of buildings which have previously been occupied as a store. Accordingly, in
communities where such fees are charged, you should consider leasing a previously occupied building
instead of a new building.

10 Opening Inventory: Prior to opening, you are required to purchase and have on hand such
foods, beverages, pizza containers, cups, paper goods and other inventory as we specify ("opening
inventory"). We estimate that the opening inventory will cost approximately $7,500 depending upon
the store's anticipated initial sales.

11 Additional Funds - 3 Month's Estimate: We estimate that $10,000 will be necessary to operate
the store for 3 months after opening.

12 Store Equipment and Furnishings [.eased: Should you lease the equipment and furnishings,
you will incur a lease payment which is unknown to us but the amount of your payment will depend
on your credit worthiness and lease terms negotiated.

13 This Table B details the estimated initial investment associated with executing a MUDA for
the right to own and operate 3 to 5 locations, as well as the initial investment to open your first location
under your Development Schedule.

14 This figure represents the Development Fee for the purchase of 3 to 5 locations under the
MUDA.
15 This figure represents the total estimated initial investment required to open the initial
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location you agreed to open and operate under the MUDA. You will be required to enter into our
then-current form of franchise agreement for the initial location you open under your MUDA. The
range includes all the items outlined in Table A of this Item 7, except for the Initial Franchise Fee
because they are reflected in the Development Fee. It does not include any of the costs you will incur
in opening any additional location(s) that you are granted the right to open and operate under your
MUDA.

ITEM 8. RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We may, from time to time, require you to purchase or lease: (1) certain goods, services,
inventory, supplies, fixtures, equipment, furnishings, and real estate only from a designated source or
sources; (2) some items only from among a list of approved suppliers; and (3) other items from any
supplier so long as the items meet our standards and specifications as revised from time to time.

No purchasing or distribution cooperatives exist, however, we may, but are not obligated to,
establish a commissary or central kitchen which will be an approved supplier or the sole designated
source for some or all of the food, beverages and other inventory purchased by you. In such event, we
will derive income therefrom.

Additional specific purchasing or leasing requirements for certain goods, inventory, supplies,
fixtures, equipment, furnishings, and store real estate are set forth in the Store Operations Manual and
may be revised from time to time. See Franchise Agreement, Articles 2 and 4.

If you have a Franchise Agreement, we estimate that you will be required to purchase or lease
approximately 50% to 90% of the goods or services necessary to establish your store from us or
approved suppliers or sources designated by us and that you will be required to purchase or lease
approximately 50% to 90% of the goods or services necessary to operate your store from us or
approved suppliers or sources designated by us. We reserve the right to designate ourselves as an
approved supplier or as the sole designated source for such items.

We approve suppliers based on their: (1) ability to provide the goods or services in accordance
with our standards and specifications including, but not limited to, producing our private brand label
products, if any; (2) willingness to protect our proprietary information and trade secrets from
disclosure and misappropriation; (3) production and delivery capabilities; (4) integrity to assure that
association with the supplier will not bring ill will upon us; and (5) the financial solvency of the
supplier. Failure to maintain our standards and specifications may result in the termination of a
supplier's approved status and we reserve the right to revoke the approval of a supplier at any time. If
you desire to use a particular supplier who has not been approved by us, you may request us to
consider adding the supplier to the list of approved suppliers.

Advertisers, suppliers, including food and beverage suppliers, and other product and service
providers provide monetary or in-kind "rebates" to franchisors who designate them as a sole source
supplier or who recommend or approve them as an authorized supplier. You agree that we have the
right to receive and expend such rebates in any manner that we, in our sole and absolute discretion,
desire. See Franchise Agreement, section 6.08. We reserve the right to negotiate additional or different
rebates without notice to you at any time.

Neither Pizza Guys nor any of its officers, principals, or affiliates hold an ownership interest
in any supplier of goods or services required to either establish or operate a Pizza Guys franchise.

Pizza Guys may and have negotiated purchasing arrangements with suppliers of foods,
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beverages, products and services for the benefit of its franchise system. Pizza Guys has not established
purchasing or distribution cooperatives. Pizza Guys may receive income in the form of rebates,
discounts, allowances or other payments or credits from designated or approved suppliers that sell
foods, beverages, products or services to franchisees. In some cases, prices charged by suppliers to
company-owned Restaurants may be less than prices charged to franchised Restaurants based on
volume, credits, administrative costs or other factors. If Pizza Guys receives any rebates or other
payments from a supplier as a result of your purchases from the supplier, those payments will be the
exclusive property of Pizza Guys. You will not have any rights to the payments made to Pizza Guys
by suppliers. During our last fiscal year, 2022, nor we or our affiliates received any rebates from
required franchisee purchases.

Except as described above, you are not required to purchase or lease products or services
from Pizza Guys or an affiliate, and Pizza Guys will not derive revenue or other material consideration
based upon your purchases of products or services from designated or approved suppliers or based
upon your purchases of products or services that must meet Pizza Guys’ standards and specifications.

Pizza Guys does not provide material benefits to you (for example, renewal or granting
additional franchises) based upon your purchase of particular products or services or use of particular
suppliers.

The following table describes the types of rebates we receive from approved suppliers:

Company Item Rebate Rate
Saladino’s Foodservice Food Distributor 55%  (of non-mozzarella
purchases)

Lamb Weston Muncheez $0.05 per case

Rose Packaging Canadian Bacon $0.15 per Ib.

Hormel Pepperoni $0.10 per Ib.

Hormel Sausage $0.14 per Ib.

Dairy Farms of America Cheese Supplier $0.04 per Ib.

Tyson Chicken $0.60 per Ib.

Ken’s Foods Dressings and sauces $0.25 per gallon

J&J Snack Foods Snack Food $1.00 per case

Smithfield Pineapple $1.00 per case and
Pepperoni and bacon $0.05 - $0.10 per Ib.

These amounts are deposited in our general franchise account.
Insurance

All insurance required to be carried hereunder shall be placed with a reputable insurance
carrier admitted in and licensed to do business in the state in which your store is located and having
assets in excess of $100,000,000 with a Financial Size Category of XV and a Policyholders Rating
of “A+” or “A” (Excellent) as assigned by Alfred M. Best and Company, Inc. All insurance
policies required to be carried hereunder shall name us, Shahpour M. Nejad, Reza Kalantari, our
officers and representatives, RSM, Inc. and any other person designated by us from time to time
as an additional insured. Maintenance of the insurance required hereunder shall not relieve you of
your obligations to defend and indemnify us. Proof of coverage, evidence of payment of premiums
and duplicate copies of policies of insurance shall be delivered to us by your insurance carrier no
fewer than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date you receive possession of your store premises
and at least annually thereafter. All policies of insurance shall be in a form approved by us and
shall include a provision prohibiting policy cancellations or material changes prior to the expiration
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of thirty (30) days written notice to us.

Prior to taking possession of your store premises and before selling any goods or services,
you shall acquire and thereafter maintain in effect insurance in the following minimum amounts
and coverages: (1) Worker's or Workmen's Compensation Insurance as prescribed by law in the state
in which the store is located; (2) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (including products
liability coverage, excess and non-owned driver liability and a broad form advertising injury
endorsement) with a $1,000,000 combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage per
occurrence; (3) any additional insurance required by the store premises lease; and (4) any additional
insurance required by any equipment lease. A $2,000,000 umbrella policy is recommended but not
required. See Franchise Agreement, section 9.02. Although the expense of such coverage will vary
from state to state and region to region, we estimate that you will expend approximately $14,000 per
year to maintain such coverage. Payments are made monthly. Only two months' payments (e.g.,
$1,800 to $2,600) must be paid initially. We recommend that you take out an Employment Practices
Liability Insurance policy which covers potential claims made by your employees for: wrongful
refusal to employ a qualified applicant for employment; wrongful failure to promote, or wrongful
deprivation of career opportunity; wrongful demotion, negligent evaluation, negligent reassignment
or wrongful discipline; wrongful termination; employment related misrepresentation; harassment,
coercion, discrimination; or oral or written publication or material that slanders, defames or libels or
violates or invades a right of privacy.

In the event you shall fail to obtain or maintain the insurance required herein, we may, but
need not, purchase insurance on your behalf and you shall promptly reimburse us for all premiums
and other costs incurred in connection therewith. However, by placing such insurance, we do not
guarantee adequate coverage.

ITEM 9. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help
you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other
items of this disclosure document.

OBLIGATION SECTION IN DISCLOSURE
FRANCHISE DOCUMENT ITEM
AGREEMENT

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease | 2.01 8, 11,15

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases 2 and 3 8,11

c. Site development and other pre- 2and 3 8 11,15

opening requirements

d. Initial and ongoing training 3 11,15

e. Opening 2 and 3 11,15

f. Fees 6, 12.02 and 14.01(c) 5,6,7,17

g. Compliance with standards and 4,5and 6 8

policies

h. Trademarks and proprietary 7 13, 14

information

1. Restrictions on products/services 4.01 and 8 8,16

offered

J. Warranty and customer service 4.01 8,15

requirements
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k. Territorial development and sales 4.01 and 1.03 12

quotas

1. Ongoing product/service purchases | 3.03 and 4.01 8

m. Maintenance, appearance, and 4.01(k), 2.02 and 2.03 6, 15, 17

remodeling requirements

n. Insurance 9.02 7

0. Advertising 5 5,6,7

p. Indemnification 2.01,2.02, 6.03,9.02 and | 6, 13, 14, 15
9.03

g. Owner’s 4.01(f) 15

participation/management/staffing

r. Records and reports 6.05, 6.06, 6.07 and 14.01 | 6, 11

s. Inspection and audits 6.07 7

t. Transfer 14 17

u. Renewal 2.01, 2.06, 4.01(%), 17
6.01(b), 6.02, 6.05(a),
7.01 -7.03, 8, 13.01 (c),
12 and 16

v. Post-termination obligations 8and 13 17

w. Non-competition covenants 8 17

x. Dispute resolution 15.05 17

OBLIGATION SECTION IN MULTI- | DISCLOSURE
UNIT DOCUMENT ITEM
DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease | Article 7 8, 11,15

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Not Applicable 8, 11

c. Site development and other pre- Not Applicable 8 11,15

opening requirements

d. Initial and ongoing training Not Applicable 11,15

e. Opening Not Applicable 11,15

f. Fees 5,9and 11 5,6,7,17

g. Compliance with standards and Not Applicable 8

policies

h. Trademarks and proprietary 10 and 12 13, 14

information

1. Restrictions on products/services Not Applicable 8,16

offered

J. Warranty and customer service Not Applicable 8,15

requirements

k. Territorial development and sales 3and 6 12

quotas

1. Ongoing product/service purchases | Not Applicable 8

m. Maintenance, appearance, and Not Applicable 6, 15,17

remodeling requirements

n. Insurance Not Applicable 7

0. Advertising Not Applicable 5,6,7
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p. Indemnification 9.3 6,13, 14, 15
g. Owner’s 9.6 15
participation/management/staffing

r. Records and reports Not Applicable 6,11

s. Inspection and audits 12 7

t. Transfer 11 17

u. Renewal 4 17

v. Post-termination obligations 15 17

w. Non-competition covenants 10 and Exhibit C 17

x. Dispute resolution 11.5and 17 17

ITEM 10. FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or
obligation.

ITEM 11. FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

A. Our Assistance to You:

Franchise Agreement. Prior to the opening of your Pizza Guys® store, we will:

1. Approve or disapprove of the real estate proposed by you for use as the store premises and
negotiate, if possible, an acceptable agreement for the lease of the premises from the lessor. See
Franchise Agreement, section 2.01and see Items 8 and 11, herein.

[Note: We approve or disapprove of the store premises proposed by you based upon the
experience of our representatives named and described in Item 2. Considerations include, but are not
limited to, premises rent, location and physical attributes, existing or likely competition, traffic
patterns, population density and demographics, and the proximity to other existing or proposed Pizza
Guys® takeout and delivery only pizza stores. See Franchise Agreement, sections 2.01, 2.02 and
2.03.]

2. Provide general plans and specifications for the equipment and furnishings layout, signage,
design and other incidents of a typical Pizza Guys® store. (We will not provide energy calculations
or plans or specifications for electrical, plumbing, sewer or mechanical systems or compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act or state disabilities statutes or regulations.) See Franchise
Agreement, section 2.02.

[Note: We estimate the typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement
or the first payment of any consideration for the franchise and the opening of your store to be
approximately 3 to 9 months. You may not hold us liable for any delay in the construction of the store.
See Franchise Agreement, section 2.01.]
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3. Provide our food, beverage, ingredients, condiments, cups, containers, napkins, paper goods,
packaging and other inventory list. See Franchise Agreement, section 4.01(d).

4. Train you prior to the opening of your store. See Franchise Agreement, section 3.01, and see
Item 11, below.

5. Provide (during the Initial Training Program) our Store Operations Manual. See Franchise
Agreement, section 3.02. Upon your request, we will permit you to view our Store Operations Manual
before you purchase the franchise. The Store Operations Manual contains approximately 568 pages.
The table of contents for the Store Operations Manual is attached to this Franchise Disclosure
Document as Exhibit 8 (Franchise Agreement — Section 3.02). The Store Operations Manual contains
mandatory and suggested standards, specifications, operating procedures, and rules. We may modify
the Store Operations Manual periodically to reflect changes in our operating procedures (Franchise
Agreement — Sections 3.02 and 4.01(0)).

6. Expend your Grand Opening advertising amount (for Franchise Agreements only) to advertise
and otherwise promote the opening of your store. See Franchise Agreement, section 5.01(b).

Multi-Unit Development Agreement. Under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement, we

will:

1. We will grant to you development rights to a Development Area within which you will
assume responsibility to establish and operate an agreed upon number of Franchised Businesses under
separate Franchise Agreements (Multi-Unit Development Agreement, Section 2.1).

2. We will review site survey information on sites you select for conformity to our standards and
criteria for potential sites and, if the site meets our criteria, approve the site for development of a
Franchised Business (Multi-Unit Development Agreement, Section 8.1).

3. We will offer and perform the training, instruction, assistance and other activities set forth in
the Franchise Agreements for your Franchised Businesses (Multi-Unit Development Agreement,
Section 8

B. Our obligations during the operation of your store are as follows:

1. To provide you with revisions, if any, to the Store Operations Manual. See Franchise
Agreement, section 3.02.

2. To be available for consultation concerning the ongoing operations of the store. See Franchise
Agreement, section 3.03.

3. To provide an approved format for you to promote your Pizza Guys® store. [Note: We have
not established an advertising fund and we are not required to advertise or otherwise increase
recognition of and goodwill toward the Pizza Guys® chain.] For the first six (6) months your store
is open, we will plan and budget the minimum amount of advertising of your store. However, you
may spend more than what we recommend. When your store is ready to open, you will expend an
estimated $7,500 minimum per month in advertising fees as incurred within the first six months of
opening to advertise the opening of your store. See Franchise Agreement, Article 5.01(a).

C. Advertising.

We intend to use digital media (Internet, Facebook, Twitter, etc.) and targeted print media in
our marketing and advertising efforts as well as local and regional radio and television advertising.
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We will be using in-house advertising personnel to do this, but we also may hire advertising
and public relations firms to assist us in these efforts. We are not required to spend any advertising
fees in your territory or in or near your Store, although we may do so.

Advertising Fees are spent to benefit all franchises, including you. We will provide general
advertising programs and sales promotion, campaign and sample advertising materials. You may
develop advertising materials for your own use, at your own cost. But we must approve all
advertising materials in advance and in writing.

We do not yet have a franchisee council that advises us on advertising policies, but we may
establish one in the future, and if we do so, we will request input on advertising informally from
franchisees.

We will provide an approved format for you to promote your Pizza Guys@ store, however,
we have not established an advertising fund and we are not required to advertise or otherwise increase
recognition of and goodwill toward the Pizza Guys® chain. For the first six (6) months your store
is open, we will plan and budget the minimum amount of advertising of your store. However, you
may spend more than what we recommend. You are required to expend up to $7,500 each month
for the first six (6) months your store is open to advertise the opening of your store. See Franchise
Agreement, Articles 5 & 6.

In the Sacramento, California area a Pizza Guys® advertising cooperative exists which
determines what advertisements are placed on the basis of one- store-one-vote. Our affiliate, RSM,
Inc., operates the majority of the Pizza Guys® stores in the Sacramento area and, accordingly, controls
what advertisements are placed in the Sacramento area.

When two or more franchised businesses have been established in a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA), we may establish an advertising cooperative in that area. We have the sole power to
require cooperatives to be formed, changed, dissolved, or merged. If an advertising cooperative has
been established in your territory, you are required to participate in the cooperative advertising group.
If the group approves by majority an advertising program you must pay for your share of the expense.
Contributions are calculated by a formula based on coverage of material received. For example,
commercial contributions are determined by the percentage of media coverage in the area. Coverage
percentage is given to us by the media station. Franchisor-owned outlets must contribute to the fund
on the same basis as those for franchisees. (Franchise Agreement, Article 5.) Although we may not
have an advertising cooperative in your area, we may, from time to time, require that you join a
specific advertising campaign and we will electronically withdrawal money from your account for
the campaign. (Franchise Agreement, Article 5, and Exhibit 5.) We are responsible for
administering the cooperative. All cooperatives will operate under written governing documents
which would be made available to you to review. Cooperatives will not be required to prepare annual
or periodic financial statements.

You are not required to participate in any other advertising fund.
During our last fiscal year ending December 31, 2022 we did not collect any advertising
funds. If all advertising funds are not spent in the fiscal year in which they accrue, a refund will be

given back to you.

None of the advertising funds are or will be used primarily for the solicitation for new
franchise sales.
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D. Business Management System and Computers:

You are required to purchase a telephone system, a POS System which must be approved
by us, high speed internet connection, as well as other equipment and furnishings on the store
premises in order to operate the premises as a Pizza Guys® store. You are required to participate in
online ordering and any future programs such as texting orders that Pizza Guys may introduce. You
are required to notify us prior to changing your internet provider. The required equipment and
furnishings may be purchased outright, or may be leased, or leased and acquired through a
lease/purchase agreement from a variety of sources with costs varying according to the size of the
store and the specific features of the equipment and furnishings selected.

Your franchise computer system must meet or exceed our minimum requirements, as
periodically specified by us, which requirements will be updated from time to time according to
changing technology and industry standards. When you purchase and install the POS System, you
bear all related costs. Touchpoint.io currently provides a system approved by Franchisor. The
initial computer system is included in the Initial Investment. Pizza Guys will have independent access
to the information and data maintained in your business computer system. There are no contractual
limitations on our right to access the information and data contained therein.

You may obtain your computer hardware and POS system from a supplier approved by
Franchisor. You must upgrade it as we specify at our or our approved suppliers’ then current prices
for the upgraded equipment or software. There are no contractual limitations on the frequency and
cost of the upgrades.

There may be additional costs of the chosen computer system attributable to optional or
required maintenance and support contracts and upgrades and updates. We may, but currently do
not, require you to utilize any maintenance or support services for the computer system. You must
ensure all programs and applications running on your computer system are legally licensed. We
estimate that maintenance and support services could cost $7,000 per year.

You must keep all your cash registers and computer system in good operable repair, at your
expense, and you must promptly install additions, changes, modifications, substitutions and
replacements to the cash register and computer system as we may reasonably require. You will have
the sole and complete responsibility for: (a) acquiring, operating, maintaining and upgrading your
own cash register and computer system; (b) the manner in which your cash register and computer
system interface with our computer systems, if any, and the computer systems of third parties; and (c)
all consequences that may arise if your cash register and computer system is not properly operated,
maintained and upgraded.

Neither we, our affiliates, nor a third party has a contractual right or obligation to provide
ongoing maintenance, repairs or upgrades for your computer system or related items. However, we
will provide you with continuing guidance on the necessity for upgrades, all of which you must
complete at your own cost.

E. Customer Gift and Loyalty Card Programs:

You must participate in our Gift and Loyalty Card programs when established. Loyalty cards
will be available for sale and redemption at any Pizza Guys® pizza store. You may only sell or
otherwise issue loyalty cards that have been prepared utilizing the standard form loyalty card
("Loyalty Cards") and as specified in the Confidential Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.
You will honor all Loyalty Cards that are in the form provided or approved by us regardless of whether
a Loyalty Card was issued by you or another Pizza Guys® pizza store.
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You will sell, issue, and redeem (without any offset against any Royalty Fees) Loyalty Cards
in accordance with procedures and policies specified by us in the Confidential Operations Manual or
otherwise in writing. You will pay us our then current ongoing monthly fee for each Pizza Guys®
pizza store to manage and maintain the Customer Loyalty Program (‘“Program Fee”). Your inventory
of Loyalty Cards must be purchased directly from the designated vendor. You will pay us our then
current fee on a customer sales in which a Loyalty Card is presented. The customer’s Loyalty Card
will accrue 10 points for each $1 spent at a Pizza Guys® pizza store.

F. Pizza Guys Training:

TRAINING PROGRAM
Subject Hours of Hours of On- Location
Classroom The-Job
Training Training
Phase I: Covers subjects which are | Until certified 0 Location to be
relevant to the opening and operation selected by
of the store, including: (a) the basics of Franchisor

our store site selection; (b) the
fundamentals of our store design,
decor, and layout; (c) standards and
specifications for purchasing food,
beverages, inventory,  supplies,
fixtures, equipment and furnishings;
(d) equipment operation; (e)
preparation of our limited menu of
foods and beverages according to our
recipes, formulas and other methods;
(f) our floor sales methods and
customer relations; (g) our employee
training, evaluation, relations and
other management practices; (h) our
print, radio, television and other
advertising and marketing techniques;
and (i) such other policies and
procedures as we deem advisable.

Phase II: After the opening of your | 0 5 days, eight (8) | Your Store
store, we or our representatives shall hours per day
continue training such person and your
general manager

Bootcamp 0 2 days, eight (8) | HQ - Rancho
hours per day Cordova, CA

The above table represents our Initial Training Program. (We may require and you may request that
every person signing your Franchise Agreement and your general manager complete our Initial
Training Program.)

The Initial Training Program

Training is conducted by our Training Director, Reza Kamalian, who has 25 years of
experience in the restaurant industry. There is no separate charge to you for the Initial Training
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Program. However, you must pay the transportation, meals and lodging expenses for yourself and
your manager during Phase I of our Initial Training Program which is usually conducted in
Sacramento, California. We shall pay for the travel, lodging, meals or other expenses of our personnel
for the duration of Phase II of the Initial Training Program only. Your or your manager's participation
in the Initial Training Program is mandatory. Y ou must personally attend the Initial Training Program
and you must not open for business until you or your manager have successfully completed Phase I
of our Initial Training Program. You acknowledge that we will not be held liable if you or your
manager(s) were to get injured in part or wholly due to your/their own negligence. You agree and
acknowledge that you will or have insurance covering such liability and will provide copies of such
policy upon our reasonable request. You release, indemnify and agree to defend us, our affiliates and
representatives from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by or related to your
or your manager(s) own negligence during the Initial Training Program. We may require and you
may request that every person signing your Franchise Agreement and your general manager complete
our Initial Training Program. We are not required to pay training program participants for their labor.
You are responsible for training your employees. Pursuant to your Franchise Agreement, you are
required to train your employees/managers. If you want your employees/managers trained by us, we
will do so for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $250 per day. See Franchise Agreement,
section 3.01.

For Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen: If you sign our Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen addendum we
will provide training to one person at a location selected by us. We will offer 1 day of training no later
than 2 weeks prior to opening your Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen. You must pay us a Calzone.life
Virtual Kitchen training fee of $250.

For Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen: If you sign our Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen addendum we
will provide training to one person at a location selected by us. We will offer 1 day of training no later
than 2 weeks prior to opening your Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen and 2 days of training during or
immediately after the opening of your Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen. You must pay us a Pizza Piatta
Virtual Kitchen training fee of $250.

For Transfers: The seller of an existing Pizza Guys® store must personally provide the Phase
I initial training to the buyer(s) prior to close of escrow. We have no obligation to provide Phase I
initial training to the buyer(s) but will provide the Phase II initial training to the buyer(s) after close
of escrow if required. If we are not satisfied with the Phase I initial training by you to buyer, we, in
our sole discretion, have the right to make the buyer go through Phase I training again.

After the Initial Training Program, we will be available for consultation with you concerning
the ongoing operation of the store. See Franchise Agreement, section 3.03.

We may, but are not required to, offer additional training courses and/or refresher courses to
you. We reserve the right to require you to attend or to otherwise participate in such additional
training. You must pay all transportation, lodging, and other expenses incurred in attending such
additional training courses.

If you believe that our Initial Training Program is not adequate for you or for the particular
circumstances of your store, additional training at your store may be purchased from us for the actual
cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $100 per day. You must make your request for additional
training to us in writing and pre-pay for the same before we will schedule additional training.

ITEM 12. TERRITORY
You will receive an exclusive territory. We have not established and will not establish another
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franchised or company-owned Pizza Guys® pizza store or any other franchised or company-owned
store serving pizza under the same or a different trade name or trademark within a two (2) mile radius
of your store premises (the "Exclusive Area") excepting situations where a natural or artificial
condition is an impediment to travel such as freeways, rivers and the like, in which case we may
establish another franchised or company-owned store serving pizza within a two (2) mile radius of
your store. Notwithstanding the Exclusive Area, you and other franchisees may serve walk-in
customers from any area and deliver to call-in customers in any area. You may not directly solicit
customers outside of the Exclusive Area without our permission. “Direct solicitation” includes, but is
not limited to, solicitation in person, by telephone, by mail, through the Internet, social media, email
or other electronic means, and by distribution of brochures, business cards or other materials. If any
direct solicitation of customers within the Exclusive Area is in media that will or may reach a
significant number of persons outside of the Exclusive Area, you must notify us in advance and obtain
our consent. See Franchise Agreement, section 1.03, below.

If you sign a MUDA, your Development Area will not be exclusive. You may face
competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution
or competitive brands that we control. If you sign a MUDA in the form attached as Exhibit 2 to this
disclosure document, we will approve sites for future/additional locations based on our then-current
site criteria.

You and Pizza Guys will agree upon the territory before signing the Franchise Agreement.
Any change in the definition of your territory must be in writing. You have no right to relocate your
franchise without written approval of Pizza Guys.

You may only have one franchise business located within the territory established by each
franchise agreement. You do not receive the right to acquire additional franchises or resell any portion
of your territory. Pizza Guys franchisees who are qualified to open multiple locations are given the
option to open more than one location within an approved area and specific timeline. The approved
area and timeline are negotiated on a case by case basis depending in part on the qualifications of the
Franchisee.

You do not have the right to establish additional franchised outlets unless you sign a MUDA
in the form attached as Exhibit 2 to this disclosure document. If you and we sign a MUDA, then you
will have the right establish a mutually-agreed number of additional Pizza Guys® stores. Under the
MUDA, your right to develop additional stores is subject to the following: (1) you must comply with
the mutually-agreed development schedule, (2) you must have sufficient financial and organizational
capacity to develop, open, operate, and manage each additional Pizza Guys® business, (3) you must
be in compliance with all brand requirements at your open Pizza Guys® business(es), and (4) you
must not be in default under any other agreement with us.

There are currently no company owned businesses similar to your franchise business, though
Pizza Guys is not prohibited from establishing some.

Pizza Guys offers an add-on concept known as “Calzone”. Other than the Calzone add-on
concept, Pizza Guys has no plans for selling or licensing similar products or services under a different
trade name or trademark, other than the Pizza Guys trade name and trademark.

Any additional sales or service facility locations you wish to open must be the subject of an
additional franchise agreement under a MUDA.. Your designated franchise area may only be changed
by written agreement between Pizza Guys and you.

Pizza Guys does not grant you any right to establish a business using the marks of Pizza Guys
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other than in an approved territory. Further, Pizza Guys does not grant you any options, rights of first
refusal, or similar rights to license others to establish, license, or franchise any business using the
marks.

ITEM 13. TRADEMARKS

We license you the right to operate your store under the “Pizza Guys®” trade name,
trademark and service mark and to use such other trade names, service marks, trademarks and logos
as we from time to time decide, and you must operate your store under only such trade names, service
marks, trademarks and logos.

Our principals have obtained registration of and have assigned to us the following mark(s) on
the Principal Register in the United States Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTQ") for the following
goods and services:

Mark Date of Registration USPTO Registration No.

Pizza Guys January 28, 1997 2034329
Renewed on January 7, 2017

Pizza Guys December 10, 1996 2022471
Renewed on January 19, 2017

Pizza Guys The Better | June 11, 2002 2578298

Guys Renewed on January 24, 2012 and
August 17, 2022

Pizza Guys Real Pizza | September 25, 2018 5568672

Real Value

Pizza Guys A Party in | August 7, 2018 5533532

Every Pizza

I’m a Pizza Guy April 16,2013 4321056
Renewed on June 14, 2018

Artisan Made Pizza March 22,2016 4922283

Guys Est. 1986 I'ma | Renewed on April 12, 2022

Pizza Guy

Calzone Stuffed. March 22, 2022 6677469

Sealed. Delivered.

All required affidavits and renewals have been filed.

There are no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trials
and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of this or any state, or any court, and there is no
pending infringement, interference, opposition or cancellation proceeding or any pending material
litigation involving our use of the “Pizza Guys®” trade name, trademark or service mark. There are
no agreements currently in effect which significantly limit the right of us to use or license the use of
the “Pizza Guys®” trademark or service mark in a manner material to this franchise.

We are aware of a business using the name “The Pizza Guy” in Dallas, Texas. While our use
of “Pizza Guys” trademark predates use of “The Pizza Guy” trademarks by this business, their use
may predate ours in the Dallas, Texas area. To the extent that we are the junior user in the Dallas,
Texas area, our use may constitute likelihood of confusion. Any restriction on our use of the Marks
in that area is, in our opinion, negligible impact on our overall operations and expansion potential.
We are currently taking steps to resolve this issue.
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You must follow our rules when you use our marks. You shall not use the words "PIZZA
GUYS," “PIZZA GUYS THE BETTER GUYS” "GUYS," "GUY," "MEN," "MAN," "SUPERB,"
“PIZZA GUYS REAL PIZZA REAL VALUE,” “PIZZA GUYS A PARTY IN EVERY PIZZA)”
“I'M A PIZZA GUY,” ARTISAN MADE PIZZA GUYS EST. 1986 I'M A PIZZA GUY” or any
formative thereof or any other trade name, trademark, service mark or logo now or later designated
by us or any mark confusingly similar thereto or attempt to register the same with any local
government, state, or nation.

You are not allowed to have a web domain that includes the “Pizza Guys” name in it.

Because of the potentially great expense of prosecuting or defending the marks, we reserve
the absolute right to choose whether or not to prosecute or defend the marks or to change the marks
to one or more other marks of our choosing. A name change would entail substantial expense to you
including, but not limited to, that occasioned by the change of signage and advertising and the
resulting loss of customer goodwill. A name change will in no way reduce or relieve you of your
obligation to pay the Weekly Franchise Fee, the store premises lease, and any other obligation owed
to us, our affiliates or representatives, or any obligation to trade vendors, the landlord for the store,
etc. Accordingly, our license of the marks to you shall not constitute our warranty or guarantee of our
ownership of the marks or our duty to defend the same.

Yourelease and indemnify us from and against any claim, obligation, loss, liability or damage
caused you by our lack of ownership or failure to prosecute or defend or to obtain registration of the
marks or by a mark change, if any.

You are required to notify us of the use of; or claims of rights to, a trade name, service mark,
trademark or logo identical to, or confusingly similar to, a trade name, service mark, trademark or
logo licensed by us to you.

We are required to participate in your defense, but not to indemnify you for expenses or

damages, if you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trade name, service
mark, trademark or logo licensed by us to you.

ITEM 14. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not own any right in, or licenses to, any patents or copyrights which is material to the
franchise.

You acknowledge that the customer list which you develop and our franchise system in its
entirety, including, but not limited to: recipes; food and beverage specifications and sources; site
selection criteria; store design and decor specifications; construction methods; fixtures, furnishings
and equipment; employee selection, training, and evaluation; print, radio, television and other
advertising and promotional techniques; inventory, accounting and other business policies and
procedures; all of which will continue to develop and all other information now or hereafter conveyed
in whatever form to you by us, our affiliates or representatives; constitutes our confidential trade
secrets and/or unpublished or published copyrights and the same is for your use solely for the purpose
of enabling you to establish and operate your store in accordance with the terms of this franchise.
Accordingly, except in accordance with the terms of this franchise, without our prior written consent
you shall not: (a) appropriate or use any of the foregoing in whole or in part; (b) disclose any of the
foregoing in whole or in part to anyone except to another Pizza Guys® franchisee or to store
employees as required for store operations; or (c) duplicate, reprint or otherwise copy any of the
foregoing in whole or in part for any purpose except as is required for store operations. The Store
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Operations Manual is described in Item 11.

The Store Operations Manual is copyrighted and the information therein is proprietary. Item
11 of this Disclosure Document describes limitations on the use of the Store Operations Manual by
you and your employees. You agree not to contest our use or ownership of the copyright or proprietary
information. You must also promptly notify us when you learn about unauthorized use of this
proprietary information. We are not obligated to take any action but will respond to this information
as we deem appropriate. If you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a
copyright or proprietary information, we are required to participate in your defense, but not to
indemnify you for expenses or damages.

Online ordering and text message ordering are owned by Pizza Guys and you are not allowed
to have a link on any personal website or other website other than the Pizza Guys’ website to the
online ordering unless consented to by franchisor

Just as you desire to learn from us, we hope to learn from you and to share what we have
learned from you with our other stores. Accordingly, you shall promptly disclose to us all ideas,
improvements and materials (including but not limited to menu and recipe suggestions, advertising
artwork and promotional materials), whether patentable, copyrightable or not, relating to the goods
and services provided at, or the operation of; your store which you or any of your legal or' beneficial
owners, partners, shareholders, officers, directors, agents, or employees, solely or jointly with others,
develop during the franchise term and any renewal/extension term. You hereby irrevocably assign the
exclusive right to the same to us in perpetuity and you specifically grant us permission to license you
and our other stores to use those ideas, improvements and materials of yours which we approve. You
agree that we owe you no other consideration for your development, assignment and our use of the
same but for the license back of the same to you.

ITEM 15. OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You will be engaged in your own business and, as such, you will be solely responsible for
directing the day-to-day activities of your store and supervising the actual physical activities of your
employees. The Franchise Agreement requires you to do the things described below.

You must locate and propose to us premises suitable for use as your Pizza Guys® store in the
general area described in Franchise Agreement, section 1.02, but you must not enter into any
negotiations with the lessor of the proposed premises.

You must comply with all terms of the Franchise Agreement, the Store Operations Manual,
and the store premises lease.

Each of your legal and beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers and directors must
personally guarantee the Franchise Agreement and the store premises lease, if applicable.

You must bear the entire cost of adapting our general plans and specifications to the particular
circumstances of the store premises including, but not limited to, the employment of an architect,
engineer or other consultants as necessary. However, you must not contract for, or commence the
construction of; the store without first obtaining our written approval of all plans and specifications
as adapted.

You must bear the entire cost of improving the store premises including, but not limited to,
payment of all material and service providers and government fees. All contracts with service or
material providers must be made between you and the applicable service or material provider. The
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collection of any credit or payment offered by the master lessor for improvement of the store premises
(e.g., "tenant allowance," etc.) is your sole responsibility, and you release, indemnify and agree to
defend us from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, the same.

You or your manager must personally attend the Initial Training Program and you must not
open for business until you or your manager have successfully completed Phase I of our Initial
Training Program. You or your manager are responsible for training your employees. If you want
your employees/managers trained by us, we will do so for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging
plus $250 per day. Each employee must be certified for each position they provide services for.

You must comply with our advertising policies as revised from time to time and must attend
all advertising meetings. When two or more franchised businesses have been established in a
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), we may establish an advertising cooperative in that area. Ifan
advertising cooperative has been established in your territory, you are required to participate in the
cooperative advertising group. If the group approves by majority an advertising program you must
pay for your share of the expense. See Franchise Agreement, Article 5. Although we may not have
an advertising cooperative in your area, we may, from time to time, require that you join a specific
advertising campaign and we will electronically withdrawal money from your account for the
campaign. (Franchise Agreement, Article 5, and Exhibit 5.)

You or an approved operator are required to attend all mandatory quarterly franchise and
advertising meetings. Your failure to attend a mandatory meeting on the first instance will result in
an oral warning, the second instance will result in a written warning, and the third instance will be
grounds for termination of the Franchise Agreement. See Franchise Agreement, Articles 4 and 11.

You must represent and warrant that you: (1) do now and will, for the duration of the
Franchise Agreement, live in the locality of the store; (2) shall personally manage and shall personally
devote your full-time best efforts to the day-to-day operations of the store; (3) do now own, and for
the duration of the Franchise Agreement shall continue to own, the entire equity interest in the
Franchise Agreement, in the business of the store and in its profits, except only as otherwise permitted
pursuant to the terms of the Franchise Agreement; and (4) do not have any undisclosed partnerships
and any undisclosed partnerships or other agreement to share profits is void ab initio. See Franchise
Agreement, section 4.01(f).

You must understand that the success of the business venture contemplated to be undertaken
pursuant to the Franchise Agreement depends primarily upon your ability to succeed as an
independent business person and you acknowledge and agree that neither us nor any of our agents or
representatives have made any oral, written or visual representations of projections of actual or
potential sales, earnings, or net or gross profits. You must also understand that our sale of the franchise
to you or our approval of the store location and premises does not guarantee success of your store.
We cannot, and do not, guarantee that you will succeed in the operation of this business venture. In
fact, you must understand that the store may lose money or fail.

ITEM 16. RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

The Franchise Agreement requires you to sell and deliver the limited menu of foods,
beverages and merchandise approved by us from time to time and to sell and deliver only those items.
The Franchise Agreement also requires all Franchisees to sell and accept Pizza Guys gift cards. The
monthly fee will be deducted electronically by Pizza Guys at the first of the month. There are no
restrictions on the customers to whom you may sell. Menus may vary from region to region. See
Franchise Agreement, section 4.01(b).
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ITEM 17.

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

The following table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related
agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure

Document.

Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

a. Length of the franchise term

12.01

10 years for Franchise Agreement

b. Renewal or extension of the
term

12.02

If you are in good standing, you may renew or
extend the term for unlimited successive terms
equal to the original term of your Franchise
Agreement

c. Requirements for franchisee to
renew or extend

12.02
2.06

and

You must give us timely written notice, pay
Renewal/Extension Fee, remodel the store to
our standards, if we require, sign release and
sign new Franchise Agreement and related
documents, which may contain materially
different terms and conditions than in your
original Franchise Agreement. As a further
condition of renewal (or extension), if we
deem your store is in an unsafe location, we
may require you to relocate your store within
your Exclusive Area to a location pre-
approved by us in accordance with Article 2 of
the Franchise Agreement. You shall bear the
entire cost of relocating your store. Note: You
must pay us the Renewal/Extension Fee and
remodel the store only if you have a Franchise
Agreement.

d. Termination by franchisee

Not
Applicable

You may not terminate the franchise prior to
the expiration of the term of the franchise

e.  Termination by franchisor
without cause

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

11.01,
11.02,10.01
and 10.02

The franchise agreement permits us to
terminate it for cause during the term and
before expiration.

f. Termination by franchisor with
cause

g, “Cause” defined - curable
defaults

11.01, 10.01
and 10.02

“Good Cause” means “failure to comply with
any lawful requirement of the franchise”
which includes any failure to comply with any
provision of the Franchise Agreement, Store
Operations Manual. Except as described in
Item 17.h., below, you have a reasonable
opportunity after notice (which in no event
need be more than 60 days) to cure the failure.

h. “Cause’defined - non-curable
defaults

11.02,10.01
and 10.02

You or the store is declared bankrupt or
judicially determined to be insolvent, or all or
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a substantial part of the assets thereof are
assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor,
or you admit your inability to pay your debts
as they come due; you abandon the franchise
by failing to operate the business for 5
consecutive days during which you are
required to operate the business under the
Franchise Agreement, or any shorter period
after which it is not unreasonable under the
facts and circumstances for us to conclude that
you do not intend to continue to operate the
franchise, unless such a failure to operate is
due to fire, flood, earthquake or other similar
causes beyond your control; us and you agree
in writing to terminate the franchise; you
make any material misrepresentation relating
to the acquisition of the franchised business or
you and/or an employee of yours engage in
conduct which reflects materially and
unfavorably upon the operation and reputation
of the store of the Pizza Guys® store chain;
you fail, for a period of 10 days after
notification of noncompliance, to comply with
any federal, state or local law or regulation
applicable to the operation of the franchise;
after curing any failure in accordance with
Franchise Agreement, section 11.01, you
engage in the same noncompliance whether or
not such noncompliance is corrected alter
notice; you repeatedly fail to comply with one
or more requirements of the Franchise
Agreement, whether or not corrected after
notice; the store or the store premises are
seized, taken over or foreclosed by a
government official in the exercise of his
duties, or seized, taken over, or foreclosed by
a creditor, lienholder or lessor, provided that a
final judgment against you remains unsatisfied
for 30 days (unless a supersedes or other
appeal bond has been filed); or a levy of
execution has been made upon the license
granted by the Franchise Agreement or upon
any property used in the franchised business,
and it is not discharged within 5 days of such
levy; you are convicted of a felony or any other
criminal misconduct which is relevant to the
operation of the franchise; you fail to pay any
franchise fee or other amount due to us or our
representatives within 5 days after receiving
written notice that such fees are overdue; If we
find that you purposely reported incorrect
sales; You fail to permit us, our
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representatives, accountants, attorneys and
other agents to inspect and audit, without
notice, during regular business hours your
books and records. Or, an inspection or audit
discloses that actual Gross Sales exceed your
reported Gross Sales, and you fail to pay us:
(a) the additional amount owed, (b) interest on
said amount from the date originally due until
paid, and (c) if actual Gross Sales exceed your
reported Gross Sales by 2% or more, the cost
of the inspections and audits which revealed
the under-reported sales including, but not
limited to, our agents' fees, travel, meals and
lodging; or, we make a reasonable
determination that your continued operation of
the franchise will result in an imminent danger
to public health or safety.

1. Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

13.01

Pay us all moneys due; return the Store
Operations Manual and all other materials
furnished to you, together with any other
materials containing any of our trade names,
service marks, trademarks or other indicia, any
formative thereof or any name or mark
potentially confusingly similar thereto, any of
our trade secrets or copyrights; and any idea,
improvement or discovery; Not thereafter use
our trade names, service marks, trademarks
and other indicia or any signs and printed
goods bearing such names and marks or any
other trade name, service mark, trademark or
other indicia similar to or likely to be confused
with those of us; not thereafter use any part of
the franchise system; and not thereafter
disclose, reveal or publish to any person any
part of the franchise system; and not disclose,
reveal or publish to any person any part of the
franchise system; and honor your post-
termination covenant not to compete for a term
of 5 years within 10-mile radius of a Pizza
Guys store.

J. Assignment of contract by
franchisor

14.04

We may assign without restriction and shall
thereafter be deemed released from all
liability.

k.  “Transfer” by franchisee -
defined

14.01-14.03

A '"transfer" includes any sale, transfer,
assignment or other hypothecation (such as
mortgaging or pledging as security or
collateral for a debt) in whole or in part'
directly or indirectly whether voluntarily or by
operation of law of any interest in the
franchised business, the Franchise Agreement,
the store or the store's assets (except for sales
in the usual course of business) and any

30




interest of any of the restaurant's legal or
beneficial owners, partners, shareholders,
officers or directors or persons signing the
Franchise Agreement

. Franchisor approval of transfer
by franchisee

14.01

You may request to transfer. We have the
right to approve or deny your request to
transfer in our sole and absolute discretion.
You may transfer upon death subject to the
requirements set forth in the Franchise
Agreement.

m. Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

14.01

The process of transferring a Pizza Guys®
store is governed by the Franchise Agreement
which provides that you may not transfer all or
part of the store (or any interest in any
corporation or partnership which owns or
operates the store) without following the
procedure which is set forth in the Franchise
Agreement.

n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal
to acquire franchisee’s business

13.01(c) and
14.01

We may purchase any interest sought to be
transferred on the terms proposed. We have
the option for thirty (30) days to purchase
your store's equipment, furnishings, fixtures,
signs, inventory, leasehold or building and real
estate, and improvements and other real or
personal property or any portion thereof for a
sum equal to the fair market value of such
property. There shall be no payment by us for
intangible assets including, but not limited to,
goodwill.

0. Franchisor’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

14.01

Upon expiration or termination of the
franchise, we have the option for 30 days to
purchase your equipment, furnishings,
fixtures, signs, inventory, leasehold and
improvements and other property or any
portion thereof for a sum equal to the fair
market value of such property. We are not
required to pay you for your intangible assets
including, but not limited to, goodwill. Upon
the death (or the death of the majority partner
or shareholder of a partnership or corporate
franchisee), we have the option to purchase the
franchised business, if: within the period set
forth in the Franchise Agreement, the
surviving spouse, heirs, or the representative
fail to take and pass the Initial Training
Program or to otherwise qualify as a
franchisee. An independent appraisal of the
franchise assets in order to determine fair
market value for repurchase purposes is not
required by the Franchise Agreement.

p- Death or
franchisee

disability of

14.01(a)(b)

For not more than 120 days after the death of
you (or the death of the majority partner or
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shareholder of a partnership or corporate
franchisee), the surviving spouse, heirs, or
representative of the estate of the deceased
may participate in the ownership of the of the
franchise under the terms of the Franchise
Agreement. Then they must either take and
pass the Initial Training Program and satisfy
all of our then current qualifications and
requirements for new franchises or sell the
franchise pursuant to a request to transfer to a
person who satisfies our qualifications. See
Item 17. m., above.

If you become disabled and are not able to
operate the store, you may have a
representative participate in the operation and
ownership of the franchise under the terms of
the Agreement for a reasonable time, not to
exceed 120 days, after the disability occurs.
During that time the store must be operated by
a person approved by us.

g- Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

During the franchise term and any
renewal/extension term and for five (5) years
following the transfer, expiration or
termination of the franchise, you and your
legal and beneficial owners, partners,
shareholders, officers and directors shall not,
without our prior written consent, directly or
indirectly, engage in, acquire any financial or
beneficial interest in (including interests in
corporations, partnerships or trusts, limited
liability companies, unincorporated
associations and joint ventures), or become an
employee of or a consultant to, or lessor for,
any company which is similar to a Pizza Guys
store or which prepares, serves or sells pizza
within a 10-mile radius. Ownership of less
than 2% of the shares of a company with
shares listed and traded on a national or
regional securities exchange shall not be
deemed to violate these covenants not to
compete so long as neither you nor any of your
legal or beneficial owners, partners,
shareholders, officers or directors are
employed in any capacity by such company.

r.  Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

During the franchise term and any
renewal/extension term and for five (5) years
following the transfer, expiration or
termination of the franchise, you and your
legal and beneficial owners, partners,
shareholders, officers and directors shall not,
without our prior written consent, directly or
indirectly, engage in, acquire any financial or
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beneficial interest in (including interests in
corporations, partnerships or trusts, limited
liability companies, unincorporated
associations and joint ventures), or become an
employee of or a consultant to, or lessor for,
any company which is similar to a Pizza Guys
store or which prepares, serves or sells pizza
within a 10-mile radius. Ownership of less
than 2% of the shares of a company with
shares listed and traded on a national or
regional securities exchange shall not be
deemed to violate these covenants not to
compete so long as neither you nor any of your
legal or beneficial owners, partners,
shareholders, officers or directors are
employed in any capacity by such company.

No modification may be made unless in
writing signed by us and you, except we may
unilaterally modify the Pizza Guys® menu,
recipes, marks, methods, procedures, and the
Store Operations Manual as we deem
advisable, all of which you acknowledge that
we have developed and own and will continue
to develop and own.

The terms of the Store Operations Manual, as
revised from time to time, are incorporated by
reference into the Franchise Agreement and
are binding (subject to state law). Any other
promises may not be enforceable.

Except as specifically limited below, any
dispute between you and us regarding this
Agreement and all matters relating to the
validity, construction, performance and
enforcement hereof shall be heard by a referee
pursuant to the provisions of California Code
of Civil Procedure §§638 through 645.1.

Subject to state law, any dispute shall be heard
in Sacramento, California. The forum for any
legal action (including litigation regarding the
scope of the referee’s jurisdiction) shall be the
proper court of the state of California in the
County of Sacramento or in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of
California, Sacramento Branch

California law will govern (subject to state
law).

s. Modification of the agreement | 15.09

t. Integration/merger clause 15.08

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration | 15.05

or mediation

v. Choice of forum 15.05

w. Choice of law 15.05

Provision Section in
Multi-Unit
Development

Agreement

a. Length of the franchise term | 4.1

| Upon execution of the last Franchise |

33



Agreement pursuant to the Development
Schedule

b. Renewal or extension of the
term

43

No right to renew.

c. Requirements for franchisee to
renew or extend

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

d. Termination by franchisee

Not
Applicable

The Agreement does not provide for this. But
you may seek to terminate on any grounds
available to you at law.

e. Termination by franchisor
without cause

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

f. Termination by franchisor with
cause

14.1, 14.2 and
14.3

We can terminate if you default.

g. “Cause” defined - curable
defaults

14.3

Except for defaults described in h below, you
have 15-days to cure any default under the
MUDA.

h. “Cause” defined - non-curable
defaults

14.1 and 14.2

Non-curable defaults include, but are not
limited to: general assignment for benefit of
creditors, bankruptcy, appointment of a
receiver, dissolution, levy/execution on
assets; failure to meet Development
Schedule; omission or misrepresentation of
material fact; upon mutual agreement by the
parties; plea to or conviction of a felony;
unauthorized transfer; any involvement with
a competitive business; unauthorized use of
confidential information; failure to obtain
executed Confidentiality/ Noncompetition
Agreement; fail to obtain our prior approval,
as required; unauthorized duplication of
Confidential Information; cease to operate all
Franchised Businesses; engage in business
under marks confusingly similar to
Proprietary Marks; open a Franchised
Business prior to executing a franchise
agreement and paying the initial franchise fee;
or engage in conduct that reflects materially
and unfavorable upon our reputation, the
System or the Franchised Business.

1. Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

15.1

You must pay all money owing to us or our
affiliates, and third parties; pay all expenses,
including attorney’s and expert’s fees, if we
terminate for cause; sign all agreements
necessary for termination; comply with the
post-termination/ post-expiration covenants
not to compete; and continue to abide by
restrictions on the use of our Confidential
Information.

Termination of the Multi-Unit Development
Agreement for your failure to comply with the
Development Schedule will not terminate any
of the Franchise Agreements you already
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signed with us, so long as you have opened
the Franchised Business covered by the
signed Franchise Agreements and you are not
in default of the Franchise Agreements.

J. Assignment of contract by
franchisor

11.1

We may assign without restriction and shall
thereafter be deemed released from all
liability.

k. “Transfer” by franchisee -
defined

11.2

Includes any assignment or transfer of your
rights and obligations under the MUDA, the
Franchised Business, or any interest in the
Franchised Business or a Business Entity
Franchisee (including any capital stock,
membership, partnership or proprietary
interest of you or anyone who controls you).

1. Franchisor approval of transfer
by franchisee

11.2,11.3 and
11.4

No transfer without our consent.

m. Conditions for franchisor
approval of transfer

11.2

Conditions for transfer include not being in
default, at least 25% of all Franchised
Businesses required to be developed are open
or under construction, all debts are paid, the
transferee meets our current criteria for new
Multi-Unit Operators and executes our then-
current MUDA, you sign a general release
(where legal), payment of transfer fee, buyer
personally guarantees all obligations.

n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal
to acquire franchisee’s business

11.5

We have the right to match the offer to
purchase your business.

0. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s business

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

p- Death or disability of
franchisee

11.4

On the death or disability of your last
surviving owner, the rights of such deceased
or disabled person shall pass to his or her
“Estate”. The Estate must transfer said
interests to an approved party within 3 months
of the date an executor, administrator or
personal representative is appointed to the
Estate.

g. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

10.2.1

No diversion of any business to any
competitor and no interest in any competing
business anywhere.

r.  Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

10.2.2

No involvement in competing business for 5
years within your Development Area, within
a 10 mile radius of the perimeter of your
Development Area or within a 10 mile radius
of the perimeter of (or within) any Pizza Guys
business (whether company-owned,
franchised or otherwise established and
operated). No diversion of business to any
competitor and no employment of any current
employee or any former employee that
worked within the last 90 days.

s. Modification of the agreement

17.5

No modifications except, in writing, by
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mutual agreement of the parties.

t. Integration/merger clause 17.5 Only written terms of MUDA are binding
(subject to state law). Any other promises
may not be enforceable, except that the
MUDA does not disclaim any representations
made in this disclosure document.

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration | 17.14 Except for certain claims, all disputes must be
or mediation litigated within the county of Sacramento in
the State of California (subject to state law)
v. Choice of forum 17.14 and | Litigation must be brought in Sacramento,
12.3 California.
w. Choice of law 17.13 California law will govern (subject to state
law).

ITEM 18. PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document.
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if (1)
a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying, or (2) a
franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

On December 31, 2022, there were 74 Pizza Guys Stores open and in continuous operation
during the entire calendar year ending December 31, 2022. Of those 74 Pizza Guys Stores, 68 are
franchisee owned, two were subleased from affiliate owned Stores, and 6 are affiliate owned Stores.
The analysis below is based solely on the yearly gross sales for those 74 Pizza Guys Stores for 2022.

The following tables refer to "Gross Sales." "Gross Sales" means all revenue received from
operating a Pizza Guys Store, excluding sales tax, discounts, allowances, and returns.
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Table 1

Franchised Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year

The following Table provides System-wide (Affiliate-owned and Franchisee-owned) Stores
average, highest, lowest, and median Gross Sales for the 74 Pizza Guys Stores operating for the entire
calendar year ending December 31, 2022.

System-Wide Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year
# Stores! 74
2022 Average Gross Sales $1,079,461.47
Highest Gross Sales $1,779,753.71
Lowest Gross Sales $543,595.65
Median Gross Sales $1,088,166.12
# of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 37
% of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 50%
In Store Ticket Average $33.00
Online Ordering Ticket Average $38.00
% of Online Ordering 44.70%
Table 2

Affiliate Owned? Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year

The following Table provides Affiliate Owned Stores average, highest, lowest, and median
Gross Sales for the 6 Pizza Guys Stores operating for the entire calendar year ending December 31,
2022.

Affiliate Owned Gross Sales

Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year
# Stores® 6
2022 Average Gross Sales $1,269,924 .45
Highest Gross Sales $1,460,718.15
Lowest Gross Sales $1,045,305.70
Median Gross Sales $1,248,879.49
# of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 3
% of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 50%

Two Affiliate Owned Stores which are subleased are included in this Table
Affiliate Owned stores are owned and operated by our affiliate, RSM, Inc.
Two Affiliate Owned stores are subleased and excluded from this Table
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Table 3

Franchisee Owned Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year

The following Table provides Franchisee Owned Stores average, highest, lowest, and median
Gross Sales for the 68 Pizza Guys Stores operating for the entire calendar year ending December 31,
2022.

Franchisee Owned Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year
# Stores 68
2022 Average Gross Sales $1,062,655.91
Highest Gross Sales $1,779,753.71
Lowest Gross Sales $543,595.65
Median Gross Sales $1,038,978.30
# of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 34
% of Stores Exceeding Median Gross Sales 50%
Table 4

Range of Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2021 Calendar Year

The following table shows the ranges of Gross Sales for the 74 System-wide (Affiliate-owned
and Franchisee-owned) Pizza Guys Stores operating for the entire calendar year ending December
31,2022.

Range of Gross Sales
Stores Operating for the Entire 2022 Calendar Year
Range of Gross Sales for 2022 # Stores within Range of | % Stores within Range of
Gross Sales Gross Sales

Greater than $1,200,000 24 32%
$1,000,000 to $1,200,000 18 24%
$800,000 to $1,000,000 16 22%
$600,000 to $800,000 15 20%
Below $600,000 1 1%

Total 74 100%

General Notes

Written substantiation for the financial performance representations will be made available to you on
reasonable request. This analysis is intended to be used as a reference when you conduct due diligence
before signing our Franchise Agreement. We recommend that you make your own independent
investigation to determine whether or not Pizza Guys franchise may be profitable, and that you consult
with legal, accounting and other business advisors before signing our Franchise Agreement. No
certified public accountant has audited these figures or expressed his or her opinion with regard to the
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content or form.

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance you'll earn as much.

The data is based on reports submitted by the franchisees or our polling of the information directly
from the franchisees’ point-of-sale systems. Neither we nor our affiliates have undertaken an
independent investigation to verify the Gross Sales reported by franchisees. The information
presented is based on Pizza Guys’ internal financial data, the unaudited financial data and records of
Pizza Guys’ affiliate(s), and self-reported and unaudited and unverified records of Pizza Guys’
franchisees. All of the stores used in this item 19 offer substantially the same products and services
to their customers.

These financial performance representations do not include information concerning net profits that
may be realized in the operation of a Pizza Guys Store.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, Pizza Guys does not make any
financial performance representations. Pizza Guys also does not authorize its employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, Pizza Guys may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you
receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should
report it to the franchisor's management by contacting Shahpour Nejad, 2731 Citrus Road, Suite A,
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742, (916) 852-2222, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate
state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20. OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 2019 to 2021
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start of Outlets at the Net Change
the Year End of the Year
Franchised' 2020 61 63 +2
2021 63 67 +4
2022 67 75 +8
Company- 2020 8 8 0
Owned? 2021 8 7 -1
2022 7 6 -1
Total Outlets 2020 69 71 +2
2021 71 74 +4
2022 74 81 0
1) Stores which are either owned and operated by our franchisees or are owned by our

franchisees and are subleased to others and are operated by the sublessee or are owned by RSM, Inc.
and are operated by sublessees have been included in this table as franchised stores. Stores owned
and operated by RSM, Inc., our affiliate, are included in this table as "Company Owned”.

2) We have never opened and in the next fiscal year do not intend to open "company owned"
Stores. The stores reflected in the "company owned" column above are actually owned and operated
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by RSM, Inc., our affiliate. Stores owned by RSM, Inc., our affiliate, but are either owned and
operated by our franchisees or are owned by our franchisees and are subleased to others and are
operated by the sublessee or are owned by RSM, Inc. and are operated by sublessees are included in
this table as "Franchised”.

Table No. 2
Transfers of OQutlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For years 2019 to 2021
State Year Number of Transfers
California 2020 0
2021 2
2022 0
2020 0
Total 2021 0
2022 0
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2019 to 2021
State Year | Outlets | Outlets | Termina | Non- Reacquired | Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened | -tions Renewals | by Operations | at End of
of Year Franchisor | Other the Year
Reasons
California 2020 |56 2 0 0 0 0 58
2021 |58 4 0 0 0 0 62
2022 | 62 8 0 0 0 0 75
Nevada 2020 |3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2021 |3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 |3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Oregon 2020 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2021 |2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2022 |2 0 0 0 0 0 2
TOTALS 2020 |61 2 0 0 0 0 61
2021 |63 4 0 0 0 0 63
2022 | 67 8 0 0 0 0 75
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Status of Company-Owned Outlets

Table No. 4

For Years 2019 to 2021
State Year Outlets at | Outlets | Outlets Outlets | Outlets Sold | Outlets
Start of Opened | Reacquired Closed |to at End
Year from Franchisee | of the
Franchisee Year
2021 8 0 0 0 1 7
2022 7 0 0 0 1 6
TOTALS 2020 8 0 0 0 0 8
2021 8 0 0 0 1 7
2022 7 0 0 0 1 6
Table No. 5
Projected New Franchised Outlets as of December 31, 2022
State Franchise Agreements | Projected New Projected New
Signed But Outlet Not | Franchised Outlet in Company-Owned Outlet
Opened the Next Fiscal Year in the Next Fiscal Year
California 0 10 0
TOTALS 0 10 0

The name, last known address and telephone number of each franchisee under a Franchise Agreement
whose franchise has, within the twelve-month period immediately preceding the effective date of this
Disclosure Document ceased to do business pursuant to the Franchise Agreement as a result of
termination, cancellation non-renewal or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased doing business
or who has not communicated with the franchisor within 10 weeks of the Disclosure Document
issuance date is:

Store Address State Phone

City

Owned and Operated by:

121 HARTZ AVE

#125 DANVILLE CA 925-837-3500

Pizza Guys #179

KIAAN CORPORATION

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave
the franchise system.

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak
openly about their experience with Pizza Guys. You may wish to speak with current and former
franchisees but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all 75 existing Pizza Guys® stores which are either
owned and operated by our franchisees or are owned by our franchisees and are subleased to others
and are operated by the sublessee or are owned by RSM, Inc. and are operated by sublessees, are set
forth below:

Store Address City State Phone Owned and Operated by:
Pizza Guys #135 1100 Sycamore Dr Antioch CA 925-755-1111 SDHANIJU, INC
Pizza Guys #185 18975 Bear Valley Rd | Apple Valley CA 760-493-9333 SUZYANA SALLEH
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263 Bellevue Road
Pizza Guys #189 Suite #1 Atwater CA 209-741-8222 TANMAY, INC
5601 California Ave AR CALIFORNIA
Pizza Guys #198 #500 Bakersfield CA 661-308-1222 PIZZA INC
Pizza Guys #193 1109 University Ave Berkeley CA 510-529-7555 ANS PIZZA INC
8610 Brentwood Blvd
Pizza Guys #155 #H Brentwood CA 925-634-1414 SAUMAN, INC
6271 Lone Tree Way
Pizza Guys #162 #F Brentwood CA 925-626-3888 JARLSLE INC
3317 Coach Lane, Ste PIZZA GUYS GROUP,
Pizza Guys #152 300 Cameron Park | CA 530-672-1313 INC
Pizza Guys #195 9849 Mason Ave Chatsworth CA 818-721-8555 MAHFAR FOODS INC
Pizza Guys #149 2471 Cohasset Rd Chico CA 530-894-8888 NEKI, INC
7340 Greenback Lane,
Pizza Guys #138 Ste 2 Citrus Heights | CA 916-726-6666 PG2003, INC
Pizza Guys #141 1919 Salvio St Concord CA 925-682-9999 RIYA LUTHRA, INC
540 Hidden Valley
Pizza Guys #190 Pkwy, Ste 103 Corona CA 951-460-1444 MSA PIZZERIA INC
Pizza Guys #111 505 L St Davis CA 530-758-8888 DSC, INC
Pizza Guys #137 1455 Ary Lane Dixon CA 707-693-6666 CASTRAFT, INC
9170 Elk Grove Florin
Pizza Guys #154 Rd #A Elk Grove CA 916-685-7777 PG2003, INC
KANDA ENTERPRISES
Pizza Guys #124 1914 N Texas St Fairfield CA 707-425-6666 INC
612 E Bidwell Rd, Ste
Pizza Guys #109 Bl Folsom CA 916-984-6666 HADI ASADISARAVI
Pizza Guys #140 3691 Thornton Ave Fremont CA 510-857-9444 HAFEEZ, INC
Pizza Guys #165 640 Carol Dr #104 Galt CA 209-744-5555 DAVIS TRAN
Pizza Guys #181 24456 Mission Blvd Hayward CA 510-886-5100 SAI BABA KIRPA, INC
3950 N Tenaya Wy Ste
Pizza Guys #187 150 Las Vegas NV 702-395-5244 SANTELER LLC
Pizza Guys #156 745 S Hwy 65, Ste F Lincoln CA 916-543-9999 NEKI, INC
Pizza Guys #151 1545 N Vasco Rd Livermore CA 925-371-5555 JKTN, INC
Pizza Guys #122 914 W Lodi Ave Lodi CA 209-368-6666 JPPSSR, INC
Pizza Guys #186 325 W Olive Ave Madera CA 559-330-2111 TANMAY, INC
Pizza Guys #119 520 E Yosemite Ave Manteca CA 209-239-5555 L&O, INC
Pizza Guys #147 201 D St, Ste B Marysville CA 530-741-1110 NEKI, INC
SUKHBIR KAUR
Pizza Guys #144 2800 G St Merced CA 209-726-8888 HOTHI GEN PTR
3440 Mchenry Ave. D-
Pizza Guys #129 10 Modesto CA 209-525-8888 PG 2000, INC
1421 Crows Landing
Pizza Guys #143 Rd Modesto CA 209-491-2222 PG2000, INC
801 Oakdale Rd, Ste
Pizza Guys #159 A-2 Modesto CA 209-523-2222 PG2000, INC
Pizza Guys #172 3000 Jefferson St Napa CA 707-251-5555 TASTE FACTORY INC
701 Sonoma Mountain
Pizza Guys #182 Pkwy, Ste Petaluma CA 707-778-2222 JAI SATGURU INC
Pizza Guys #126 4001 Railroad Ave Pittsburg CA 925-252-9999 JMPG, INC
4370 Golden Circle Dr
Pizza Guys #160 #E Placerville CA 530-626-8888 JLB Inc.
4000 Pimlico Dr Ste
Pizza Guys #170 110 Pleasanton CA 925-227-1111 KIM BANG INC
1270 W Henderson BOUNDOM
Pizza Guys #146 Ave, Ste B Porterville CA 559-781-7777 PHAKOUSONH
Pizza Guys #104 2351 Vehicle Dr, Ste D | Rancho CA 916-852-6666 HBHM, INC
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Cordova

8710 19th St, Suite Rancho

Pizza Guys #184 100 Cucamonga CA 909-381-4747 FARAH IKBAL

Rancho

Pizza Guys #194 12809 Foothill Blvd Cucamonga CA 909-563-3111 VSS GUYS PIZZA INC
2110 Eureka Way, TASTE LIKE HOME,

Pizza Guys #197 Suite A Redding CA 530-782-5888 LLC

Pizza Guys #125 4920 Pacific St, Ste A | Rocklin CA 916-630-5533 NEKI, INC
7451 Foothills Blvd,

Pizza Guys #113 Ste 120 Roseville CA 916-773-5555 DEREK TYLER 2, INC
1310 Fulton Ave, Ste

Pizza Guys #101 A Sacramento CA 916-483-4444 H&A INC

Pizza Guys #103 6900 65th St, Suite 5 Sacramento CA 916-422-2222 PIZZA GUYS 65TH, INC

Pizza Guys #110 8399 Folsom Blvd Sacramento CA 916-388-1111 H&A INC
5764 Antelope Rd, Ste

Pizza Guys #114 B4 Sacramento CA 916-723-6666 SLAVCO, INC
796 El Camino Real

Pizza Guys #201 Suite E San Carlos CA 650-832-7222 HOANGHUAN INC.

Pizza Guys #204 1975 Garnet Ave Ste B | San Diego CA 858-988-4888 BEHZADCO
1347 S Winchester

Pizza Guys #139 Blvd San Jose CA 408-871-3333 CATLEY, INC

Pizza Guys #192 4605 Cherry Ave San Jose CA 408-580-0444 NAV FOODS INC
15253 Hesperian Blvd,

Pizza Guys #116 Ste 2 San Leandro CA 510-481-5555 HAFEEZ, INC
501 A San Pablo SK & NL Food

Pizza Guys #176 Towne Center San Pablo CA 510-215-5555 Corporation
1998 Homestead Rd

Pizza Guys #183 #101 Santa Clara CA 669-213-1111 PPTN, INC
27667 Bouquet MANMEET

Pizza Guys #188 Canyon Rd Santa Clarita CA 661-621-2221 ENTERPRISES, INC

Santa Fe

Pizza Guys #199 12610 Leffingwell Rd | Springs CA 562-504-0400 DAYV PIZZA INC

Pizza Guys #142 1776 Piner Rd Santa Rosa CA 707-591-8888 PG 2008, INC
6709 Plymouth Rd, Ste

Pizza Guys #118 B Stockton CA 209-955-1111 SAUMAN, INC
1140 E Waterloo Rd,

Pizza Guys #123 Ste 4 Stockton CA 209-944-5555 SAUMAN, INC
7860 West Lane, Ste

Pizza Guys #191 B3 Stockton CA 209-490-5111 SAUMAN, INC

Pizza Guys #196 32389 Temecula Pkwy | Temecula CA 951-414-4111 EHM LLC

Pizza Guys #153 3007 N Tracy Blvd Tracy CA 209-839-1111 RUHTAAB PIZZA INC
511 N Golden State

Pizza Guys #133 Blvd Turlock CA 209-656-8888 JD BUSINESS INC
1110 Marshall Rd, Ste

Pizza Guys #117 E Vacaville CA 707-452-1200 G K ENTERPRISE INC
2255 Tennessee St, Ste

Pizza Guys #127 3 Vallejo CA 707-557-8888 CANH TRAN, INC
15370 Bear Valley Rd

Pizza Guys #174 #1 Victorville CA 760-843-1022 OMAR ZULKIFLI

Pizza Guys #167 1548 Newall Ave Walnut Creek CA 925-934-5555 RIYA LUTHRA, INC
6500 Hembree Lane

Pizza Guys #169 Ste 202 Windsor CA 707-836-9999 ALEMANPG2022, INC
1837 E Gibson Rd Ste

Pizza Guys #163 G Woodland CA 530-668-4444 DSC, INC

Pizza Guys #115 1000 Lincoln Rd, Ste F | Yuba City CA 530-822-9999 YC&VD, INC

Pizza Guys #180 775-787-6666 K&J BROTHERS CORP
1610 Robb Dr Ste D2 Reno NV
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3080 Vista Blvd, Ste

775-626-4444

XFINITY BLUE LINE
LLC

Pizza Guys #157 200 Sparks NV
Pizza Guys #177 64 Ne Division St Gresham OR 503-465-2929 TYQUEENCO, INC
Pizza Guys #178 1458 Ne 122nd Ave Portland OR 503-255-2222 TYQUEENCO, INC

Our affiliate, RSM, Inc., owns and operates 6 Pizza Guys® stores. The addresses of these
Pizza Guys® stores which are owned and operated by RSM, Inc., our affiliate, are set forth below.
We have treated them as "company owned" stores for purposes of the tables set forth above,
however, these stores are not technically "company owned" stores since they are not owned or
operated by us but are owned and operated by our affiliate, RSM, Inc. (Note: Information regarding
the franchise may be obtained from the franchisees listed above or from Shahpour Nejad, our
president, at our corporate headquarters at (916) 852-4126 and cannot be obtained from the stores

listed below.)
Store Address Phone Owned and Operated by:
Pizza Guys® #102 1620 W El Camino Ave (916) 925-4444 RSM, Inc. and sublease by
Ste 160 James Berry
Sacramento, CA 95833
Pizza Guys® #105 7600 Greenhaven Drive, (916) 429-1111 RSM, Inc.
Suite 2
Sacramento, CA 95831
Pizza Guys® #107 3675 J Street (916) 451-2222 RSM, Inc.
Sacramento, CA 95816
Pizza Guys® #108 9105 Bruceville Rd., Ste. 9 (916) 478-8888 RSM, Inc.
Elk Grove, CA 95758
Pizza Guys® #112 800 Harbor Boulevard (916) 372-2222 RSM, Inc.
West Sacramento, CA 95691
Pizza Guys® #161 2820 Del Paso Rd, (916) 419-6666 RSM, Inc.
Ste. 100
Sacramento, CA 95834

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organization associated with the franchise system
being offered. There are no franchisees that have been created, sponsored, or endorsed by us. There
are no franchisees incorporated or otherwise organized under state law that have asked us to be
included in our disclosure document during the next fiscal year.

ITEM 21.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited financial statements from January 1, 2023, through March 31, 2023 and
Audited Balance Sheet and the related Income Statement for the years ending December 31, 2022,
2021, and 2020 are attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

Our fiscal year end is December 31.

ITEM 22.

CONTRACTS

The following contracts for use in this state are attached hereto as exhibits:

Franchise Agreement
Multi-Unit Development Agreement
Preauthorized Bank Deduction Procedure
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Transfer Addendum 6

ITEM 23. RECEIPTS

You must acknowledge receipt of this franchise Disclosure Document by signing the receipt,
the last page hereto.
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Pizza Guyses FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
(WITH PERSONAL GUARANTEE)

This AGREEMENT is made this day of , 20 by and between
FRANCHISOR: and FRANCHISEE:
PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A (Name)
Rancho Cordova, California 95742
(916) 852-2222 (Address)
(City State
Zip Code)
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS (Telephone No. w/Area Code)

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. franchises others the right to serve our limited menu of foods
and beverages prepared according to our recipes, at one takeout and delivery only pizza store
operated under the Pizza Guys® trade name, trademark and other commercial symbols according
to our procedures, all of which we have developed and will continue to develop (referred to as the
“franchise” or the “franchise system” as the context requires). To simplify language in this
Agreement, “Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.” will generally be referred to as “us,” “we” or “our” (and
sometimes as “Franchisor”), and “you” and “your” (and sometimes “Franchisee”) will mean you,
a person to whom we grant a franchise.

You desire to engage in the takeout and delivery only pizza business in the jurisdiction in
which the store will be located. You have investigated the franchise system, the approved goods
and services, the demand for such goods, and the applicable laws in the jurisdiction in which your
store is to be located. You acknowledge our ownership of the franchise system and that the
information received by you from us and our representatives, is our creation, was expensive to
develop, is confidential and constitutes our trade secrets. You desire to operate a Pizza Guys®
store at the location specified herein using our marks, recipes, decor, marketing, methods and
procedures in compliance with our franchise system and to obtain the benefit of the reputation and
goodwill associated with our Pizza Guys® name.

You acknowledge and agree that neither we nor any of our affiliates , representatives,
agents or employees have made any oral, written or visual representation of actual or potential
sales, earnings, net or gross profits or other earnings claims. You also acknowledge that your
success depends primarily upon your personal efforts and abilities as an independent
businessperson and that our sale of a franchise to you does not guarantee success and that your
store to be operated under this Agreement may lose money or even fail.
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You acknowledge and are estopped to deny that you have received a copy of this
Agreement and the franchise offering circular with all exhibits attached at the first personal
meeting to discuss the franchise; or, at least fourteen business days before you (1) sign a binding
agreement with us, or (2) make a payment to Franchisor in connection with the proposed franchise
sale, whichever occurs first; and that you have read this Agreement and the franchise offering
circular and all exhibits, and that we gave you the opportunity to clarify provisions you did not
understand, and you consulted with a professional advisor prior to signing.

ACKNOWLEDGING THE TRUTH OF THE FOREGOING, you and we agree as
follows:

ARTICLE 1: GRANT, LOCATION & EXCLUSIVE AREA

1.01 Grant. We hereby grant you upon receipt of this signed Agreement and payment
in full of the Franchise Fee (see Section 6.01(a)) and you accept from us a franchise consisting of
the right to operate one Pizza Guys® store at the location specified herein using our marks, recipes,
decor, marketing, methods and procedures in compliance with our franchise system operated under
the Pizza Guys® trade name, trademark and other commercial symbols, all of which we have
developed and will continue to develop (referred to as the “franchise” or the “franchise system” as
the context requires). Pizza Guys franchisees who are qualified to open multiple locations are
given the option to open more than one location within an approved area and specific timeline.
The approved area and timeline are negotiated on a case by case basis depending in part on the
qualifications of the Franchisee. Your receipt of this Agreement signed by a representative of
Franchisor is acknowledgment of our approval of you in the franchise system.

1.02 Location. Your franchise is limited to one address only (the “store premises™).
Following is the franchise number and a description of the general area in which your store shall
be located. The exact address of your store premises shall be inserted below when known.

/
(franchise #) (General Area) (initials)

(Exact Address of the Store) (initials)
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1.03 Exclusive Area. We have not established and will not establish another
franchised or company- or affiliate-owned store selling pizza to the general public under the Pizza
Guys® trade name or under a different trade name or service mark within a two (2) mile radius of
your store (the “Exclusive Area”) excepting situations where a natural or artificial condition is an
impediment to travel such as freeways, rivers and the like, in which case we may establish another
franchised or company-owned store selling pizza within your Exclusive Area. Notwithstanding
the Exclusive Area, you and other franchisees may serve walk-in customers from any area and
deliver to call-in customers in any area. You may distribute door hangers, flyers, coupons and
other forms of promotion which advertise only your store (instead of a list of areas Pizza Guys®
stores) only within your Exclusive Area. ~ You may not directly solicit customers outside of the
Exclusive Area without our permission. “Direct solicitation” includes, but is not limited to,
solicitation in person, by telephone, by mail, through the Internet, social media, email or other
electronic means, and by distribution of brochures, business cards or other materials. If any direct
solicitation of customers within the Exclusive Area is in media that will or may reach a significant
number of persons outside of the Exclusive Area, you must notify us in advance and obtain our
consent. You release, indemnify and agree to defend us, our affiliates and representatives from
and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by or related to your advertising alone
or with the advertising of other Pizza Guys® stores. See Section 5.01(c).

ARTICLE 2: STORE PREMISES

2.01 Premises Selection. You shall locate and propose to us, premises suitable for use
as your Pizza Guys® store in the general area described in Section 1.02, above, but you shall not
enter into any negotiations with the lessor of the proposed premises. In the event that we approve
of the proposed premises for use as your Pizza Guys® store, we or our representatives shall
negotiate with the lessor of the proposed premises for acceptable terms of lease. You may not
lease the premises without our prior approval. If the proposed lease terms are acceptable to us and
you, we may in our sole and absolute discretion permit you to lease the premises directly from the
landlord. In the event we disapprove or fail to approve of the premises or the lease terms, you
shall locate and propose to us other premises suitable for use as your Pizza Guys® store. Our
designation, approval, disapproval, failure to disapprove your lease of the premises shall not
constitute our warranty or guarantee of successful or unsuccessful store operations at that location
or that the lease of the premises will be renewed, and you release, indemnify and agree to defend
us, our affiliates and representatives from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage
caused by, or related to, the same.

2.02 Design and Construction. After you have leased the store premises, we will
provide you with our general plans and specifications for the design, decor, equipment and
furnishings layout, signage and other incidents of a typical Pizza Guys® store. (We will not
provide energy calculations or plans or specifications for electrical, plumbing, sewer or mechanical
systems or compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, state disabled person’s laws, or
other similar laws or regulations). You shall bear the entire cost of adapting our general plans and
specifications to the particular circumstances of your store premises including, but not limited to,
the employment of an architect, engineer or other consultants as necessary. You shall not contract
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for or commence construction of the store without first obtaining our written approval of all plans
and specifications as adapted.

You shall procure certain architectural, engineering, design, construction or other
services or materials only from us, our affiliates or other designated source, some services and
materials only from among a list of approved service or material suppliers, and other services and
materials from any service or material supplier so long as the service or material meets our
standards and specifications as revised from time to time. Our designation, approval, disapproval
or failure to disapprove of the store’s design or construction or of a service or material provider or
of the terms of the service or materials contract, or of the services or materials provided shall not
constitute our warranty or guarantee of such person’s solvency or the quality or safety of such
person’s services or materials or the fairness of such person’s contract, and you release, indemnify
and agree to defend us from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or
related to, the same. You shall not hold us liable for the design or construction of your store or
any delay in the design or construction of your store.

You are required to use a construction coordinator approved by us. You shall bear the entire
cost of constructing your store premises including, but not limited to, payment of all material and
service providers, consultation fees to independent contractor(s) and fees and permits of
government agencies. Prior to the commencement of construction, you shall provide us the names
and addresses of all architects, engineers, designers, contractors, laborers or other service or
material providers so that we may deliver Notices of Nonresponsibility thereto. All government
permits and contracts with service or material providers shall be made between you and the
applicable government agency or service or material provider. The collection of any credit or
payment offered by the lessor for construction or improvement of the premises (“tenant
allowances”) shall be the sole responsibility of you, and you release, indemnify and agree to defend
us, our affiliates and representatives from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage
caused by, or related to the same.

You shall commence construction within forty-five (45) days of delivery of your store
premises or within such earlier period set forth in the store premises lease as and you shall complete
construction and open for business within one (1) year of the date of this Agreement, or we may
terminate your franchise pursuant to Section 11.01 retaining all fees paid and all improvements
made by you. You shall not open for business until we or our representatives have approved your
store as built.

YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT CONTRACTORS, ENGINEERS, ARCHITECTS, OR
ANY OTHER INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS THAT WE PROVIDE TO YOU ARE
RECOMMENDATIONS ONLY. WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DELAYS,
CLAIMS, OR ISSUES THAT MAY ARISES FROM YOUR ENGAGEMENT, INTERACTION,
OR PROCUREMENT OF SUCH INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

2.03 Fixtures, Furnishings and Equipment. After you have leased the store
premises, we shall provide you with our fixtures, furnishings and equipment list. You shall
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fixture, furnish, equip and decorate your store in accordance with our standards and specifications
as revised from time to time. Depending upon the item, you shall purchase certain fixtures,
furnishings, equipment and other goods only from us, our affiliates or other designated source,
some items only from among a list of approved suppliers, and other items from any supplier so
long as the items meet our standards and specifications as revised from time to time. You must
have a pair of conveyor ovens, hood and ventilation system, mixer, pizza preparation table, cut table,
vegetable dicer and slicer, dough sheeter, freezer, safe, walk-in refrigerator, dry storage shelving,
counter tops, cabinetry, digital menus, digital artwork, telephone system and a POS System which
must be approved by Franchisor, high speed internet connection, as well as other equipment and
furnishings on the store premises in order to operate the premises as a Pizza Guys® store. You are
required to have a computer utilizing POS System which must be approved by Franchisor. You
are required to participate in online ordering and any future programs such as texting orders that
we may introduce. You are required to have a working facsimile machine at your store at all times.
You are required to have a high speed internet connection. You are required to notify us prior to
changing your internet provider. You are required to utilize Pizza Guys® Message on Hold
System. Our designation, approval, disapproval or failure to disapprove of a source or supplier
shall not constitute our warranty or guarantee of the source’s or supplier’s solvency or the quality
of the source’s or supplier’s goods, and you release, indemnify and agree to defend us, or affiliates
and representatives from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related
to, the same.

Your franchise computer system must meet or exceed our minimum requirements, as
periodically specified by us, which requirements will be updated from time to time according to
changing technology and industry standards. When you purchase and install the POS System,
you bear all related costs. The initial computer system is included in the Initial Investment. We
will have independent access to the information and data maintained in your business computer
system. There are no contractual limitations on our right to access the information and data
contained therein.

You may obtain your computer hardware and POS system from a supplier approved by us.
You must upgrade it as we specify at our or our approved suppliers’ then current prices for the
upgraded equipment or software. There are no contractual limitations on the frequency and cost
of the upgrades.

There may be additional costs of the chosen computer system attributable to optional or
required maintenance and support contracts and upgrades and updates. We may, but currently do
not, require you to utilize any maintenance or support services for the computer system. You
must ensure all programs and applications running on your computer system are legally licensed.

You must keep all your cash registers and computer system in good operable repair, at your
expense, and you must promptly install additions, changes, modifications, substitutions and
replacements to the cash register and computer system as we may reasonably require. You will
have the sole and complete responsibility for: (a) acquiring, operating, maintaining and upgrading
your own cash register and computer system; (b) the manner in which your cash register and
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computer system interface with our computer systems, if any, and the computer systems of third
parties; and (c) all consequences that may arise if your cash register and computer system is not
properly operated, maintained and upgraded.

Neither we, our affiliates, nor a third party has a contractual right or obligation to provide
ongoing maintenance, repairs or upgrades for your computer system or related items. However,
we will provide you with continuing guidance on the necessity for upgrades, all of which you must
complete at your own cost.

You may not maintain customer’s credit card numbers on file in the POS.
Your car wrap design must be pre-approved by Franchisor.

2.04 Telephone Number. You may not advertise materials with your telephone
number out of your two (2) mile radius. You may install additional telephone number(s) to place
and receive local and long distance calls but you may not use such telephone number(s) to advertise
the store. You specifically authorize us to redirect the main telephone number to another location
from which we or another franchisee may serve persons in your Exclusive Area if you fail to
comply with the franchise system.

2.05 “As Built” Plans. Upon completion of any construction, fixturing, furnishing
or remodeling, you shall provide us with a copy of the drawings, plans and specifications revised
to show your store premises as actually built or remodeled and all equipment, furnishings and other
improvements as actually built or remodeled and all equipment, furnishings and other
improvements as actually installed thereon (““as built” plans). Thereafter, you shall not alter your
store premises exterior, interior, floor plan, lighting, seating, signage, equipment, furnishings,
fixtures or other items without our prior written consent. You shall bear the entire cost of
preparing and delivering the as built plans.

2.06 Remodeling and Re-equipping. Upon our written notice and as a condition of
transfer or renewal/extension, you shall promptly remodel, re-equip, redecorate or otherwise
update your store premises exterior, interior, floor plan, lighting, seating, signage, equipment,
furnishings, fixtures or other items to our standards so as to comply with our plans and
specifications as revised from time to time. We will not require remodeling or refurbishment of
your store more than every seven (7) years. Re-equipping shall include, but not be limited to, the
installation of new or additional ovens or appliances, point-of-sale, inventory control, electronic
reporting and other computer or store equipment as we deem advisable from time to time. If you
do not undertake efforts to correct deficiencies in your Store’s appearance promptly after we notify
you of the deficiencies, then we can undertake the repairs and you must reimburse our costs.

ARTICLE 3: INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM, STORE OPERATIONS MANUAL,
AND ONGOING CONSULTATION

3.01 Initial Training Program; Additional Training. Prior to the opening of your
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store, we or our representatives shall train at least one (1) person signing this Agreement or your
general manager at a location selected by us (“Phase ). Phase 1 training will continue until at
least one person signing this Agreement or your general manager is certified by Franchisor. After
the opening of your store, we or our representatives shall train such person or general manager at
your store for an additional five (5) days, eight (8) hours per day (“Phase I1I”). (We may require
and you may request that every person signing this Agreement and your general manager complete
our Initial Training Program.) The foregoing shall be collectively referred to as our "Initial
Training Program." You or your general manager must personally attend the Initial Training
Program and you must bear your and your general manager's travel, lodging, meals or other
expenses, if any. We shall pay for the travel, lodging, meals or other expenses of our personnel for
the duration of the Initial Training Program only. Training program participants are not paid for
their labor. You acknowledge that we will not be held liable if you or your manager(s) were to get
injured in part or wholly due to your/their own negligence. You agree and acknowledge that you
will or have insurance covering such liability and will provide copies of such policy upon our
reasonable request. You release, indemnify and agree to defend us, our affiliates and
representatives from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by or related to
your or your manager(s) own negligence during the Initial Training Program. You shall not open
for business until at least one (1) person signing this Agreement or your general manager have
successfully completed Phase I of our Initial Training Program. You are responsible for training
your employees. If you believe that our Initial Training Program is not adequate for you or for the
particular circumstances of your store, additional training at your store may be purchased from us
for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $100 per day. You must make your request for
additional training to us in writing and pre-pay for the same before we will schedule additional
training. If you want your employees/managers trained by us, we will do so for the actual cost of
travel, meals and lodging plus $250 per day. Each employee must be certified for each position
they provide services for. For Transfers: The seller of an existing Pizza Guys® store must
personally provide the Phase I initial training to the buyer(s) prior to close of escrow. We have
no obligation to provide Phase I initial training to the buyer(s) but will provide the Phase II initial
training to the buyer(s) after close of escrow if required. Also, if we are not satisfied with the
Phase I initial training by you to buyer, we, in our sole discretion, have the right to make the buyer
go through Phase I training again. We may, but are not required to, offer additional training
courses and/or refresher courses to you. We reserve the right to require you to attend or to
otherwise participate in such additional training. You must pay all transportation, lodging, and
other expenses incurred in attending such additional training courses.

3.02 Store Operations Manual. The Pizza Guys® store operations manual (“Store
Operations Manual”) contains information relating to the operation of your store in compliance
with the franchise system. Our Store Operations Manual is designed to ensure uniform and high
standards of quality, service and appearance among all Pizza Guys® stores in order to create and
maintain goodwill and widespread recognition and acceptance of the Pizza Guys® pizza store
chain. During the Initial Training Program, we shall provide you with the then current edition of
our Store Operations Manual. Our Store Operations Manual, as revised by us from time to time,
is incorporated in this Agreement by reference and you are bound to it as though it were reprinted
herein. In the event of any conflict between the terms of our Store Operations Manual and this
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Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

3.03 Ongoing Consultation. After the Initial Training Program, we or our
representatives will be available for consultation with you concerning the ongoing operation of the
store.

ARTICLE 4: STORE OPERATIONS

4.01 Store Operations. In addition to requirements set forth elsewhere herein, you shall
operate your store as follows:

(a) Compliance with the Franchise System. You agree to operate your store in
compliance with the franchise system.

(b) Approved Food, Beverages and Merchandise Only. You agree to serve and sell
only the food, beverages and merchandise (referred to as "goods and services”) approved by us
from time to time and to prepare the same according to our recipes, methods and procedures as
revised by us from time to time, and to serve or sell no goods or services of any kind. All
Franchisees are required to sell and accept Pizza Guys gift cards. The monthly fee will be
deducted electronically by Franchisor at the first of the month. Menus may vary from region to
region. In particular, alcoholic beverages may not be served or sold without our prior written
consent which consent may be withheld in our sole and absolute discretion. In order to request our
consent to sell alcoholic beverages, you must secure the required alcohol beverage license(s)
required by your state or local law. As the market changes and as our experience increases, we
may, but are not obligated to, add to, delete from and/or revise the approved goods and services
which you shall offer and there are no limitations on our right to make such additions, deletions or
changes. In such event, you are obligated to offer and sell such additional goods and services and
not to offer or sell deleted goods or services. Such additional or deleted goods and services will be
considered a unilateral modification of this franchise made in compliance with Section 15.08.

(¢) Prices. You shall determine the prices you charge your customers for all goods and
services. You are not required to participate in special promotional programs. If you choose to
participate in special promotional programs you are required to participate for the entire duration
of the program and you shall charge customers the exact amount of the promotional price for the
duration of the special promotional program. If you do not want to participate in special
promotional programs offered from time to time, you must notify us in advance.

(d) Inventory. You shall use and stock the foods, beverages, ingredients, condiments,
containers, napkins, paper goods, packaging and other serviceware ("inventory") as we approve
from time to time and to use or stock no other inventory without our prior written consent. You
shall maintain sufficient inventory of approved items to meet customer demand. Depending upon
the item, you shall purchase certain items of inventory only from us, our affiliates or other
designated source, some items only from among a list of approved suppliers, and other items from
any supplier so long as such items meet our standards and specifications as revised from time to
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time. Our designation, approval, disapproval or failure to disapprove of an inventory source or
supplier shall not constitute our warranty or guarantee of the source's or supplier's solvency or the
quality of the source's or supplier's inventory, and you release, indemnify and agree to defend us
from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, the same.

(e) Delivery. You shall deliver approved food, beverages and merchandise to locations
within your Exclusive Area. You may, but are not required to, deliver approved food, beverages
and merchandise outside your Exclusive Area. You shall not deliver any approved food, beverages
or merchandise until and unless you have received approval from us, which will not be granted
until you have provided us with a valid license and/or permit from your state or local municipality
authorizing such delivery services. In order to participate in delivery services, you must comply
with our policies as stated in the Manual. We reserve the right to modify or cancel our policies for
delivery for all franchisees or for any single franchisees in our sole discretion.

® Your Personal Participation. You represent and warrant that you and/or your
Manager in charge of operations: (1) do now and shall, for the franchise term and any
renewal/extension term, continue to live in the locality of your store; (2) shall be personally present
daily at your store and shall personally devote your full-time best efforts to the day-to-day
operations of your store; (3) will attend all mandatory quarterly franchise and advertising meetings;
(4) do now own and during the franchise term and any renewal/extension term shall continue to
own, the entire equity interest in this Agreement, in the business of your store and in its income,
except only as otherwise permitted by this Agreement; and (5) do not have any undisclosed
partnerships and any undisclosed partnerships or other agreement to share profits is void ab initio.

(2) Personnel and Uniforms. You shall employ trained personnel in sufficient
numbers so as to operate your store at maximum efficiency with sufficient staff at all times. You
shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, workers compensation insurance, payroll taxes
and any other taxes or payments due to the federal, state or other governmental authorities with
respect to said personnel. You shall cause all employees to: (1) wear uniforms or clothing of such
color, design and other specifications as we may prescribe from time to time, (2) present a neat
and clean appearance, and (3) render competent and courteous service to customers.

(h) Restrictions on Personnel. You must restrict your store's employees from directly
or indirectly, engaging in, acquiring any financial or beneficial interest in (including interests in
corporations, partnerships or trusts, limited liability companies, unincorporated associations and
joint ventures), or be employed by, or be a consultant to, or lessor for, any company which is
similar to a Pizza Guys® store or sells pizza in the same fashion that you are restricted by Article
8. You must also restrict your store's employees from disclosing or appropriating the customer list,
our recipes, copyrights and trade secrets or proprietary information in the same fashion that you
are restricted by Section 7.04. You must also require your employees to promptly disclose and to
assign to us all ideas, improvements and materials (including but not limited to advertising artwork
and promotional materials), whether patentable, copyrightable or not, relating to the services
provided at, or the operation of; your store in the same fashion that you are required by Section
7.05.
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(@) Hours of Operation. You shall operate your store seven (7) days per week, for a
minimum of twelve (12) hours a day, throughout the year during the hours we prescribe from time
to time, except for a reasonable time necessary to reconstruct due to tire or other casualty.

Gg) Quality, Service and Cleanliness. You shall operate your store in a clean,
wholesome manner and in compliance with standards of quality, service and cleanliness prescribed
by us from time to time. You shall, at your sole expense, have a licensed pest control service visit
your store at least one time per month. You must produce evidence of inspection and inform us of
any issues within 24 hours when requested by us.

(k) Maintenance of Store Premises, Equipment and Furnishings; Decor. You shall
maintain your store premises exterior and interior, lighting, seating, signage, equipment,
furnishings, fixtures and other items in excellent working condition and in a neat, clean and
wholesome appearance in conformity with the decor scheme for your store prescribed by us from
time to time. You agree to replace, at your sole expense, items which become obsolete, out of date
or otherwise in need of replacement with items meeting our then current standards, specifications
and decor.

()] Parking. Regardless of the terms of your store premises lease, you shall ensure that
the parking area in the immediate vicinity of your store is kept in a neat and clean manner.

(m) Vending, Video Machines, Etc. Pay telephones, newspaper and magazine racks,
jukeboxes, gum machines, games, rides, or vending or video machines shall not be installed on the
premises without our prior written consent.

(n) Signs. You shall maintain and display signs of the color, size and design in the
locations specified by us from time to time. You shall not place additional signs, posters or art on
your store premises without our prior written consent. You shall not place "For Sale" or similar
signs on, in, or in the general vicinity of your store or use any words in any advertisement denoting
that a Pizza Guys® store is the subject of a proposed sale.

(o) Compliance with Store Operations Manual. You agree to operate your store in
compliance with our Store Operations Manual as revised by us from time to time. If we
determine that you are not operating your store in compliance with our Store Operations Manual,
we, in our sole discretion, have the right to make you go through Phase I training again, and will
do so for the actual cost of travel, meals and lodging plus $250 per day.

p) Compliance with Store Premises Lease, Preauthorized Bank Deduction
Procedure, and Other Agreements. Your store premises lease, Pre-authorized Bank Deduction
Procedure and any other agreement between us and you are hereby incorporated in this Agreement
by reference and you are bound to them as though they were reprinted herein and you hereby agree
that your breach of any of them shall constitute a "failure of vou to comply with a lawful
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requirement of the franchise" within the meaning of Articles 10 and 11 and a breach of this
Agreement.

(qQ Compliance with Laws. You shall, at your sole expense, comply with all federal,
state and local laws, ordinances and regulations affecting the store or its operations and shall obtain
and keep in force all permits, licenses or other consents required for the construction, maintenance
or operation of your store.

(r) Payment of Taxes. You shall pay when due, all taxes imposed on the store
premises, its improvements, fixtures, furnishings and equipment, all payroll and other taxes
imposed with respect to persons working at your store, and all sales and business taxes applicable
to all sales or business conducted at or from the store.

(s) Utilities. You shall pay all charges for water, gas, telephone, electricity, trash
pickup, utilities and other services incurred at or in the operation of the store.

(t) Fiscal Responsibility. You shall pay promptly when due or earlier (see below), all
costs of constructing, maintaining and operating your store including, but not limited to, those due
us, our affiliates, employees, contractors, materialmen, equipment lessors, suppliers and vendors,
advertisers, a national, regional or local advertising or franchisee committee, all applicable federal,
state and local governmental authorities, and all charges for water, gas, telephone, electricity, trash
pickup and utility and service bills incurred in the operation of the store. Warning: Early Payment
Required for Certain Vendors: Even if your produce, food or beverage vendor(s) or your
advertiser(s) give you more time to pay, you shall pay your produce vendor(s) according to their
payment terms but in no event later than thirty (30) days of their invoice and advertisers and all
other food and beverage vendors according to their payment terms but in no event later than fifteen
(15) days of their invoice. We want our franchisees to develop the reputation among produce,
food and beverage vendor(s) and advertiser(s) for early payment. This may allow us to negotiate
good prices for from such vendors for all our franchisees. Accordingly, we will consider your
failure to make early payment to produce, food and beverage vendor(s) and your advertiser(s) to
constitute "conduct which reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation and reputation
of the franchised business or the Pizza Guys® chain" and, accordingly, grounds for immediate
termination without opportunity to cure within the meaning of Section 11.02(d).

(u) Customer Loyalty Program. We currently do not offer loyalty cards; however,
upon written notice from us that we will begin offering loyalty cards, you shall sell or otherwise
issue loyalty cards that have been prepared utilizing the standard form loyalty card (“Loyalty
Cards”) provided by us, and only in the manner specified by us in the Store Operations Manual or
otherwise in writing. You shall fully honor all Loyalty Cards that are in the form provided or
approved by us regardless of whether a Loyalty Card was issued by you or another franchisee.

You shall sell, issue, and redeem (without any offset against any Royalty Fees) Loyalty
Cards in accordance with procedures and policies we specify in the Store Operations Manual or
otherwise in writing.
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Upon implementing a loyalty program, you will pay us an ongoing monthly fee as stated
in the Store Operations Manual or otherwise in writing for each store (“Program Fee”) to install
and maintain the Customer Loyalty Program. You will pay us our then current fee for each dollar
($1) spent for a transaction when a Loyalty Card is presented. The customer’s Loyalty Card will
accrue ten (10) points for each dollar ($1) spent at a Pizza Guys® business. We reserve the right
to alter the terms and conditions of any customer loyalty program, including reserving the right to
apply changes retroactively to benefits already accrued under such programs.

) Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen add-on. In our sole discretion, we may offer you the
opportunity to add our Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen to your store at the time of executing this
Agreement. If we grant you this right, you must execute our then-current Virtual Kitchen
Addendum attached hereto as Attachment B to the Franchise Agreement.

(w)  Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen add-on. In our sole discretion, we may offer you the
opportunity to add our Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen to your store at the time of executing this
Agreement. If we grant you this right, you must execute our then-current Virtual Kitchen
Addendum attached hereto as Attachment B to the Franchise Agreement.

(x) Username and Passwords. You shall provide us with all usernames and passwords
that you utilize with third-party delivery service provider(s). Upon request by us, you shall take all
necessary steps with third-party delivery provider(s) to grant us unlimited, managerial, access to
your account(s). You shall provide usernames and passwords within twenty-four (24) hours after
such accounts have been created. If your fail to provide these usernames and passwords we will
have the right, but not the obligation to immediately terminate your Virtual Kitchen Addendum (if
signed) as well as exercise any and all other rights provided to us within Article 11 and Article 13
of this agreement.

4.02 Proof of Compliance. You shall permit us, our representatives, accountants,
attorneys and other agents to inspect your store premises at any time during regular business hours,
without notice, and to observe all aspects of the business and you shall furnish us with such
evidence as we may request from time to time for the purpose of determining your compliance
with the franchise system. If we determine that you are not in compliance with the franchise
system, we will provide you with written notice thereof and you will have thirty (30) days to
provide evidence of compliance. Upon reinspection, if needed, you agree to pay us for such
reinspection at the rate of $250 per day plus actual cost of travel, meals and lodging.

ARTICLE S: ADVERTISING

5.01 Advertising. Each month you shall advertise your store using only approved
advertising disseminated only in approved media. (For instance, you may not create your own
Internet website but must advertise on our website.) You may not have a web domain that
includes the “Pizza Guys” name in it. For the first six (6) months your store is open, we will plan
and budget the minimum amount of advertising of your store. However, you may spend more
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than what we recommend.

(a) Grand Opening Period. We require that your grand opening period costs will be
approximately $7,500 per month for the first six (6) months your store is open to advertise the
opening of your store.

(b) Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure. You are required to spend on
advertising amounts as follows:

Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500) per month during each of the first six (6)
months after your store is opened;

The greater of four percent (4%) of net sales or Three Thousand Two Hundred Dollars
($3,200) per month during months seven (7) through twelve (12) after your store is opened; and

Four percent (4%) of net sales each month through the remainder of your Term beginning
in month thirteen (13) after your store is opened.

Advertising expenses are paid to third parties not to us. Proof of your Minimum Monthly
Advertising Expenditure must be submitted with your Monthly Advertising Report (see Section 6.
05(b)). We retain the right to unilaterally increase the Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure
in the event that, in our sole opinion, an increase is required to be competitive in the market.

() Advertising Materials; No Advertising Fund. We will provide an approved
format for you to promote your Pizza Guys® store, however, we have not established an
advertising fund and we are not required to advertise or otherwise increase recognition of and
goodwill toward the Pizza Guys® chain.

(d) Social media, website hosting, ad words, etc. We, or one of our affiliates, will
provide support for website hosting and updates, email hosting, electronic mail marketing, and
Google® AdWords management. You will pay us our then-current monthly fee for these services
at the same time, and in the same manner, as your Weekly Franchise Fee. We reserve the right to
increase or reduce this fee upon 30-days written notice to you.

(e) Cooperative Advertising. When two or more franchised businesses have been
established in a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), we may establish an advertising cooperative
in that area. If an advertising cooperative has been established in your territory, you are required
to participate in the cooperative advertising group. If the group approves by majority an
advertising program you must pay for your share of the expense. Although we may not have an
advertising cooperative in your area, we may, from time to time, require that you join a specific
advertising campaign and we will electronically withdrawal money from your account for the
campaign.
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ARTICLE 6: FEES AND FINANCIAL REPORTS

6.01 Fees. You shall pay us:

(a) an Initial Franchise Fee of $25,000. The Initial Franchise Fee is nonrefundable
and you are not entitled to interest thereon. We currently offer a 15% discount to qualifying
military veterans. The military discount is available to veterans who have received a discharge
(other than dishonorable) as well as any active-duty personnel. If the franchisee is a corporation,
limited liability company, or other legal entity, the veteran participant must maintain at least 51%
ownership interest in the entity to qualify for this discount. To apply for the discount, you must
provide us a copy of form DD-214, reflecting your military status, before the Franchise Agreement
is signed. If you qualify for the military discount, you will pay a $21,250 franchise fee. You must
execute the Franchise Agreement prior to looking for a site or beginning training; and,

(b) a Weekly Franchise Fee of 5% of your store's Gross Sales for each week (as
defined by Section 6.10) of the franchise term and any renewal/extension term, due on each
Wednesday for the previous week. When the end of the month occurs during the preceding week,
two (2) reports will be due. One for the end of the month, and one for the week. Should you use
a third party online service such as Grubhub, Eat 24, etc., you must notify us of the third party
company used and you authorize us to obtain these sales monthly directly from the third party
company for the purposes of auditing your Weekly Franchise Fee.

6.02 Additional Payments. You shall also pay the telephone company and/or vendor(s)
as directed, all payments due under any other agreement between us or our affiliates and you.
Additionally, you are required to pay advertisers the Minimum Monthly Advertising
Expenditure (see Section 5.01(c), above). In the event you desire to renew or extend your
franchise, you must pay us a Renewal/Extension Fee (see Section 12.02(a), below). In the event
you desire to transfer your franchise, you must pay us a Transfer Fee (see Section 14.01(c),
below).

6.03 Preauthorized Bank Deduction Procedure. From time to time as we request, you
shall sign all documents necessary to establish and maintain a preauthorized bank deduction
procedure whereby your bank is authorized to pay and charge to your account, checks (or other
debit entries by electronic or paper means) drawn on your account by and payable to the order of
us (or our affiliates or representatives, or a national, regional or local franchise advertising
committee or campaign, as we shall from time to time decide) as payment of your Weekly
Franchise Fee and any other payment due from you (such as advertising campaigns as may be
required by us) including electronically deducting any default payments. You shall maintain
sufficient funds in the account to assure the timely preauthorized transfer of the appropriate funds
and you shall pay to us a reasonable service fee, not less than $25, and all bank charges in the event
that sufficient funds are not available to honor such deduction. You shall not cancel such
preauthorized bank deduction procedure or close such account and you shall require your bank to
provide us (and our affiliates or representative, as the case may be) written notice 30 days in
advance of any change to your account which would affect such preauthorized bank deduction
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procedure. In order to induce your bank to honor this preauthorized bank deduction procedure, you
release, indemnify and agree to defend your bank from and against any obligation, loss, liability
or damage caused by, or related to, any payment made pursuant to this preauthorized bank
deduction procedure;

6.04 Interest and Late Charges. Any amount not paid when due, shall bear interest at
the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum legal rate in the jurisdiction in which your store is
located, whichever is lower, from the date due until paid. Any amount not paid when due, shall
bear a late charge of $35 per occurrence. The payment of interest or late charges shall not be
deemed to authorize any delay in payment of any amount.

6.05 Reports. You shall bear all costs associated with preparing and delivering the
following reports to us:

(a) Wednesday Report. Franchisor will obtain via its online computer system a
written report showing your operations for each week (as defined by Section 6.09) of the franchise
term and any renewal/extension term by 12:00 p.m. on each Wednesday for the previous week
containing such information and prepared and transmitted in such form and manner as we from
time to time require. When the en£ otpthe month occurs during the preceding week, two (2) reports
will be due. One for the end of the month, and one for the week. If there are any complications
and Franchisor is unable to obtain sales via online computer system, Franchisor will call you and
it will be your responsibility to fax the written report;

(b) Additional Reports. You shall prepare and deliver such additional operating,
financial and other reports containing such information and prepared and transmitted in such form
and manner and at such times as we may from time to time require;

(¢) Failure to Timely or Accurately Report. In the event that you fail to timely or
accurately report your Gross Sales, you authorize us to estimate your Gross Sales and to deduct
from your bank account an interim Weekly Franchise Fee subject to subsequent reconciliation.
You shall pay all costs incurred by us as a result of your failure to timely or accurately report.
There will be a $35.00 late charge fee assessed if you fail to report your weekly sales by noon on
Wednesday. If we find that you purposely reported incorrect sales, we will terminate your
franchise agreement without the opportunity to cure within the meaning of Section 11.02(n);

(d) Monthly Profit & Loss Report. You shall send to Franchisor, in the medium we
prescribe, a financial report showing the profit and loss of your franchised business and records
showing that the required amount of advertising was spent, no later than 12:00 p.m. of the first
Wednesday of each month for the previous month. If we find that you purposely reported incorrect
profits and losses, we reserve the right to terminate your franchise agreement without the
opportunity to cure pursuant to Section 11.02(n);

6.06 Books and Records. You shall preserve and keep at the store for at least the
preceding five (5) years: all order sheets, customer receipts, Z tapes and other cash register tapes,
if any, coupons, electronic data and other records of Gross Sales; all invoices for inventory,
supplies and other goods and services purchased and all other records of business expenses; all
reports, summaries, inventory control sheets and other business operations forms; all canceled
checks, deposit slips, bank statements and records of any financial institution doing business with
your store; all accounting books and records; all business tax returns and worksheets and all
personal tax returns and worksheets as they relate to the business; as well as all other books and
records of the business.
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6.07 Inspection and Audit. You shall permit us, our representatives, accountants,
attorneys and other agents to inspect and audit without notice during regular business hours your
books and records. You also authorize us to audit directly from third party vendors and purveyors.
This authorization is continuing and irrevocable. If an inspection or audit discloses that actual
Gross Sales exceed your reported Gross Sales, you shall pay us: (a) the additional amount owed,
(b) interest on said amount from the date originally due until paid, and (c) if actual Gross Sales
exceed your reported Gross Sales by 2% or more, the cost of the inspections and audits which
revealed the under-reported sales including, but not limited to, our agents' fees, travel, meals and
lodging. Your failure to comply with this paragraph is grounds for immediate termination without
opportunity to cure within the meaning of Section 11.02(o0).

6.08 Rebates. Advertisers, suppliers, including food and beverage suppliers, and other
product vendors and service providers provide monetary or in-kind "rebates" to franchisors who
designate them as a sole source supplier or who recommend or approve them as an authorized
supplier. You agree that we have the right to receive and expend such rebates in any manner that
we, in our sole and absolute discretion, desire.

6.09 "Week" Defined. For purpose of this Article, the term "week" shall consist of a
period of seven (7) days as designated by the calendar, but beginning on Monday and ending on

Sunday.

6.10 " Gross Sales'" Defined. "Gross Sales” means all revenue and other compensation,
including take-out and delivery, catering, including school lunches, special sales, video game
revenue, merchandise sales excluding sales tax, sales from and commissions due to third party
ordering services (such as Grubhub, Uber Eats, Eat 24, etc.), event sales, derived at or from your
business exclusive of authorized "complimentary items" as defined in our Store Operations
Manual from time to time. To avoid confusion, if you utilize the services of a third party ordering
service then you must include the entire ticket price of the order plus commissions and service fees
due to the third party ordering service in your Gross Sales amounts. Sales for checks or credit shall
be treated as received for the full price in the week during which the check is received or the credit
extended irrespective of the time when you actually receive payment (whether full or partial)
therefor.

ARTICLE 7: TRADE NAMES, TRADEMARKS, TRADE SECRETS AND
COPYRIGHTS

7.01 Trade Name and Trademark License. We hold registrations for the followin
mark(s) on the Principal Register in the United States Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTO'
for the following goods and services:

Mark Described Goods or Services Date of USPTO
Registration | Registration
No.

Pizza Guys For pizza in International Class 30 Jan. 28, 1997 | 2,034,329
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Pizza Guys Prepared food delivery services in Dec. 10, 1996 | 2,022,471
International Class 39
Pizza Guys The For pizza in International Class 30 June 11, 2002 | 2,578,298
Better Guys and food delivery services in
International Class 39
Pizza Guys Real For pizza in International Class 30 September 25, | 5,568,672
Pizza Real Value 2018
Pizza Guys A Party in | For pizza in International Class 30 August 7, 5,533,532
Every Pizza and food delivery services in 2018
International Class 39
I’m a Pizza Guy For pizza in International Class 30 April 16,2013 | 4,321,056

and food delivery services in
International Class 39

Artisan Made Pizza For pizza in International Class 30 March 22, 4,922,283
Guys Est. 1986 I'm a | and food delivery services in 2016
Pizza Guy International Class 39

In addition to the above registrations, we claim common law ownership of other marks including
but not limited to "Superb Pizza." We hereby license you to use, for the duration of the franchise
term and any renewal/extension term, the "Pizza Guys,®" "Pizza Guys The Better Guys®," “Pizza
Guys Real Pizza Real Value,® ” “Pizza Guys A Party in Every Pizza ,®" “I’'m a Pizza Guy, ®”
or Artisan Made Pizza Guys Est. 1986 I'm a Pizza Guy ® ” marks and such other trade names,
trademarks, service marks, signage and logos as we require you to use from time to time (the
"marks") but only so long as you use the same solely to operate your store in compliance with the
franchise system and for no other purpose. You shall follow our rules when you use our marks and
you shall not use any trade name, trademark, service mark or logo which we have not required you
to use.

7.02 Trade Secrets and Copyright License. We hereby license you to use, for the
duration of the franchise term and any renewal/extension term, the trade secrets and copyrights as
we require you to use from time to time but only so long as you use the same solely to operate
your store in compliance with the franchise system and for no other purpose. You acknowledge
and are estopped to deny that the customer list which you develop and our franchise system in its
entirety, including, but not limited to: recipes; food and beverage specifications and sources; site
selection criteria; store design and decor specifications; signage; construction methods; fixtures,
furnishings and equipment; employee selection, training, and evaluation; print, radio, television
and other advertising and promotional techniques; inventory, accounting and other business
policies and procedures; all of which we will continue to develop and all other information now
or hereafter conveyed in whatever form to you by us, our affiliates or representatives; constitutes
our confidential trade secrets and/or unpublished or published copyrights and we provide the same
for your use solely for the purpose of enabling you to establish and operate your store in accordance
with the terms of this franchise. The customer list developed by you and any other goodwill which
may arise from your use of our marks is and shall remain our sole and exclusive property and shall
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inure to our sole benefit. (Nothing contained in the preceding sentence shall be construed to
prohibit you from receiving, for a transfer of the franchise made in compliance with the provisions
of this Agreement, a price which includes payment for any goodwill for your store.)

7.03 Assignment of Ideas, Improvements and Materials. Just as you desire to learn
from us, we hope to learn from you and to share what we have learned from you with our other
stores. Accordingly, you shall promptly disclose to us all ideas, improvements and materials
(including, but not limited to, menu and recipe suggestions, advertising artwork and promotional
ideas and materials) relating to the operations of and the goods and services provided by your store
which you or any of your legal or beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers, directors,
agents, or employees, solely or jointly with others, develop during the franchise term and any
renewal/extension term. You hereby irrevocably assign exclusive ownership of the same to us in
perpetuity and you specifically grant us permission to license you and our other stores to use those
ideas, improvements and materials which we approve and, should we desire, to register the same
in our name alone as a trade name, trademark, service mark, copyright or patent, as applicable.
You agree that we owe you no other consideration for your assignment of your ideas,
improvements and materials to us or for our use of the same.

7.04 Licensee Estoppel; Attornment. You hereby acknowledge and are estopped to
deny that the trade names, trademark, service marks, signage and logos encompassed by Section
7.01, the trade secrets (including but not limited to customer list) and copyrights encompassed by
Section 7.02, and the ideas, improvements and materials encompassed by this Section 7.03 (collectively
referred to for purposes of this Article 7 only as "the foregoing") are valid and are owned entirely
by us and constitute our sole and exclusive property, and you agree that:

(a) other than pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, you shall not use or appropriate
any of the foregoing in whole or in part and, except as in accordance with the terms of this
franchise, you shall not use the words "Pizza Guys," “Pizza Guys The Better Guys,” "Guys,"
"Guy," "Men," "Man," "Superb," “Pizza Guys Real Pizza Real Value,” “Pizza Guys A Party in
Every Pizza” or any formative thereof or any other trade name, trademark, service mark or logo
now or later designated by us or any mark confusingly similar thereto;

(b) You are not allowed to have a web domain that includes the “Pizza Guys” name in
it;

(©) you acknowledge that online ordering and text message ordering are owned by
Franchisor and you are not allowed to have a link on any personal website or other website other
than the Pizza Guys’ website to the online ordering unless consented to by franchisor;

(d)  you shall not attempt to register with any local government, state or nation any of
the foregoing in whole or in part;

(e)  other than to another Pizza Gugzs@ franchisee or to store employees as required for
store operations, you shall not disclose any of the foregoing in whole or in part;

€y} except as required for store operations, you shall not duplicate, reprint or otherwise
copy any of the foregoing in whole or in part;

(g) you shall promptly report to us any use not authorized by us of the foregoing; and
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(h) you shall cooperate with us in preventing or prosecuting any unauthorized use of
the foregoing and in defending our ownership and other rights with respect to the same.

7.05 Our Limited Duty to Defend; Your Release and Indemnification. Our license
of the marks, trade secrets and copyrights to you shall not constitute our warranty or guarantee of
our ownership of them. Because of the potentially great expense of prosecuting or defending the
foregoing, we reserve the absolute right to choose whether or not to prosecute or defend the same.
We reserve the right to change the mark(s) to others of our own selection. A name change would
entail substantial expense to you including, but not limited to, that occasioned by the change of
signage and advertising and the resulting loss of customer goodwill. A name change will in no
way reduce or relieve you of your obligation to pay the Weekly Franchise Fee, and any other
obligation owed to us, our affiliates or representatives, or any obligation to trade vendors, etc.
Accordingly, you release and indemnify us from and against any claim, obligation, loss; liability
or damage caused you by our lack of ownership or failure to prosecute or defend or to obtain
registration of the marks, trademarks or copyrights, or by a mark change, if any.

ARTICLE 8: COVENANTS AGAINST COMPETITION

During the franchise term and any renewal/extension term, you and your legal and
beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers and directors shall not, without our prior written
consent, directly or indirectly, engage in, acquire any financial or beneficial interest in (including
interests in corporations, partnerships or trusts, unincorporated associations and joint ventures), or
become an employee of; or a consultant to, or lessor for, any business which is similar to a Pizza
Guys® store or which prepares, serves or sells pizza.

For five (5) years following your transfer or the expiration or termination of the franchise
term and any renewal/extension term, you and your legal and beneficial owners, partners,
shareholders, officers and directors shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in, acquire any financial
or beneficial interest in (including interests in corporations, partnerships or trusts, unincorporated
associations and joint ventures), or become an employee of; or a consultant to, or lessor for, any
business which is similar to a Pizza Guys® store or which prepares, serves or sells pizza within a
ten (10) mile radius of your store premises or the location of any existing or former Pizza Guys®
store.

Ownership of less than 2% of the shares of a company with shares listed and traded on a
national or regional securities exchange shall not be deemed to violate this Article so long as
neither you nor any of your legal or beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers or directors
are employed in any capacity by such company.

ARTICLE 9: INDEPENDENT BUSINESS PERSON, INSURANCE AND
INDEMNIFICATION

9.01 Independent Business Person; Duty to Indicate Independent Ownership;
Banking Relationships. You acknowledge that your financial success depends primarily upon
your personal efforts and abilities as an independent business person and that our grant of a
franchise to you does not guarantee success and that the store may lose money or fail. You are
engaged in your own business and, as such, you are solely responsible for directing the day-to-day
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activities of your store and you may hire, train, compensate, supervise, discipline and discharge
such employees as in your sole judgment you deem advisable for the proper operation of your
store. In no circumstances shall you or your employees be considered our agents or employees.
You shall not act as or attempt to act as, or represent yourself, directly, indirectly or by implication
to be an agent or employee of us, or in any manner assume or create or attempt to assume or create
any obligation on our behalf or in our name. Franchisee shall hire and be the sole employer of all
employees of the store, be exclusively responsible for the terms of their employment, discipline
and compensation and for the proper training of such employees in the operation of the store.
Franchisee shall require all store employees to maintain a neat and clean appearance and to
conform to the standards of dress and/or uniforms specified by us from time-to-time.

You must display in your store and include on all written materials used, or distributed by
or on the behalf of you including, without limitation, all menus, stationery, business cards, checks,
receipt forms, all print, radio, television and other advertising, and other materials, a statement that
“Each Pizza Guys® store is independently owned and operated” or other statement as we from
time to time require.

You shall operate your store as a “Pizza Guys® " store. However, you shall not use “PIZZA
GUYS” or “PIZZA GUYS THE BETTER GUYS” or “PIZZA GUYS REAL PIZZA REAL
VALUE” or “PIZZA GUYS A PARTY IN EVERY PIZZA” as your corporate, partnership or
company name. You shall conduct banking relations and relations with us as “Pizza Guys®
#  ” designating your franchise number therein. Your accounts with trade vendors, utility
services, and filings with federal, state and local governments (e.g., fictitious business name, board
of equalization, license, tax, and Internal Revenue Service) must be in your name(s) as they appear
on the last page of this Agreement.

9.02 Insurance. Prior to taking possession of your store premises and before selling any
goods or services, you shall acquire and thereafter maintain in effect insurance in the following
minimum amounts and coverages:

(a) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance including products liability, excess and
non-owned driver liability and broad form advertising injury coverages or endorsements with a
$1,000,000 minimum combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage per
occurrence. A $2,000,000 umbrella policy is recommended but not required,

(b) Worker's or Workmen's Compensation Insurance as prescribed by law in the state
in which your store is located,

(©) All insurance required by the store premises lease; and

(d) All insurance required by any equipment or furnishings lease.

All insurance required to be carried hereunder shall be placed with a reputable insurance
carrier admitted in and licensed to do business in the state in which your store is located and having
assets in excess of $100,000,000 with a Financial Size Category of XV and a Policyholders Rating
of “A+” or “A” (Excellent) as assigned by Alfred M. Best and Company, Inc. All insurance
policies required to be carried hereunder shall name us, Shahpour M. Nejad, Reza Kalantari, our
officers and representatives, RSM, Inc. and any other person designated by us from time to time
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as an additional insured. Maintenance of the insurance required hereunder shall not relieve you of
your obligations to defend and indemnify us. Proof of coverage, evidence of payment of premiums
and duplicate copies of policies of insurance shall be delivered to us by your insurance carrier no
fewer than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date you receive possession of your store premises
and at least annually thereafter. All policies of insurance shall be in a form approved by us and
shall include a provision prohibiting policy cancellations or material changes prior to the expiration
of thirty (30) days written notice to us.

We recommend that you take out an Employment Practices Liability Insurance policy
which covers potential claims made by your employees for: wrongful refusal to employ a qualified
applicant for employment; wrongful failure to promote, or wrongful deprivation of career
opportunity; wrongful demotion, negligent evaluation, negligent reassignment or wrongful
discipline; wrongful termination; employment related misrepresentation; harassment, coercion,
discrimination; or oral or written publication or material that slanders, defames or libels or violates
or invades a right of privacy.

In the event you shall fail to obtain or maintain the insurance required herein, we may, but
need not, purchase insurance on your behalf and you shall promptly reimburse us for all premiums
and other costs incurred in connection therewith. However, by placing such insurance, we do not
guarantee adequate coverage.

9.03 Indemnification. You shall indemnify us, hold us harmless from and defend us,
our affiliates and representatives from and against all claims, demands, obligations, liabilities,
losses, damages, settlements, judgments, penalties and other expenses, including federal, state and
local taxes, attorneys' fees and costs of investigation, litigation or administrative proceedings,
incurred by or imposed on us in connection with any act or omission or alleged act or omission of
you or your employees or agents, arising from or relating to your store's business, operations or
premises. This indemnity provision is a blanket provision and is in addition to, and is not in
derogation of, those imposed elsewhere.

ARTICLE 10: BREACH AND REMEDIES

10.01 Breach. Your failure to comply with any lawful requirement of the franchise shall
constitute a breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement the phrase “your failure to
comply with any lawful requirement of the franchise” shall mean any failure to comply with any
provision of this Agreement, the Store Operations Manual, and any other agreement signed
between you and us in the connection of the operation of your franchise.

10.02 Remedies. In the event that you fail to comply with any lawful requirement of the
franchise, we may, in addition to all other remedies now or hereafter provided us by law, equity
or this Agreement, do one or more of the following:

(a) Terminate your franchise in accordance with Article 11 and, thereupon, be
entitled to recover past and future damages from you and redirect the store's main telephone
number to another location from which we or another franchisee may serve your customer's (see
Section 2.04);
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(b) Not terminate your franchise but, in the event that you fail to cure such
breach in accordance with Article 11: (1) act to cure such breach on your behalf and recover from
you the cost of such cure, consequential damages and/or (2) be entitled to recover past and future
damages from you and redirect the store's main number to another location from which we or

another franchisee may serve your customer's until you comply with the franchise (see Section
2.04);

(c) Seek injunctive relief. (In this regard, you acknowledge that your breach
of the franchise is likely to cause damage to us which may not be adequately compensated by
money damages and, accordingly, you agree that injunctive relief is appropriate in addition to any
other remedy.)

The above remedies are cumulative and our use of one or
more of them shall not prevent us from thereafter again using the same or other remedies. Our lack
of action on your failure to comply with any lawful requirement of the franchise, whether in a
single instance or repeatedly, shall not be construed as our waiver of such breach or any future
breach.

ARTICLE 11: GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF TERM

11.01 Grounds for Termination for “Good Cause” With No More Than 60-Days
Opportunity to Cure. Except as otherwise provided by Section 11.02, we shall not terminate
your franchise prior to the expiration of the term, except for good cause. Except as provided by
Section 11.02, “good cause” shall be limited to the failure of the franchisee to substantially comply
with the lawful requirements imposed upon the franchisee by the franchise agreement after being
given notice at least 60 days in advance of the termination and a reasonable opportunity, which in
no event shall be less than 60 days in advance of the termination and a reasonable opportunity,
which in no event shall be less than 60 days from the date of the notice of noncompliance, to cure
the failure. The period to exercise the right to cure shall not exceed 75 days unless there is a
separate agreement between you and us to extend the time.

(a) You and every employee of your franchise must comply with and follow any
and all polices we and/or the federal government and you state and local government put into place
regarding the cleanliness and sanitation of your franchise and the health and safety of your
employees and customers. If you fail to follow any or all of these policies, you will be in default
of this Franchise Agreement and you will have thirty (30) days to cure such default. If the default
is not cured after thirty (30) days, we reserve the right to terminate this Franchise Agreement.

11.02 Grounds for Immediate Notice of Termination Without Opportunity to Cure.
If during the period in which your franchise is in effect, there occurs any of the following events,
immediate notice of termination without an opportunity to cure, shall be deemed reasonable:

(a) You or the business to which the franchise relates are declared bankrupt or
are judicially determined to be insolvent, or all or a substantial part of the assets thereof are
assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor, or you admit your inability to pay your debts as they
come due;
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(b) You abandon the franchise by failing to operate the business for five (5)
consecutive days during which you are required to operate the business under the terms of this
Agreement or any shorter period after which it is not unreasonable under the facts and
circumstances for us to conclude that you do not intend to continue to operate the franchise, unless
such failure to operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake or other similar causes beyond your control;

(c)  We and you agree in writing to terminate the franchise;

(d) You make any material misrepresentation relating to your acquisition of
the franchise or the franchised business or you or an employee of yours engages in conduct which
reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation and reputation of the franchise, the
franchised business or the Pizza Guys® chain. Warning: You are our representative, so the use
of alcohol or drugs by you, or anyone working at your store would constitute “conduct which
reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation and reputation of the franchised business
and the chain” and, accordingly, constitutes a breach of the terms of the agreement pursuant to
Article 10.01 and grounds for termination in accordance with Article 11.01. Also, your failure to
make early payment to produce, food and beverage vendor(s) and your advertiser(s) in accordance
with Section 4.01(t) to constitute “conduct which reflects materially and unfavorably upon the
operation and reputation of the franchise, the franchised business or the Pizza Guys® chain” and,
accordingly, grounds for immediate termination without opportunity to cure;

(e) You, or an employee of yours, does any act which is harmful, unfavorable
or reflects negatively upon the franchised business or the Pizza Guys® goodwill and reputation.
You do any act without regard to public morals, conventions and Franchisor’s policies. If you, or
an employee of yours, have committed or do commit any act, or if you have conducted or do
conduct yourself in a manner, which shall be an offense involving moral turpitude under federal,
state or local laws, or which might tend to bring you to public disrepute, contempt, scandal or
ridicule, or which might tend to reflect unfavorably upon the franchised business or Pizza Guys®,
its customers, business partners, sponsors, if any, or their advertising agencies, if any, or otherwise
injure the success of the franchise business, we will consider such acts a breach of the terms of this
agreement pursuant to Article 10.01 and grounds for immediate termination without opportunity
to cure. Without limiting the foregoing, specific examples of prohibited activities are theft,
swindling, embezzlement, indecency, crude, vile, or depraved acts that are intended to arouse or
to gratify the sexual desire of the actor (including posting of such acts via the internet, YouTube
and/or other social media), and drug or alcohol offenses. Your, or an employee of yours,
involvement in the manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, possession or use of an illegal drug
shall be deemed to be an offense within the ambit of this Article, giving Franchisor the right for
immediate termination without opportunity to cure. You shall be held responsible to us for any
act of an employee that gives us or the Pizza Guys brand a bad reputation.

() You fail, for a period of ten (10) days after notification of noncompliance,
to comply with any federal, state or local law or regulation applicable to the operation of the
franchise;

(2) You, or any of your employees, are found to have knowingly or
intentionally served or delivered alcoholic beverages to underage customers or served or delivered
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alcoholic beverages without valid and proper licenses, permits or written approval by us;

(2) You, after curing any failure in accordance with Section 11.01, engage in
the same noncompliance whether or not such noncompliance is corrected after notice;

(h) You repeatedly fail to comply with one or more requirements of this
Agreement, whether or not corrected after notice;

(1) Your store or your store premises are seized, taken over or foreclosed by a
government official in the exercise of his duties, or its operations are seized, taken over, or
foreclosed by a creditor, lienholder or lessor, provided that a final judgment against you remains
unsatisfied for thirty (30) days (unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed); or a levy
of execution has been made upon the franchise granted by this Agreement or upon any property
used in the franchised business and it is not discharged within five (5) days of such levy;

() You are convicted of a felony or any other criminal misconduct which is
relevant to the operation of the franchise;

(k) You fail to pay any franchise fee or other amount due to us or our affiliates
within five (5) days after receiving written notice that such fees are overdue;

Q) We make a reasonable determination that your continued operation of the
franchise will result in an imminent danger to public health or safety;

(m)  Upon auditing your computer system, We find customer’s credit card
numbers on file in the POS.

(n) If we find that you purposely reported incorrect sales; or

(o) You fail to permit us, our representatives, accountants, attorneys and other
agents to inspect and audit, without notice, during regular business hours your books and records.
Or, an inspection or audit discloses that actual Gross Sales exceed your reported Gross Sales, and
you fail to pay us: (a) the additional amount owed, (b) interest on said amount from the date
originally due until paid, and (c) if actual Gross Sales exceed your reported Gross Sales by 2% or
more, the cost of the inspections and audits which revealed the under-reported sales including, but
not limited to, our agents' fees, travel, meals and lodging.

ARTICLE 12: TERM, RENEWAL AND EXPIRATION

12.01 Term of Franchise. The term of the franchise is ten (10) years from the date of this
Agreement.

12.02 Renewal (or Extension). Provided that you have fully, faithfully and timely carried
out and performed all of your obligations under this Agreement and provided that refusal to renew
would not be permitted by the California Franchise Relations Act (California Business &
Professions Code section 20000 ef seq.) or, if refusal to renew would be permitted, provided that
we have not given you 180 days prior written notice of intent not to renew, you may renew the



25
franchise (or in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, you may extend the
franchise term) for unlimited successive terms of ten (10) years, each renewal (or extension) term
commencing upon the expiration of the then current term or renewal (or extension) term.

(a) Your Notice of Renewal (or Extension); Renewal/Extension Fee. To renew
(or in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, you may extend the franchise term)
you must give us written notice at least 180 days but not more than 270 days prior to the expiration
of the then current term or renewal (or extension) term (“Notice of Renewal/Extension”); and, at
the time of delivery of such notice, pay us a renewal fee equal to one-half (’2) of the then current
Initial Franchise Fee for Franchise Agreements (or in the event we are not then granting new
franchises, an extension fee of $12,500) (“Renewal/Extension Fee”).

(b) Terms of Renewal (or Extension). We and you must sign our then current form
of franchise agreement and all other documents required of new franchisees (or in the event that
we are not then granting new franchises, you must re-sign this Agreement and related documents).
The terms of the franchise, including the amount of the Weekly Franchise Fee, the Minimum
Monthly Advertising Expenditure and other fees shall be those set forth in the then current
franchise agreement (or in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, shall be those
set forth in this Agreement).

(©) Remodeling, Re-Equipping or Relocation. As a further condition of renewal (or
extension), if we require, you at your sole expense shall undertake to remodel your store pursuant
to Section 2.06. As a further condition of renewal (or extension), if we deem your store is in an
unsafe location, we may require you to relocate your store within your Exclusive Area to a location
pre-approved by us in accordance with Article 2. You shall bear the entire cost of relocating your
store.

12.03 Expiration Upon End of Term If Not Renewed (or Extended). We and you agree
that the franchise granted by this Agreement, if not renewed (or extended) in the manner set forth
above, shall expire at the end of such nonrenewed (or nonextended) term.

ARTICLE 13: EFFECT OF EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

13.01 Effect of Expiration or Termination. Upon expiration or termination of the
franchise the following shall occur immediately without further notice:

(a) Conclusion of Franchise. Your right to operate a Pizza Guys® store, to use any
part of the franchise system, the customer list, the recipes, the “Pizza Guys® ” mark and any other
trade name, trademark, service mark, logo or indicia designated by us, shall thereupon immediately
cease and you shall: (1) promptly pay us and our affiliates all moneys due; (2) promptly return to
us the customer list, the Store Operations Manual and all other materials furnished to you, together
with any other materials containing any trade name, trademark, service mark, logo or other indicia
encompassed by Section 7.01, any formative thereof or any name or mark potentially confusingly
similar thereto; any trade secret or copyright encompassed by Section 7.04; and any idea,
improvement or materials encompassed by Section 7.05; (3) not thereafter operate a Pizza Guys®
store, use any part of the franchise system, the customer list, the recipes, the “Pizza Guys® ” mark
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and any other trade name, trademark, service mark, logo or indicia designated by us or similar to
or likely to be confused with them; and (4) not thereafter disclose, reveal or publish to any person
any part of the customer list, our trade secrets, copyrights, or the franchise system.

(b) Right of Entry and Possession. You shall not for thirty (30) days, without our
prior written consent, remove any equipment, furnishings, fixtures, signs, inventory, leasehold
improvements or other property from your store premises. We shall have an immediate right to
enter and take possession of your store premises in order to maintain continuous operation of the
Pizza Guys® store, to provide for orderly change of management and disposition of the real and
personal property and to otherwise protect our interest, whether or not such right of entry and
possession is provided for in your store premises lease. If we do take over the store, you must
release yourself from the store premises lease. We have the right to take over the lease upon your
default.

(©) Option to Purchase. Except as provided in this section, upon a lawful
termination or nonrenewal of the franchise, We shall purchase from you, at the value of price paid,
minus depreciation, all inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings purchased or paid
for under the terms of the franchise agreement or any ancillary or collateral agreement by you to
us or our approved suppliers and sources, that are, at the time of the notice of termination or
nonrenewal, in the possession of you or used by you in the franchise business. We shall have the
right to receive clear title to and possession of all items purchased from you under this section.
We are not required to purchase any personalized items, inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures,
or furnishings not reasonably required to conduct the operation of the franchise business in
accordance with the franchise agreement or any ancillary or collateral agreement or to which you,
at the cessation of operation of the franchise business by you, cannot lawfully, or does not, grant
us clear title and possession upon our payment to you for the inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, or furnishings.

This section shall not apply: (1) when you decline a bona fide offer of renewal
from us; (2) if we do not prevent you from retaining control of the principal place of the franchise
business; (3) to any termination or nonrenewal of a franchise due to a publicly announced and
nondiscriminatory decision by us to completely withdraw from all franchise activity within the
relevant geographic market area in which the franchise is located; (4) if we and you mutually agree
in writing to terminate or not renew the franchise; (5) to any inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, or furnishings that are sold by you between the date of the notice of termination or
nonrenewal, and the cessation of operation of the franchise business, by you, pursuant to the
termination or nonrenewal.

Upon the termination or nonrenewal of the franchise, we may offset against the
amounts owed to you under this section any amounts owed by you to us.

(d) Survival of Provisions. Your conditions and promises (including, but not limited
to, those set forth in Article 8) which by their terms or by reasonable implication are to be observed
or performed, in whole or in part, after the expiration or termination of the franchise shall survive
the expiration or termination of the franchise.
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ARTICLE 14: TRANSFER

14.01 No Transfer Except as Expressly Permitted Herein. Except as expressly
permitted by this Article, no interest in the franchised business, this Agreement, your store or its
assets (except for sales in the usual course of business) and no interest of any of your legal or
beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers or directors or persons signing this Agreement
on behalf of you shall be sold, transferred, assigned or otherwise hypothecated, in whole or in part,
directly or indirectly whether voluntarily or by operation of law (all such hypothecations shall
hereinafter be collectively referred to as a “transfer”).

(a) Transfer Upon Death; Rights of Surviving Spouse, Heirs or Estate. Upon
your death (or the death of the majority partner or shareholder of a partnership or corporate
franchisee) the surviving spouse, heirs or representative of the estate of the deceased (or the
deceased majority partner or shareholder of a partnership or corporate franchisee) may participate
in the operation and ownership of the franchise under the terms of this Agreement for a reasonable
time, not to exceed 120 days, after the death. During that time the store must be operated by a
person who has completed our training and the surviving spouse, heirs or representative of the
estate of the deceased shall either:

(1) satisfy all of our then current qualifications and requirements for new
franchises (or in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, those qualifications and
requirements for the franchise under this Agreement) including satisfactory completion of the
Initial Training Program, at their expense; or

(2) transfer the franchise pursuant to Section /4.01(c) to a person who satisfies
our then current qualifications for new franchises (or in the event that we are not then granting
new franchises, those qualifications and requirements for the franchise under this Agreement).

The rights granted pursuant to this subsection shall be conditioned upon the surviving
spouse, heirs or representative of the estate of the deceased signing this Agreement and assuming
liability for and maintaining all standards and obligations of the franchise.

If, within the period set forth above, the surviving spouse, heirs or the representative of the
estate of the deceased fails to satisfy either provision (1) or (2) immediately above, we may
terminate this franchise as a failure to comply with a lawful requirement of the franchise within
the meaning of Section 10.01, herein and thereafter we may exercise our rights after termination
pursuant to Article 13.

(b) Transfer Upon Disability. If you become disabled and are not able to operate
the store, you may have a representative participate in the operation and ownership of the franchise
under the terms of this Agreement for a reasonable time, not to exceed 120 days, after the disability
occurs. During that time the store must be operated by a person approved by us.

If you do not have a representative to operate the store and/or your disability exceeds 120
days, we may terminate this franchise as a failure to comply with a lawful requirement of the
franchise within the meaning of Section 10.01, herein and thereafter we may exercise our rights
after termination pursuant to Article 13.
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(©) Transfer Upon Prior Written Consent; Transfer Fee; Our Right of First
Refusal. You may request, but we are not obligated to grant our consent to a proposed transfer. If
you desire to transfer:

(1) We must meet your proposed transferee(s) (referred to as “Buyer(s)” herein). You
must arrange for the personal meeting at our corporate offices at a mutually convenient time. Each
of your proposed Buyers must be present at the meeting.

(2) I, at the meeting, we preliminarily approve your proposed Buyer(s), we will provide
your proposed Buyer(s) with Franchise Application(s) and, if we are then granting new franchises,
our current franchise disclosure document. Your proposed Buyer(s) must thereupon sign and
deliver to us the franchise disclosure document receipt and, within 2 weeks thereafter, must
complete, sign and return to us the Franchise Applications(s) with financial information.

3) If, after reviewing their Franchise Application(s) and financial information, we
approve your proposed Buyer(s), you must provide us with your cashier's check (the “Transfer
Fee”) payable to us in an amount equal to '2 of our then current Initial Franchise Fee for Franchise
Agreements or $12,500 in the event we are not then granting new franchises if the proposed Buyer
is new to the franchise system, whichever is applicable and greater. The Transfer Fee is due after
our approval of your proposed buyer(s) but is nonrefundable even if for any reason, the proposed
transfer does not occur; and (A) your proposed Buyer(s) must sign our then current form of
franchise agreement and all other documents required of new franchises (or, in the event that we
are not then granting new franchises, your proposed Buyer(s) must re-sign this Agreement and
related documents) and (B) within two (2) weeks thereafter your proposed Buyer(s) must take our
Initial Training Program at the time and at the location specified by us. Also, if we are not
satisfied with the Phase I initial training by you to buyer, we, in our sole discretion, have the right
to make the buyer go through Phase I training again. (The Transfer Fee is nonrefundable even in
the event that the transfer does not, for any reason, occur.)

4) At the time of the Closing of the sale, you must have continued making all
advertising expenditures pursuant to Article 5.01(b) of this Agreement. We may withhold our
consent to the final transfer if you have not continued making all advertising expenditures through
the date of the Closing.

(5) At the time your proposed Buyer(s) has/have satisfactorily completed our Initial
Training Program and satisfied all of our then current qualifications and requirements for new
franchises (or in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, those qualifications and
requirements for the franchise under this Agreement) and you have performed all necessary
obligations, we shall have thirty (30) days to provide you written notice of our: (A) consent to the
proposed transfer, (B) denial of consent to the proposed transfer, or (C) exercise of our right of
first refusal to acquire the interest on the terms of the proposed transfer.

If we consent, the transfer may occur, but only between the identical transferor(s) (referred
to as “Seller(s)” herein) and Buyer(s) on the identical terms consented to.
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If we consent, but, for any reason, the transfer is not completed within sixty (60) days of
our consent, the proposed transfer shall be deemed withdrawn and all the provisions of this section
shall again become fully applicable as if such transfer had not been proposed and our right of first
refusal shall apply to any subsequent request for transfer but we shall not refund any part of the
Transfer Fee.

If we deny our consent, we shall state in writing our reasons therefor but shall not refund
any part of the Transfer Fee.

If we exercise our right of first refusal to purchase, we shall refund to you the entire amount
of the Transfer Fee.

If for any reason, your proposed Buyer(s) fail to satisfactorily complete our Initial Training
Program or to satisfy all of our then current qualifications and requirements for new franchises (or
in the event that we are not then granting new franchises, those qualifications and requirements for
the franchise under this Agreement), or you fail to perform all things required for the proposed
transfer as defined in this Agreement, within six (6) months of our receipt of the Transfer Fee, the
proposed transfer shall be deemed withdrawn and all the provisions of this section shall again
become fully applicable as if such transfer had not been proposed and our right of first refusal shall
apply to any subsequent request for transfer but we shall not refund any part of the Transfer Fee.

(d) Considerations. In considering a proposed transfer: You must allow us or our
representatives to inspect your store, your records and your operations; you must be in compliance
with our Store Operations Manual, as revised from time to time, and must not be in breach of this
Agreement, or any other agreement with us, our affiliates or representatives. You must provide
us with the account login credentials for the store’s business accounts such as Yelp, Business
Google, etc.; You cure any existing store deficiencies and upgrade or remodel your store as we
specify; Seller(s) and Buyer(s) must provide all documents and make all representations required
by us; if required by us, Seller(s) and/or Buyer(s) at their expense shall undertake to remodel your
store pursuant to Section 2.06 and said undertaking shall be secured by Seller(s) and Buyer(s) as
required by us; If we deem your store is in an unsafe location, Seller(s) and/or Buyer(s) shall
undertake to relocate your store within your Exclusive Area to a location pre-approved by us in
accordance with Article 2. You shall bear the entire cost of relocating your store; and Buyer(s)
must satisfy our then current qualifications for new franchises (or in the event that we are not then
granting new franchises, Buyer(s) must satisfy those qualifications and requirements for the
franchise under this Agreement).

14.02 Terms of the Franchise After Transfer. After transfer, the terms of the franchise,
including the amount of the Weekly Franchise Fee, Minimum Monthly Advertising Expenditure
and other fees shall be those set forth in the then current franchise agreement (or in the event that
we are not then granting new franchises those set forth in this Agreement).

14.03 Releases Upon Your Transfer. You will not be immediately released by a
transfer. You shall remain personally bound and liable to us for all monetary and nonmonetary
obligations of the Buyer(s) under this Agreement for a period of two (2) years after the closing
date of such transfer transaction. As a condition of transfer, you, your Buyer(s), and us shall sign
a Release & Indemnification Agreement, which, among other things, holds us and our affiliates
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and representatives harmless from any claim relating to the transfer and/or operation of the store
and the franchise.

14.04 Transfer by Us. This Agreement may be transferred by us or any successor. Upon
such transfer, we shall be deemed released from all liability to you and you shall look solely to our
transferee(s) for our performance of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 15: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

15.01 Nouns and Pronouns. The masculine of any pronoun shall include the feminine
and/or the neuter thereof, and the singular of any noun or pronoun shall include the plural, or vice

versa, wherever the context requires.

15.02 Article and Section Headings. Article and section headings used herein are for

reference only and shall not be employed to interpret the meaning of this Agreement.

15.03 Invalidity and Severability. If any part of this Agreement for any reason shall be
declared invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder not declared invalid,

which shall remain in full force and effect.

15.04 Notices. Any notice or request given or made pursuant to this Agreement:
(a) Shall be in writing;

(b) Shall be personally delivered, posted by registered, certified or other receipted mail
or delivered by telegram to the party's address on page 1 of this Agreement or, after your store has
first opened, to you solely at your store address or to such other address as such party may from
time to time designate in writing; and

(©) Shall contain a clearly stated reason for such notice. (Notices of Expiration shall
contain a clear statement of the reason for expiration and the effective date of such expiration.
Notices of Termination shall contain a clear statement of intent to terminate the franchise together
with: (1) the reasons therefor, and (2) the effective date of such termination.)

15.05 Agreement to Submit Disputes to a Referee Pursuant to the Provisions of
California Code of Civil Procedure §§638 through 645.1; Punitive and Noneconomic
Damages Not Awardable; Trademark Matters Not Arbitrable; Choice of Forum; Choice of
Law.

Except as specifically limited below, any dispute between you and us regarding this Agreement
and all matters relating to the validity, construction, performance and enforcement hereof shall be
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heard by a referee pursuant to the provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure §§638 through
645.1, inclusive, according to the following procedures:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

The parties shall agree upon a single referee who shall then try all issues, whether
of fact or law, and report a finding and judgment thereon. If the parties are unable
to agree upon a referee within ten (10) days of a written request to do so by any
party, then any party may thereafter seek to have a referee appointed pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure §§638 and 640;

The parties agree that the referee shall have the power to decide all issues of fact
and law and report his/her decision thereon, and to issue all legal and equitable
relief appropriate under the circumstances of the controversy before him/her;
provided, however, that to the extent the referee is unable to issue and/or enforce
any such legal and equitable relief, either party may petition the court to issue
and/or enforce such relief on the basis of the referee’s decision;

The California Evidence Code rules of evidence and procedure relating to the
conduct of the hearing, examination of witnesses and presentation of evidence
shall apply;

Any party desiring a stenographic record of the hearing may secure a court reporter
to attend the hearing; provided, the requesting party notifies the other parties of
the request and pays for the costs incurred for the court reporter;

The referee shall issue a written statement of decision which shall be reported to
the court in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedure §643 and mailed
promptly to the parties;

Judgment may be entered on the decision of the referee in accordance with
California Code of Civil Procedure §644, and the decision may be excepted to,
challenged and appealed according to law;

The parties shall promptly and diligently cooperate with one another and the
referee, and shall perform such acts as may be necessary to obtain a prompt and
expeditious resolution of the dispute or controversy in accordance with the terms
hereof; and

The cost of such proceeding, including but not limited to the referee’s fees, shall
initially be borne equally by the parties to the dispute or controversy. However,
the prevailing party in such proceeding shall be entitled, in addition to all other
costs, to recover its contribution for the costs of the reference and its reasonable
attorney’s fees as items of recoverable costs.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we or our affiliates may, but are not required to, seek
provisional and summary remedies including, but not limited to, writs of possession and
attachment, unlawful detainer, forcible eviction and detainer and the like, and injunctions and
temporary restraining orders in civil litigation proceedings. Any hearing shall be heard in
Sacramento, California. The forum for any legal action shall be the proper court of the state of
California in and for the County of Sacramento or the United States District Court for the Eastern
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District of California, Sacramento Branch.

15.06 Cost of Enforcement or Defense. Attorneys' fees shall not be recoverable as a
cost of any dispute submitted to referee. The referee's fees shall be borne by either you or us or by
both of you and us in such proportion as the referee(s) shall decide.

15.07 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of you and us hereto and our respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal
representatives, transferees, successors and assigns.

15.08 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes and contains the entire agreement
and understanding of you and us with respect to its subject matter. There are no representations,
undertakings, agreements, terms, or conditions not contained herein. Nothing in this or in any
related agreement, however, is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the franchise
disclosure document that we furnished to you.

15.09 Modification. This Agreement may be modified only by a writing referencing
this Agreement and stating that it is an amendment thereto. Such writing must be signed by
authorized representatives of the parties. Only our President is authorized to sign for us, and no
modification or amendment signed by any other representative of us shall be binding upon us.
We may unilaterally modify the Pizza Guys® menu, recipes, marks, methods, procedures, and
the Store Operations Manual as we deem advisable, all of which you acknowledge that we have
developed and own and will continue to develop and own.

ARTICLE 16: SIGNATURES; YOUR PERSONAL GUARANTEE

Each person signing this Agreement agrees, warrants and represents that the undersigned
constitutes all of your legal and beneficial owners, partners, shareholders, officers and directors
and that, together, they own the entire interest in this Agreement, in the business of your store and
initsincome. Youare required to inform Franchisor of all your partners, including silent partners.

Personal Guarantee: Each person signing this Agreement for franchisee, having read this
entire Agreement and being directly or indirectly beneficially interested in the store to be
conducted by the franchisee, and to induce us to enter into this franchise with franchisee, hereby
jointly and severally guarantee the performance of franchisee and each other person signing this
Agreement for franchisee including, without limitation, the performance of this Agreement and
any other agreement with us including the payment of all sums due hereunder or thereunder. Each
person signing this Agreement for franchisee agrees to sign the Unconditional, Irrevocable
Guaranty attached to this Agreement as Attachment A. Each person signing this Agreement for
franchisee hereby expressly waives any modification, amendment, extension or renewal of this
Agreement, the franchise granted hereby, and this guarantee and any notice thereof and waives
notice of default. Nothing herein shall be deemed to abrogate or impair any separate instrument of
guarantee or subordination which the undersigned may have previously signed or may
contemporaneously herewith or hereafter sign. This guarantee shall be considered a continuing
guarantee.

[Signature Pages followed on next page]
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FRANCHISEE

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)

(City State Zip)

(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone No.)

/

(SSN) (Date of Birth)

(Driver’s License No. and Issuing State)

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)
(City State
Zip)
/
(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone
No.)
/

(SSN) (Date of Birth)

(Driver’s License No. and Issuing State)

FRANCHISEE

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)

(City State Zip)

(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone No.)

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)
(City State
Zip)
/
(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone
No.)
/
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(SSN) (Date of Birth) (SSN) (Date
of Birth)
(Driver’s License No. and Issuing State) (Driver’s License No. and Issuing State)
FRANCHISOR

By our signatures below, we accept you as a Pizza Guys® franchisee.

PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By:

Shahpour M. Nejad, President



1
PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
ATTACHMENT A TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
UNCONDITIONAL, IRREVOCABLE GUARANTY

This Unconditional and Irrevocable Guaranty (“Guaranty”) is made as of
by the undersigned ("Guarantors") for the benefit of Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc., and its successors and assigns ("Franchisor”), to induce Pizza Guys to execute
that certain franchise agreement (‘“Agreement”) by Pizza Guys to
(“Franchisee™).

WHEREAS, Pizza Guys is not willing to execute the Agreement with Franchisee unless
the Guarantors sign and deliver this Guaranty to Pizza Guys and perform their obligations
hereunder; and

WHEREAS, each of the Guarantors will benefit personally if Franchisor extends a
franchise to Franchisee and each of the Guarantors has asked Franchisor to extend a franchise to
Franchisee;

NOW, THEREFORE, to induce Franchisor to sell a Pizza Guys franchise to Franchisee
and/or to otherwise extend credit to Franchisee from time to time, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Guarantors
hereby make the following guaranty to Franchisor:

1. Unconditional Guaranty of Payment. Guarantors, jointly and severally, unconditionally,
absolutely, irrevocably and to the same extent as if the undersigned had signed the
Agreement as Franchisee, assumes all liabilities, obligations and duties of Franchisee
accruing under the Agreement, and guarantees to Franchisor and Franchisor's successors
and assigns the full, prompt and complete performance of each and all of the terms,
covenants, conditions and provisions of the Agreement to be kept and performed by
Franchisee or Franchisee's successors or assigns, including the payment of all fees,
Promissory Notes, and any other charges to accrue thereunder and all damages that may
arise as a consequence of the nonperformance thereof. No act or thing need occur to
establish any Guarantor’s liability hereunder.

Each Guarantor hereby waives the right to require Franchisor to proceed against
Franchisee or any other party, to proceed against or to apply any security Franchisor
may hold, or to pursue any other remedy for Guarantor’s benefit. Each Guarantor
agrees that Franchisor may proceed against any Guarantor under this Guaranty
without pursuing or exhausting any remedies against Franchisee or any other party
and without proceeding against or applying any security Franchisor may hold.

2. Representations and Warranties. Each Guarantor represents and warrants to Franchisor
as follows: (a) Guarantor acknowledges that Franchisor would not extend a franchise
and/or any credit to Franchisee without this Guaranty; (b) Guarantor has a direct and
substantial economic interest in Franchisee and expects to derive substantial benefits
therefrom; (c) Guarantor is not insolvent, as defined in the US Bankruptcy Code, and will
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not become insolvent as a result of this Guaranty; and, (d) Guarantor has reviewed and
approved all the terms and conditions of the Agreement and this Guaranty and consulted
with legal counsel.

Rights of Franchisor. Franchisor may deal exclusively with Franchisee in all matters
relating to the Agreement without notice to and/or the approval of any Guarantor(s). Each
Guarantor shall remain jointly and severally liable regardless of any act or omission by
Franchisor which might otherwise directly or indirectly result, by operation of law or
otherwise, in the discharge or release in whole or in part of the Franchisee, any other
Guarantor, or any other person, or the discharge, release, or impairment of any collateral
now or hereafter held as security in connection with the Agreement. This Guaranty remains
fully enforceable irrespective of any defenses which the Franchisee may assert, including
without limitation, the failure of consideration, breach of warranty, payment, statute of
frauds, statute of limitations, accord and satisfaction, and usury. Guarantors agree that
Franchisor may, in its sole and absolute discretion and without prejudice to or in any way
limiting or lessening its rights under this Guaranty, do or fail to do any of the following
one or more times, without notice to or the approval of any one or more of the Guarantors,
and without diminishing, altering, or otherwise affecting the liability of each Guarantor
hereunder: (a) grant extensions of time or other indulgences to Franchisee, (b) alter or
amend any instrument of the Agreement, (c) authorize the sale of any security, whether
real or personal property, (d) take additional or substituted security, whether real or
personal property, (e) discharge or release any party or parties, (f) realize on or release any
security, (g) accept partial payments, (h) accept or make compositions or other
arrangements or file or refrain from filing a claim in any bankruptcy proceeding of
Franchisee or other Guarantor.

Waiver of Defenses. Each Guarantor hereby waives, to the extent permitted by law, any
and all defenses which may now or hereafter exist by virtue of any statute, statute of
limitations, valuation, stay or moratorium law or other similar law now or hereafter in
effect; including without limitation, any defense based on any of the following: (a) all rights
and benefits under Section 2809 of the California Civil Code, if applicable, purporting to
reduce the undersigned’s obligation as guarantor in proportion to the principal obligation
hereby guaranteed, (b) the failure or invalidity of, or any defect in, documents, (c) any
disability or other defense of the Franchisee, any other Guarantor, or any other person, (d)
any error or omission in connection with Franchisor’s administration of the Franchise
documents or of the Agreement, (e) the loss or impairment of any right of subrogation, (f)
the foreclosure of any collateral; it being intended that this Guaranty shall survive the
realization upon any collateral, including without limitation nonjudicial foreclosure.
Guarantor shall be and shall remain liable for any deficiency remaining after foreclosure
of any mortgage or security interest securing payment of the Agreement, whether or not
the liability of Franchisee or any other obligor for such deficiency is discharged pursuant
to statute or judicial decision. Without limiting the foregoing, each Guarantor hereby
further waives: (i) the extension of the obligations of the Guaranty arising by reason of the
institution of proceedings by or against Franchisor under or pursuant to applicable
bankruptcy laws and (ii) any right to participate in any security.

Waiver of Right of Subrogation. Until the Agreement is paid in full, each Guarantor
hereby waives all rights that such Guarantor may now have and/or may acquire hereafter,
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whether by subrogation, contribution, reimbursement, recourse, exoneration, contract or
otherwise, to recover from the Franchisee and/or from any property of the Franchisee any
sums paid under this Guaranty. ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Waiver of Right of Reimbursement. Each Guarantor waives any right of reimbursement,
contribution, recourse, and/or any other right or remedy of Guarantor against Franchisee,
any other Guarantor, and/or any other person to recover amounts which any Guarantor is
obligated to pay under this Guaranty, except for any right of subrogation after payment of
the Agreement in full.

Bankruptcy and Assignment of Rights. If any payment made by Franchisee to Franchisor
is reclaimed in a bankruptcy, or receivership proceeding, Guarantors, jointly and severally
shall pay to Franchisor the amount so reclaimed. Each Guarantor assigns to Franchisor all
rights such Guarantor may have in any proceeding involving Franchisee under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code and/or under any receivership or insolvency proceedings involving
Franchisee, whether or not such rights relate to this Guaranty. Such assignment shall not
diminish, alter, or otherwise affect the liability of each Guarantor under this Guaranty.

Attorneys' Fees and Collection Expenses. Each Guarantor agrees to pay or reimburse
Franchisor on demand for all legal fees and other costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor
in endeavoring to collect and enforce the Agreement and/or in enforcing this Guaranty,
together with interest at the maximum rate permitted by law.

Joint and Several Obligations; Community Property. The obligations of each
Guarantor under this Guaranty are joint and several among the persons signing as
Guarantor. Franchisor, in its sole discretion, may enforce this Guaranty against any one or
more of the undersigned persons as Guarantor. If any of the undersigned persons are
married, in addition to signing this Guaranty as individual persons and binding their
respective separate property, they sign this Guaranty on behalf of their marital community
and bind their community property.

Waivers by Guarantor. Each Guarantor hereby waives any and all defenses and
discharges otherwise available to a surety, guarantor and/or accommodation co-obligor.
Each Guarantor waives any and all defenses, claims, setoff and discharges of the
Franchisee and/or of any other obligor pertaining to the Agreement, except the defense of
discharge by payment in full.

Each Guarantor will not assert, plead or seek to enforce against Franchisor any claim,
defense and/or setoff available to Guarantor against the Franchisee. Each Guarantor hereby
waives any right to assert against Franchisor as a defense, counterclaim, setoff or
crossclaim, any defense (legal or equitable), counterclaim, setoff or crossclaim which such
Guarantor may now or at any time hereafter have under applicable law, rule, arrangement
or relationship against Franchisee, Franchisor and/or anyone else. Each Guarantor hereby
waives all defenses, counterclaims and setoffs of every kind and nature whatsoever arising,
directly or indirectly, from the present or future lack of perfection, sufficiency, validity or
enforceability of the Agreement, its documentation or any security interest with respect to
the Agreement with Franchisee, any of its assets or properties and/or any other person.
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Each Guarantor waives all defenses based on any and/or all of the following: (i)
Franchisee’s dissolution or loss, cancellation or forfeiture of its legal status or good
standing for any reason whatsoever; (ii) Franchisee’s application for or consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of Franchisee and/or of all or any part of its
assets; (ii1) Franchisee’s inability or written admission of the inability to pay its obligations
as they mature; (iv) any general assignment by Franchisee for the benefit of creditors, (v)
adjudication of Franchisee as bankrupt or insolvent, (vi) the filing by Franchisee of a
voluntary petition in bankruptcy or a petition or any answer seeking reorganization or any
arrangement for the benefit of creditors or taking advantage of any insolvency law in its
capacity as a franchisee; (vii) the filing against Franchisee of any involuntary petition
seeking to subject Franchisee to any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws, (viii)
Franchisee interposing an answer admitting the material allegations of any such petition,
and (ix) entry of an order, judgment or decree against Franchisee by any court approving a
petition seeking the reorganization of Franchisee or the appointment of a receiver, trustee
or liquidator for Franchisee or of all or of a substantial part of the assets of Franchisee.

Each Guarantor waives diligence, presentment for payment, protest and demand, notice of
protest, dishonor, acceleration, and nonpayment or nonperformance, notice of the
incurrence of indebtedness by Franchisee, notice of acceptance of this Guaranty, notice of
any amendment or extension of the obligations of Franchisee under the Agreement, notice
that Franchisor, Franchisee or any other person has taken or omitted to take any action
under the Agreement or other instrument, notice of any amendment of any instrument at
any time constituting or relating to security for obligations incurred under the Agreement,
and notice of the occurrence of any default under the Agreement or any such instrument.

Insolvency of Guarantor. The adjudication of bankruptcy of any Guarantor shall not
revoke this Guaranty. If any Guarantor shall be or become insolvent (however defined),
then Franchisor shall have the right to declare immediately due and payable, and each
Guarantor will forthwith pay to Franchisor on demand, the full amount of all of the
obligations under the Agreement, whether due and payable or unmatured, until all of such
obligations have been paid in full to Franchisor. If any of the Guarantors voluntarily
commences or there is commenced involuntarily against any of the Guarantors a case under
the United States Bankruptcy Code, the full amount of all the obligations, whether due and
payable or unmatured, shall be immediately due and payable without demand or notice
thereof.

12. Miscellaneous.

a. This Guaranty may be delegated or assigned by Franchisor, in any manner, without
affecting any Guarantor’s liability under this Guaranty. Guarantors may not assign
or delegate any rights or duties owed under this Guaranty.

b. This Guaranty shall be effective upon delivery to Franchisor, without further act,
condition or acceptance by Franchisor, is binding upon and enforceable against
each Guarantor's heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns and shall inure
to the benefit of Franchisor, its successors and assigns.
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This Guaranty is governed by the laws of the State of California. Each Guarantor
consents to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California.

. This Guaranty constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes any
prior or contemporaneous agreements whether oral or written between them with
respect to the subject matter hereof. This Guaranty may be changed if at all, only if
agreed to in writing by all of the Guarantors and Franchisor.

If any provision of this Guaranty is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such provision
shall be considered severed from the rest of this Guaranty and the remaining
provisions shall continue in full force and effect as if the invalid provision had not
been included.

All notices, requests, demands, and other communications required or permitted to
be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given
if sent by facsimile or if delivered by messenger or courier delivery, or sent by first
class mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt requested, as set
forth below:

If to:

If to:

If to Franchisor:

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.
2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742
Phone No.: 852-2222

Fax No.: 857-1100

. Waiver of Right to Jury Trial. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE

TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING INVOLVING,
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING
IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT
OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH THIS GUARANTY OR THE
RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER.

. Each Guarantor shall deliver to Franchisor all financial information concerning the
Guarantor as may be requested by Franchisor, including without limitation, a
current balance sheet of Guarantor and a statement of all income and expense for
the twelve calendar months ended on the date of such balance sheet and monthly or
less frequent updates of such financial information within seven (7) business days
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from (i) the date of this agreement and (ii) from the date of any request by
Franchisor. Failure to comply with the financial information obligation set forth in
this subparagraph (h) or material deterioration in the financial condition of any
Guarantor, as determined by Franchisor, shall give Franchisor the right to demand
immediate payment of the obligations from any one or more of the Guarantors as
selected by Franchisor.

GUARANTORS ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD
THE TERMS OF THIS GUARANTY, THEY HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO BE OR
WERE REPRESENTED BY INDEPENDENT COUNSEL PRIOR TO EXECUTING THIS
GUARANTY, AND THEY HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THIS GUARANTY.

“GUARANTORS”
Name of Guarantor Name of Guarantor
Signature of Guarantor Signature of Guarantor

“Franchisor”, the Beneficiary

PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By:

Shahpour Nejad, President
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
ATTACHMENT B TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

VIRTUAL KITCHEN ADDENDA TO THE PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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CALZONE.LIFE VIRTUAL KITCHEN ADDENDUM TO THE
PI1ZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Virtual Kitchen Addendum to the Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. Franchise Agreement (“Virtual
Kitchen Addendum”) is made and entered into effective
(“Effective Date”), by and between ("Franchisee" or “You”) and Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc. ("Franchisor").

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Franchisee and Franchisor entered into a Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. Franchise
Agreement on for Franchisee’s right to operate a Pizza Guys franchised business in

(the “Franchise Agreement”);

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed and will continue to develop a new product offering named
“Calzone.life” (hereinafter “Calzone.life Offering”) that Franchisor is offering to, but not requiring,
Franchisee to operate from Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business;

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to the Franchise Agreement, pursuant to which
Franchisee owns and operates a Pizza Guys franchised business. Franchisee has requested the right to
operate a Virtual Kitchen solely for the purpose of preparation and delivery of Calzone.life menu items to
be sold only through third-party delivery vendors (the “Virtual Kitchen™) in a kitchen space owned and
operated under the Franchise Agreement as a Pizza Guys store.

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee desire to amend Franchisee’s current Franchise
Agreement to provide for certain additions to the Franchise Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor is willing to accommodate Franchisee’s request upon the terms and
conditions contained in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and undertaking set forth herein,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby,
the parties hereby mutually agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. The above preamble and recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Addendum.

2. All references to the “Store Premises” in the Franchise Agreement shall also mean the Virtual
Kitchen as defined herein.

3. The right to operate the Virtual Kitchen shall be limited to operation only at the Store Premises.
The right to operate this Virtual Kitchen shall not be deemed a granting of the right by Franchisor to
Franchisee to operate any other virtual kitchens, either currently or in the future. For purposes of this Virtual
Kitchen Addendum, the term ‘“Virtual Kitchen” shall mean a foodservice business under the name
“Calzone.life” that operates without dining areas that offer delivery using approved third-party delivery
services to receive orders and deliver meals to customers.

4. Term. Franchisee shall have the right to operate under this Virtual Kitchen Addendum for a period
of one (1) year from the Effective Date, unless sooner terminated hereunder. This Agreement shall
automatically renew on the anniversary of the Effective Date for additional one (1) year periods unless
Franchisee provides Franchisor with written notice to not renew at least sixty (60) days prior to the
anniversary of the Effective Date.
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5. Initial Fee. Franchisee shall not owe any initial fee to Franchisor for the right to operate under this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum.
6. Costs. The Calzone.life Offering will include certain new equipment, inventory/food, logos,

configurations, systems and/or technology solutions (including, without limitation, hardware, software, and
firmware). The estimated costs of the required components are approximately five hundred dollars ($500)
up front. Ongoing costs will vary based on your operations and the volume of products sold. Operation of
the Calzone.life Offering entails financial, operational and other risks that you agree to assume. There is no
assurance or guarantee as to the profitability or success of the operation of the Calzone.life Offering, and
Franchisor makes no representation of any kind in this regard. You represent that you have made your own
independent assessment of the operation of the Calzone.life Offering and assume any and all financial and
other risks associated therewith.

7. Grant. Franchisor hereby grants Franchisee, upon receipt of this signed Virtual Kitchen
Addendum, the right to add and incorporate the Calzone.life Offering into Franchisee’s existing Pizza Guys
franchised business using the marks, recipes, décor, marketing and procedures under the Calzone.life trade
name, trademark and other commercial symbols developed by Franchisor.

8. Location. Franchisee shall have the right to add and incorporate the Calzone.life Offering solely at
Franchisee’s existing Pizza Guys franchised business’ store premises as defined in the Franchise
Agreement.

9. Delivery Territory. Franchisee may not offer or serve products under the Calzone.life Offering to
customers inside of Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business or for customer pick-up. Franchisee will
only offer off-site delivery services, using only those approved third-party delivery services, to customers
located within the area as shown in the attached Delivery Area exhibit (“Delivery Area”). Franchisee may
not provide delivery services itself through its own staff or independent contractors without Franchisor’s
prior written approval, which Franchisor may grant or deny in its sole discretion for any reason or no reason
whatsoever. Franchisee may not actively solicit customers outside of the Delivery Area with mailings,
coupon drops or similar services and/or methods. Franchisor may adjust the Delivery Area to account for
changes in vehicular traffic patterns, other operational considerations related to control of product quality,
or the subsequent grant of a franchise to be located in a geographically proximate area.

10. Third-party Delivery Services.

a. Franchisee must contract with a third-party(ies) to provide delivery services. Franchisee is
responsible for securing an agreement from the third-party service provider pursuant to which the service
provider agrees to restrict their delivery services within the Delivery Area.

b. Franchisee shall not supply the third-party delivery service provider(s) with the boundaries
of the Delivery Area. Franchisor shall have the sole right and responsibility to provide the third-party
delivery service provider(s) with the boundaries of the Delivery Area. If Franchisee is found to have
modified the boundaries of the Delivery Area with any third-party delivery service provider, Franchisor
shall have the right to immediately terminate this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all of Franchisee’s rights
hereunder.

c. Franchisee must supply Franchisor with all usernames and passwords that Franchisee
utilizes with third-party delivery service providers within 24-hours of creation and/or modification of such
account. Franchisee’s failure to provide such information shall result in immediate termination of this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all of Franchisee’s rights hereunder as stated in Section 19 herein. If
possible, and upon request by Franchisor, Franchisee shall take such necessary steps with the third-party
delivery service provider(s) to grant Franchisor unlimited, managerial, access to Franchisee’s account(s).

d. Franchisee may suggest or nominate new third-party delivery service providers at no
additional charge. Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold is consent to a new third-party delivery
service provider(s) so long as the new third-party delivery service provider(s) meet Franchisor’s standards
and specifications as revised from time to time. Franchisor’s designation, approval, disapproval or failure
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to disapprove of a new third-party delivery service provider(s) shall not constitute its warranty or guarantee
of the new third-party delivery service provider(s) solvency or the quality of the new third-party delivery
service provider(s) ability to perform, and Franchisee releases, indemnifies and agrees to defend Franchisor
from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, the same.

11. Weekly Franchise Fee.

a. All tickets for Calzone.life sales must be entered into the point-of-sale system immediately
for reporting and tracking purposes. Failure or refusal to enter tickets into the point-of-sale system
immediately will be grounds to immediate termination pursuant to Section 11 herein.

b. You shall combine all Calzone.life Gross Sales from the Calzone.life Offering with that of
your Pizza Guys franchised business and pay to us the Weekly Franchise Fee as stated in your Franchise
Agreement.

c. “Calzone.life Gross Sales” means all revenue and other compensation, including catering
and delivery, derived from your business exclusive of 1) sales taxes actually paid by you to governmental
authorities and 2) authorized “complimentary items” as defined in the Store Operations Manual from time
to time. Sales for checks or credit cards shall be treated as occurring for the full price in the week during
which the sale is made irrespective of the time when Franchisee actually receives payment (whether full or
partial) therefore. Gross Sales under the Calzone.life Offering shall not exclude delivery services, fees, or
commissions due to third-party delivery services.

12. Social media, website hosting, ad words, etc. We, or one of our affiliates, will provide support
for website hosting and updates, email hosting, and social media management. You will pay us our then-
current monthly fee for these services at the same time, and in the same manner, as your Weekly Franchise
Fee. We reserve the right to increase or reduce this fee upon 30-days written notice to you.

13. Marketing Fees. You are required to spend on advertising a minimum of $1,000 per month (the
“Marketing Fees”). The Marketing Fees are in addition to any other amounts spent to advertise your Pizza
Guys franchised business. The Marketing Fees must be directed solely for advertising the Calzone.life
Offering and may not be comingled or cobranded with your Pizza Guys franchised business. We reserve
the right to require that you pay the Marketing Fees to us for the purposes of performing advertising on
your behalf. If we exercise the right to collect the Marketing Fees and perform all advertising on your
behalf, we reserve the right to combine your Marketing Fees with those of neighboring franchisees and
perform larger advertising campaigns that market to multiple territories owned and operated by multiple
franchisees.

14. Initial Training. Prior to offering products under the Calzone.life Offering, we or our
representatives shall train at least one (1) person signing this Virtual Kitchen Addendum or your general
manager at a location selected by us. We will offer one (1) day of training no later than two weeks prior to
opening your Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen (“Initial Training”) and two (2) days of training during or
immediately after the opening of your Calzone.life Virtual Kitchen (“Opening Training”). You shall pay us
$250 per day for the Initial Training and Opening Training. You shall not be permitted to offer products
under the Calzone.life Offering until at least one (1) person signing this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, or your
general manager have successfully completed our Initial Training. You will be responsible for training your
employees. Any additional training requested shall be subject to all conditions and fees as stated in the
Franchise Agreement.

15. Hours of Operation. Franchisee shall operate the Calzone.life Offering during the same hours of
operation as Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business, unless changed by Franchisor in its sole
discretion.

16. Operations. You will operate the Virtual Kitchen in strict conformity with the Franchise
Agreement, any existing or future operations manual for the Calzone.life Offering, and all such other
standards and specifications prescribed by Franchisor. You shall fully implement all of the equipment and
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operational components necessary for the operation of the Virtual Kitchen. Any proposed deviation from
Franchisor’s prescribed standards and specifications must be submitted in advance to Franchisor for its
review and written approval, which approval may be withheld in Franchisor’s sole discretion. Failure to
comply with Franchisor’s prescribed standards and specifications, as they relate to the Calzone.life
Offering, without specific prior written approval from Franchisor may result in a default under this Virtual
Kitchen Addendum and/or the Franchise Agreement, and may disqualify you from further participation in
the operation of the Calzone.life Offering, in addition to any other rights or remedies the Franchisor may
have under the Franchise Agreement and this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

17. Mystery Shoppers. We shall have the right, but not the obligation, to implement a “Mystery
Shopper Program” and charge Franchisee a fee to participate in the program based upon the portion of the
costs allocated to Franchisee.

18. Prices.

a. You shall determine the prices you charge your customers for all goods and services. You
are not required to participate in special promotional programs. If you choose to participate in special
promotional programs you are required to participate for the entire duration of the program and you shall
charge customers the exact amount of the promotional price for the duration of the special promotional
program. If you do not want to participate in special promotional programs offered from time to time, you
must notify us in advance.

b. When two or more locations within a Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”) have been
established, those locations must agree on prices charged for all Calzone.life products. If these locations
cannot agree collectively on prices charged for all Calzone.life products, then the owners of those locations
agree to appoint Franchisor as the decisionmaker and grant Franchisor the authority determine the prices to
be set by all applicable locations.

19. Termination. In addition to its rights of termination under the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor
reserves the right to discontinue your rights to operate the Virtual Kitchen at any time upon: (a) your failure
to comply with any of the terms of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, including the failure to pay all requisite
fees identified herein or in the Franchise Agreement; (b) any default by you under this Virtual Kitchen
Addendum or the Franchise Agreement; (c) any instances, in Franchisor’s sole determination, of food
safety, cleanliness or employee safety concerns whether associated with the Pizza Guy brand or Calzone.life
brand; (d) any instance, whether intentional or not, in which you are found to have failed or refused to enter
tickets into the point-of-sale system; (e) any such other circumstance that Franchisor deems to reflect
negatively on or harm the Pizza Guys or Calzone.life brands, goodwill, and/or Marks; and/or (f) if the
operation of the Calzone.life Offering by you shows a reduction in performance or profits of your Pizza
Guys franchised business.

20. Confidentiality. Franchisor considers information related to the Calzone.life Offering to be
proprietary and confidential information. You and your organization will keep this information in strict
confidence in accordance with the confidentiality provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement and will
not disclose such information to any third-party with Franchisor’s prior written consent.

21. Assumption of Risk. You assume all risk of liability arising out of or otherwise connected with
the Calzone.life Offering, any equipment, configurations, systems, and/or technology solutions related to
or specified for the Calzone.life Offering. In additional to your obligations under Article 9.03
(Indemnification), you hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor, and each of its respective
affiliates, successors, assigns, subsidiaries, officers, directors, employees and agents, from any and all
claims, judgments, actions or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), arising out of or otherwise
connected with the Calzone.life Offering and those delivery services provided therefrom, any equipment,
configurations, systems and/or technology solutions related to or specified for the Calzone.life Offering.
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22. Additional Obligations. Franchisee acknowledges that this Virtual Kitchen Addendum allows
Franchisor to impose additional obligations on Franchisee, as set forth herein. Franchisee also
acknowledges that such additional obligations may deviate from the requirements set forth in its Pizza Guys
operational policies and procedures.

23. Remaining Articles of the Franchise Agreement. All of the terms and conditions of the Franchise
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, except as amended by this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

24. Entire Agreement. This Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all other written agreements expressly
referenced in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, represent the entire understanding and agreement between
the parties on the subject matter of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and supersede all other negotiations,
understandings and representations, if any, made between the parties. No representations, inducements,
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, if any, not embodied in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all
other written agreements concerning this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and expressly referenced in this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum are of any effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Franchisor and Franchisee have executed this Virtual Kitchen
Addendum effective as of the date set forth in the preamble of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
PI1ZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
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DELIVERY AREA EXHIBIT
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PI1ZZA PIATTA VIRTUAL KITCHEN ADDENDUM TO THE
PI1ZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Virtual Kitchen Addendum to the Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. Franchise Agreement (“Virtual
Kitchen Addendum”) is made and entered into effective
(“Effective Date”), by and between ("Franchisee" or “You”) and Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc. ("Franchisor").

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Franchisee and Franchisor entered into a Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. Franchise
Agreement on for Franchisee’s right to operate a Pizza Guys franchised business in

(the “Franchise Agreement”);

WHEREAS, Franchisor has developed and will continue to develop a new product offering named
“Pizza Piatta” (hereinafter “Pizza Piatta Offering”) that Franchisor is offering to, but not requiring,
Franchisee to operate from Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business;

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to the Franchise Agreement, pursuant to which
Franchisee owns and operates a Pizza Guys franchised business. Franchisee has requested the right to
operate a Virtual Kitchen solely for the purpose of preparation and delivery of Pizza Piatta menu items to
be sold only through third-party delivery vendors (the “Virtual Kitchen™) in a kitchen space owned and
operated under the Franchise Agreement as a Pizza Guys store.

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee desire to amend Franchisee’s current Franchise
Agreement to provide for certain additions to the Franchise Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor is willing to accommodate Franchisee’s request upon the terms and
conditions contained in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and undertaking set forth herein,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby,
the parties hereby mutually agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. The above preamble and recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Addendum.

2. All references to the “Store Premises” in the Franchise Agreement shall also mean the Virtual
Kitchen as defined herein.

3. The right to operate the Virtual Kitchen shall be limited to operation only at the Store Premises.
The right to operate this Virtual Kitchen shall not be deemed a granting of the right by Franchisor to
Franchisee to operate any other virtual kitchens, either currently or in the future. For purposes of this Virtual
Kitchen Addendum, the term “Virtual Kitchen” shall mean a foodservice business under the name “Pizza
Piatta” that operates without dining areas that offer delivery using approved third-party delivery services to
receive orders and deliver meals to customers.

4. Term. Franchisee shall have the right to operate under this Virtual Kitchen Addendum for a period
of one (1) year from the Effective Date, unless sooner terminated hereunder. This Agreement shall
automatically renew on the anniversary of the Effective Date for additional one (1) year periods unless
Franchisee provides Franchisor with written notice to not renew at least sixty (60) days prior to the
anniversary of the Effective Date.
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5. Initial Fee. Franchisee shall not owe any initial fee to Franchisor for the right to operate under this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum.
6. Costs. The Pizza Piatta Offering will include certain new packaging and supplies. Ongoing costs

will vary based on your operations and the volume of products sold. Operation of the Pizza Piatta Offering
entails financial, operational and other risks that you agree to assume. There is no assurance or guarantee
as to the profitability or success of the operation of the Pizza Piatta Offering, and Franchisor makes no
representation of any kind in this regard. You represent that you have made your own independent
assessment of the operation of the Pizza Piatta Offering and assume any and all financial and other risks
associated therewith.

7. Grant. Franchisor hereby grants Franchisee, upon receipt of this signed Virtual Kitchen
Addendum, the right to add and incorporate the Pizza Piatta Offering into Franchisee’s existing Pizza Guys
franchised business using the marks, recipes, décor, marketing and procedures under the Pizza Piatta trade
name, trademark and other commercial symbols developed by Franchisor.

8. Location. Franchisee shall have the right to add and incorporate the Pizza Piatta Offering solely at
Franchisee’s existing Pizza Guys franchised business’ store premises as defined in the Franchise
Agreement.

9. Delivery Territory. Franchisee may not offer or serve products under the Pizza Piatta Offering to
customers inside of Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business or for customer pick-up. Franchisee will
only offer off-site delivery services, using only those approved third-party delivery services, to customers
located within the area as shown in the attached Delivery Area exhibit (“Delivery Area”). Franchisee may
not provide delivery services itself through its own staff or independent contractors without Franchisor’s
prior written approval, which Franchisor may grant or deny in its sole discretion for any reason or no reason
whatsoever. Franchisee may not actively solicit customers outside of the Delivery Area with mailings,
coupon drops or similar services and/or methods. Franchisor may adjust the Delivery Area to account for
changes in vehicular traffic patterns, other operational considerations related to control of product quality,
or the subsequent grant of a franchise to be located in a geographically proximate area.

10. Third-party Delivery Services.

a. Franchisee must contract with a third-party(ies) to provide delivery services. Franchisee is
responsible for securing an agreement from the third-party service provider pursuant to which the service
provider agrees to restrict their delivery services within the Delivery Area.

b. Franchisee shall not supply the third-party delivery service provider(s) with the boundaries
of the Delivery Area. Franchisor shall have the sole right and responsibility to provide the third-party
delivery service provider(s) with the boundaries of the Delivery Area. If Franchisee is found to have
modified the boundaries of the Delivery Area with any third-party delivery service provider, Franchisor
shall have the right to immediately terminate this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all of Franchisee’s rights
hereunder.

c. Franchisee must supply Franchisor with all usernames and passwords that Franchisee
utilizes with third-party delivery service providers within 24-hours of creation and/or modification of such
account. Franchisee’s failure to provide such information shall result in immediate termination of this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all of Franchisee’s rights hereunder as stated in Section 20 herein. If
possible, and upon request by Franchisor, Franchisee shall take such necessary steps with the third-party
delivery service provider(s) to grant Franchisor unlimited, managerial, access to Franchisee’s account(s).

d. Franchisee may suggest or nominate new third-party delivery service providers at no
additional charge. Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold is consent to a new third-party delivery
service provider(s) so long as the new third-party delivery service provider(s) meet Franchisor’s standards
and specifications as revised from time to time. Franchisor’s designation, approval, disapproval or failure
to disapprove of a new third-party delivery service provider(s) shall not constitute its warranty or guarantee
of the new third-party delivery service provider(s) solvency or the quality of the new third-party delivery
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service provider(s) ability to perform, and Franchisee releases, indemnifies and agrees to defend Franchisor
from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, the same.

11. Weekly Franchise Fee.

a. All tickets for Pizza Piatta sales must be entered into the point-of-sale system immediately
for reporting and tracking purposes. Failure or refusal to enter tickets into the point-of-sale system
immediately will be grounds to immediate termination pursuant to Section 20 herein.

b. You shall combine all Pizza Piatta Gross Sales from the Pizza Piatta Offering with that of
your Pizza Guys franchised business and pay to us the Weekly Franchise Fee as stated in your Franchise
Agreement.

c. “Pizza Piatta Gross Sales” means all revenue and other compensation, including catering
and delivery, derived from your business exclusive of 1) sales taxes actually paid by you to governmental
authorities and 2) authorized “complimentary items” as defined in the Store Operations Manual from time
to time. Sales for checks or credit cards shall be treated as occurring for the full price in the week during
which the sale is made irrespective of the time when Franchisee actually receives payment (whether full or
partial) therefore. Gross Sales under the Pizza Piatta Offering shall not exclude delivery services, fees, or
commissions due to third-party delivery services.

12. Social media, website hosting, ad words, etc. We, or one of our affiliates, will provide support
for website hosting and updates, email hosting, and social media management. You will pay us our then-
current monthly fee for these services at the same time, and in the same manner, as your Weekly Franchise
Fee. We reserve the right to increase or reduce this fee upon 30-days written notice to you.

13. Pizza Piatta Brand Fund.

a. We have established the Pizza Piatta Brand Fund for the development of advertising,
marketing, and public relations programs and materials as we deem appropriate. We have the right to direct
all advertising, media placement, marketing and public relations programs and activities financed by the
Pizza Piatta Brand Fund, with final discretion over the strategic direction, creative concepts, materials and
endorsements used and the geographic, market and media placement and allocation. You agree to
participate in all advertising, marketing, promotions, research and public relations programs instituted by
the Pizza Piatta Brand Fund. Among the programs, concepts, and expenditures for which we may utilize
the Pizza Piatta Brand Fund monies are: (1) creative development and production of print ads, commercials,
radio spots, point of purchase materials, direct mail pieces, door hangers, free standing inserts, brochures,
logo wear, labeling, video, audio, and written materials and electronic media, and other advertising and
promotional materials; (2) media placement and buying, including all associated expenses and fees;
(3) administering regional and multi-regional marketing and advertising programs; (4) market research and
customer satisfaction surveys, including the use of secret shoppers; (5) the creative development of, and
actual production associated with, premium items, giveaways, promotions, sweepstakes, contests, public
relation events, and charitable or nonprofit events; (6) creative development of signage, posters, and wall
graphics; (7) recognition and awards events and programs including periodic national and regional
conventions and meetings; (8) design, establishment, and maintenance of websites, extranets, intranets,
search rankings, social media profiles, mobile application and other digital marketing; (9) retention and
payment of personalities engaged as spokespersons, advertising and promotional agencies, endorsement
contracts, and other outside advisors including retainer and management fees; (10) sponsorship of sporting,
charitable, or similar events; (11) review of locally produced marketing materials; (12) list acquisition and
development; (13) association dues; (14) affinity program development; (15) development of third party
facilities for the development of local advertising; and (16) public relations and community involvement
activities and programs.

b. During the first three (3) months after execution of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum you are
required to contribute a minimum of one thousand dollars ($1,000) per month for advertising the Pizza
Piatta Offering;



17
¢. During months four (4) through six (6) after execution of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum
you are required to contribute a minimum of six hundred dollars ($600) per month the Pizza Piatta Offering;
d. Beginning in the seventh (7™) month after execution of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum,
you are required to contribute an amount on advertising according to the table below. The below
requirement will be calculated quarterly based upon the previous three (3) months gross sales attributed to
the Pizza Piatta Offering:

Gross Sales Required Monthly Marketing Spend
$0 - $2,999 $0.00

$3,000 - $5,999 $325 per month

$6,000 - $8,999 $475 per month

$9,000 — $11,999 $625 per month

$12,000 or more $775 per month

e. The Initial Marketing Fees and Ongoing Marketing Fees are in addition to any other
amounts spent to advertise your Pizza Guys franchised business.

14. Quarterly Advertising Report. We shall send to you, no more frequently than quarterly, proof of
all marketing fee expenditures that we have spent on your behalf along with performance metrics regarding
all marketing used on your behalf.

15. Initial Training. Prior to offering products under the Pizza Piatta Offering, we or our
representatives shall train at least one (1) person signing this Virtual Kitchen Addendum or your general
manager at a location selected by us. We will offer one (1) day of training no later than two weeks prior to
opening your Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen (“Initial Training”) and two (2) days of training during or
immediately after the opening of your Pizza Piatta Virtual Kitchen (“Opening Training”). You shall pay us
$250 per day for the Initial Training and Opening Training. You shall not be permitted to offer products
under the Pizza Piatta Offering until at least one (1) person signing this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, or your
general manager have successfully completed our Initial Training. You will be responsible for training your
employees. Any additional training requested shall be subject to all conditions and fees as stated in the
Franchise Agreement.

16. Hours of Operation. Franchisee shall operate the Pizza Piatta Offering during the same hours of
operation as Franchisee’s Pizza Guys franchised business, unless changed by Franchisor in its sole
discretion.

17. Operations. You will operate the Virtual Kitchen in strict conformity with the Franchise
Agreement, any existing or future operations manual for the Pizza Piatta Offering, and all such other
standards and specifications prescribed by Franchisor. You shall fully implement all of the equipment and
operational components necessary for the operation of the Virtual Kitchen. Any proposed deviation from
Franchisor’s prescribed standards and specifications must be submitted in advance to Franchisor for its
review and written approval, which approval may be withheld in Franchisor’s sole discretion. Failure to
comply with Franchisor’s prescribed standards and specifications, as they relate to the Pizza Piatta Offering,
without specific prior written approval from Franchisor may result in a default under this Virtual Kitchen
Addendum and/or the Franchise Agreement, and may disqualify you from further participation in the
operation of the Pizza Piatta Offering, in addition to any other rights or remedies the Franchisor may have
under the Franchise Agreement and this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

18. Mystery Shoppers. We shall have the right, but not the obligation, to implement a “Mystery
Shopper Program” and charge Franchisee a fee to participate in the program based upon the portion of the
costs allocated to Franchisee.
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19. Prices.

a. You shall determine the prices you charge your customers for all goods and services. You
are not required to participate in special promotional programs. If you choose to participate in special
promotional programs you are required to participate for the entire duration of the program and you shall
charge customers the exact amount of the promotional price for the duration of the special promotional
program. If you do not want to participate in special promotional programs offered from time to time, you
must notify us in advance.

b. When two or more locations within a Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”) have been
established, those locations must agree on prices charged for all Pizza Piatta products. If these locations
cannot agree collectively on prices charged for all Pizza Piatta products, then the owners of those locations
agree to appoint Franchisor as the decisionmaker and grant Franchisor the authority determine the prices to
be set by all applicable locations.

20. Termination. In addition to its rights of termination under the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor
reserves the right to discontinue your rights to operate the Virtual Kitchen at any time upon: (a) your failure
to comply with any of the terms of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, including the failure to pay all requisite
fees identified herein or in the Franchise Agreement; (b) any default by you under this Virtual Kitchen
Addendum or the Franchise Agreement; (c) any instances, in Franchisor’s sole determination, of food
safety, cleanliness or employee safety concerns whether associated with the Pizza Guy brand or Pizza Piatta
brand; (d) any instance, whether intentional or not, in which you are found to have failed or refused to enter
tickets into the point-of-sale system; (e) any such other circumstance that Franchisor deems to reflect
negatively on or harm the Pizza Guys or Pizza Piatta brands, goodwill, and/or Marks; and/or (f) if the
operation of the Pizza Piatta Offering by you shows a reduction in performance or profits of your Pizza
Guys franchised business.

21. Confidentiality. Franchisor considers information related to the Pizza Piatta Offering to be
proprietary and confidential information. You and your organization will keep this information in strict
confidence in accordance with the confidentiality provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement and will
not disclose such information to any third-party with Franchisor’s prior written consent.

22. Assumption of Risk. You assume all risk of liability arising out of or otherwise connected with
the Pizza Piatta Offering, any equipment, configurations, systems, and/or technology solutions related to or
specified for the Pizza Piatta Offering. In additional to your obligations under Article 9.03
(Indemnification), you hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor, and each of its respective
affiliates, successors, assigns, subsidiaries, officers, directors, employees and agents, from any and all
claims, judgments, actions or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), arising out of or otherwise
connected with the Pizza Piatta Offering and those delivery services provided therefrom, any equipment,
configurations, systems and/or technology solutions related to or specified for the Pizza Piatta Offering.

23. Additional Obligations. Franchisee acknowledges that this Virtual Kitchen Addendum allows
Franchisor to impose additional obligations on Franchisee, as set forth herein. Franchisee also
acknowledges that such additional obligations may deviate from the requirements set forth in its Pizza Guys
operational policies and procedures.

24, Remaining Articles of the Franchise Agreement. All of the terms and conditions of the Franchise
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, except as amended by this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

25. Entire Agreement. This Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all other written agreements expressly
referenced in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum, represent the entire understanding and agreement between
the parties on the subject matter of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and supersede all other negotiations,
understandings and representations, if any, made between the parties. No representations, inducements,
promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, if any, not embodied in this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and all
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other written agreements concerning this Virtual Kitchen Addendum and expressly referenced in this
Virtual Kitchen Addendum are of any effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Franchisor and Franchisee have executed this Virtual Kitchen
Addendum effective as of the date set forth in the preamble of this Virtual Kitchen Addendum.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
PI1ZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
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DELIVERY AREA EXHIBIT
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
ATTACHMENT C TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
STATE ADDENDA TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the PB Asset Group, Inc. Franchise
Agreement, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all
PB Asset Group, Inc. franchises offered and sold in the State of California:

This California Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of California or if your
business is located in California.

1. Section 2.1 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety, and replaced by the
following:

A. Initial Term. The term of this Agreement is for ten (10) years, commencing on the
Effective Date of this Agreement, unless terminated earlier as provided in this Agreement.
However, by the end of the fifth year following the opening of your Franchised Business,
you must make, or provide for in a manner satisfactory to us, such renovation and
equipping of your location as we deem appropriate to reflect the then current standards and
image of the System, including, without limitation, renovation or replacement of signs,
equipment, furnishings, fixtures and décor.

2. Section 23.6 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety as follows:
Limitation of Actions. You agree to bring any Claims against us, if at all, within four (4) years

of the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such Claims, and that any action not brought within
this period shall be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off.

3. The California Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Section 20000
through 20043), provides franchisees with additional rights concerning termination and non-
renewal of the Franchise Agreement and certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement
relating to termination and non-renewal may be superseded by the Act. There may also be
court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement and your relationship with
Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of Franchisee’s franchise. If the
Franchise Agreement is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

4. The Franchise Agreement requires Franchisee to execute a general release of claims upon
renewal or transfer of the Franchise Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512
provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring
any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order
thereunder is void. Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment
Law (California Corporations Code Section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 - 20043)). To the
extent required by such laws, Franchisee shall not be required to execute a general release.

5. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

6. The provision in the Franchise Agreement which terminates the franchise upon the
bankruptcy of the Franchisee may not be enforceable under Title 11, United States Code, Section
101.
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7. No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as
waiving any claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as
disclaiming reliance on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided
by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material
inducement to a franchisee’s investment. Any statements or representations signed by a
franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only based
upon the franchisee’s understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee’s
investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date first set
forth above.
Franchisor: Franchisee:

PB Asset Group, Inc.

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Its: Its:

Date: Date:
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MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement’) is made this

day of , 20 (the “Effective Date”) and entered into by and between
FRANCHISOR: and MULTI-UNIT OPERATOR:
PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A (Name)
Rancho Cordova, California 95742
(916) 852-2222 (Address)

(City State

Zip Code)

(Telephone No. w/Area Code)
RECITALS

WHEREAS, We have invested substantial time, effort and money to develop a system of takeout and
delivery only pizza stores, under the Pizza Guys® trade name, trademark and other commercial symbols
according to our procedures, all of which we have developed and will continue to develop (referred to as
the “franchise” or the “franchise system” as the context requires). To simplify language in this Agreement,
“Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.” will generally be referred to as “us,” “we” or “our” (and sometimes as
“Franchisor”), and “you” and “your” (and sometimes “Multi-Unit Operator”’) will mean you, a person to
whom we grant a franchise;

WHEREAS, You acknowledge that you have had an adequate opportunity to be thoroughly advised of the
provisions of this Agreement and our Franchise Disclosure Document and have had sufficient time and
opportunity to evaluate and investigate the System and the procedures and financial requirements associated
with the System, as well as the competitive market in which it operates; and

WHEREAS, You desire to operate Franchised Businesses that have the right to develop and operate a
designated number of Franchised Businesses under the Marks and the System within the geographical area
(the “Development Area”) defined below and set forth in Exhibit A pursuant to the development schedule
(the “Development Schedule”) defined and set forth below in Exhibit B;

WHEREAS, we wish to grant you the right to open and operate a designated number of Franchised
Businesses in the Development Area, pursuant to the Development Schedule and subject to the terms,
covenants and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments set forth
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, agree as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS
1.1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated by reference into this Agreement.

2. GRANT OF MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

2.1. Grant of Multi-Unit Development Rights. We hereby grant to you, and you accept, subject to the
terms and conditions of this Multi-Unit Development Agreement, the right to and obligation to develop,
establish and operate ( ) Franchised Businesses, and to use the System solely in
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connection therewith at specific locations we approve to be operated pursuant to the terms of separate
franchise agreements (referred to individually as a “Franchise Agreement” and collectively as the
“Franchise Agreements”) executed between you (or an affiliate of you) and us as provided in Section 3.1
hereof, and pursuant to the Development Schedule established in Exhibit B of this Agreement. Each
Franchised Business developed hereunder shall be located within the Development Area described in
Exhibit A of this Agreement.

3. DEVELOPMENT AREA

3.1. Territorial Grant. You undertake to develop, own and operate the number of Franchised
Businesses designated in Section 2.1 of this Agreement within the Development Area set forth by map or
written description in Exhibit A to this Agreement. Pursuant to the Franchise Agreements which this
Agreement contemplates will be entered into between you (or an affiliate of you) and us, your right to
operate the Franchised Businesses will be limited to the Accepted Locations (as defined term is defined in
the respective Franchise Agreement for such Franchised Business). We reserve the right to adjust or
reassign any of the trade areas in the Development Area if we believe that this serves your best interest, or
if there is a conflict with another multi-unit operator’s or franchisee’s trade area. We reserve the right to
move that trade area to an unoccupied trade area.

3.2. Our Restriction. We, our affiliates, subsidiaries and designees (together, the “Affiliates™) will not,
except as provided in Section 3.3 (“Rights We Reserve”), operate company-owned businesses of the type
contemplated by this Agreement and franchises under the Franchise Agreements, or enter into any other
agreements granting others the right to own, develop or operate Pizza Guys® businesses within the
Development Area, so long as you are not in default under this Agreement and all other related agreements.
These restrictions will immediately terminate upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

3.3.Rights we Reserve. You agree that we and/or our Affiliates may engage in any business activity
whatsoever in or outside the Development Area except as we are restricted by Section 3.2 of this
Agreement, and that this Agreement does not confer upon you any right to participate in or benefit from
any such other business activity (regardless of whether it is conducted under the Proprietary Marks or not).
Our rights to engage in other business activities are specifically reserved and may not be qualified or
diminished in any way by implication. We thus may engage in, or authorize others to engage in, any form
of business offering and selling any type of product or service except as restricted by Section 3.2 above. By
way of example, we and/or our Affiliates may own, operate or authorize others to own or operate any type
of business at any location whatsoever, including within your Development Area, so long as such other
business does not sell under the Proprietary Marks the type of products or services which your Franchised
Businesses offer and sell (except as permitted below). Further, we and/or our Affiliates may own, operate
or authorize others to own or operate Franchised Businesses at any location outside of your Development
Area (including immediately proximate thereto).

In addition, you understand and agree that we and/or our Affiliates alone have the right to offer and
sell within and outside your Development Area, and under the Proprietary Marks, any and all products or
services and/or components thereof, (including those used or sold by your Franchised Businesses), and
whether or not a part of Franchise System, through any alternate channels of distribution, that is, any method
of distribution other than a Franchised Business situated within your Development Area including, without
limitation, the internet/worldwide web; any other form of electronic commerce; “800” or similar toll-free
telephone numbers; mail order; catalogs; television sales (including “infomercials”); or, any other channel
of distribution whatsoever except for a Pizza Guys® business.

You also agree that we may purchase, merge, acquire, be acquired by or affiliate with an existing
competitive or non-competitive franchise or non-franchise network, chain or any other business regardless
of the location of that other business’ facilities, and that following such activity we may operate, franchise
or license those other businesses and/or facilities under any names or marks other than, while this
Agreement is in effect, the Proprietary Marks, regardless of the location of these businesses and/or facilities,
which may be within the Development Area or immediately proximate thereto.

You waive and release any claims, demands or damages arising from or related to any of the above
activities and promise never to begin or join in any legal action or proceeding, or register a complaint with
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any governmental entity, directly or indirectly contending otherwise.

4. TERM AND RENEWAL

4.1. Term. Unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the term (“Term”)
of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and ends on the actual the last Franchised Business
is opened pursuant to the Development Schedule.

4.2. Notice of Expiration. If applicable law requires us to give notice of expiration to you at a specified
time before the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, and we have not done so, then the Term of this
Agreement will be extended on a month-to-month basis until we have given you the required notice of
expiration and the required period before the expiration of the Agreement becomes effective has expired.

4.3.Renewal. This Agreement shall not be subject to renewal. Upon the termination or expiration of
this Agreement, we and our affiliates shall have the right to develop and operate, and to grant to others
development rights and franchises to develop and operate, Franchised Businesses within the Development
Area subject only to the territorial rights granted to you with respect to Franchised Businesses operated by
you pursuant to the Franchise Agreements.

5. DEVELOPMENT FEE

5.1.Development Fee. In consideration of the development rights granted herein, you shall pay to us
simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement a Development Fee in the amount of
Thousand Dollars ($ ) (“Development Fee”).

You recognize that we have incurred administrative and other expenses in relation to this
Agreement, and that our development opportunities have been lost or curtailed as a result of the
development rights granted to you herein. Therefore, the Development Fee shall be fully earned by us upon
execution of this Agreement and shall not be refunded, in whole or in part, under any circumstance.

6. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

6.1. Development Schedule. For as long as this Agreement is in effect and you are not in default under
the terms of this Agreement or any Franchise Agreement, you will have the right and obligation to execute
Franchise Agreements for and commence operations of Franchised Businesses pursuant to the Development
Schedule set forth in Exhibit B. The Development Schedule sets forth the minimum number of Franchised
Businesses that you must commence operating by the specified dates. You may not develop or commence
operations of more than the number of Franchised Businesses set forth above without first obtaining our
written consent. A Franchised Business will be considered “developed” if: (i) the Franchise Agreement for
the Franchised Business has been signed by you (or an affiliate of you) and us; and (ii) the Franchised
Business has commenced operations in accordance with the Franchise Agreement governing the Franchised
Business.

6.2.Failure to Fulfill Development Obligations. Except as provided in Section 16.1 below
(“Unavoidable Delay or Failure to Perform (Force Majeure)”), if you fail to adhere to the Development
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B by either: (i) failing to execute the Franchise Agreement for each
Franchised Business; or (ii) failing to commence operations of each Franchised Business on or before the
date specified in the Development Schedule, then this will constitute a material breach of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you fail to comply with the Development Schedule, we will have the right
to: (i) reduce, in whole or in part, the size of the Development Area within which you will have rights; (ii)
reduce, in whole or in part, the total number of Franchised Businesses that you will have the right to
develop; or, (iii) terminate the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

Termination of this Agreement for this reason will not be a termination (constructive or otherwise)
of any Franchise Agreement(s) entered into by you (or an affiliate of you) and us thereunder; provided that
you have already commenced the operation of the Franchised Business(es) covered by the Franchise
Agreement(s) and you have fully performed and otherwise been in compliance with all of your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement(s) in question. You will lose both the right to develop the undeveloped
Franchised Businesses in the Development Area and the Development Fee attributable to the undeveloped
Franchised Businesses, and we may operate or franchise Franchised Businesses anywhere within the
Development Area without, in any way, being in violation of this Agreement. This remedy of ours will be
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in addition to whatever other remedies we may have at law or in equity.
6.3. Time is of the Essence. Subject to the provision of Section 16.1 below (“Unavoidable Delay or
Failure to Perform (Force Majeure)”), your timely performance of your obligations under Section 6 of this
Agreement is of material importance and is of the essence to this Agreement.

7. SELECTION OF SITES; FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

7.1.Site_Approval. You shall assume all responsibility and expense for locating potential sites for
Franchised Businesses and submit to us for our evaluation and approval, in the form specified by us, a
description of the site, the terms of the lease or purchase, a market feasibility study for the site and such
other information and materials as we may reasonably require, together with a letter of intent or other
evidence satisfactory to us which confirms your favorable prospects for obtaining the site. We shall have
thirty (30) days after receipt of such information and materials from you to approve or disapprove the site,
which consent we will not unreasonably withhold or delay. If the site is approved, you will then be presented
with the Franchise Agreement for execution.

You acknowledge that the approval of a particular site for a Franchised Business by us shall not be
deemed to be an assurance or guaranty that the Franchised Business will operate successfully or at a profit
from such site.

7.2. Execution of Franchise Agreement. You and we will execute a Franchise Agreement for each
Franchised Business provided for in the Development Schedule. The Franchise Agreement for the first
Development Right exercised hereunder has been executed contemporaneously with this Agreement. The
Franchise Agreement for each additional Development Right exercised hereunder shall be our then-current
Franchise Agreement, modified as follows: (a) your Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in the Franchise
Agreement) will be modified as specified in Section 5.1 above; and (b) the Royalty Fee (as defined in the
Franchise Agreement), imposed on you by the Franchise Agreement will not be greater than those set forth
in the first Franchise Agreement that you will sign (a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit
B).

The Franchise Agreement for each additional Franchised Business will be executed according to
the following procedure:

7.2.1.  Within a period of time we deem appropriate, we will deliver to you (if required under
applicable law) a copy of our then-current Franchise Disclosure Document, including our then-current
Franchise Agreement, modified as provided above (collectively, the "Franchise Disclosure Document").

7.2.2. Promptly upon receipt of the Franchise Disclosure Document, you must acknowledge
receipt by executing the receipt form (“Receipt”) prescribed in the Franchise Disclosure Document and
promptly returning the Receipt to us.

7.2.3. No sooner than fourteen (14) business days, but no later than thirty (30) calendar days after
you receive our Franchise Disclosure Document, you must, by written notice, notify us as to whether or not
you elect to execute our then-current form of Franchise Agreement (modified as provided above) for the
Franchised Business.

7.2.4. Promptly upon our receipt of your notice that you elect to execute our then-current form of
Franchise Agreement (modified as provided above), we will deliver to you an execution copy of the
Franchise Agreement. Promptly upon receipt of this execution copy, you must execute it and return it to
us.

7.2.5. Ifyou fail to perform any of the acts or fail to deliver any of the notices required pursuant
to the provisions of subsections (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) above in a timely fashion, this will be a material and
incurable breach of this Agreement which, unless we waive the breach, will entitle us to terminate this
Agreement immediately on notice to you, with no opportunity to cure.

Under no circumstances, however, may you open a Franchised Business for business unless and
until there is a fully executed Franchise Agreement in place for such Franchised Business and the applicable
franchise fee has been paid in full.

8. OUR DUTIES
8.1.Duties of Franchisor. So long as you are not in default of this Agreement or the Franchise
Agreements, we will grant you the right and obligation to acquire and operate Franchised Businesses in the
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Development Area and pursuant to the Development Schedule, upon the terms and subject to the provisions
of this Agreement and the terms of each Franchise Agreement entered into between you and us and of all
documents related to this Agreement and the Franchise Agreement, and to use solely and in connection
with these Franchise Agreements. The System as it may be changed, improved, modified or further
developed from time to time, in the Development Area as defined in this Agreement and upon the terms
and subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the terms of all documents related to this Agreement
and the Franchise Agreements. We will review site survey information on sites you select for conformity
to our standards and criteria for potential sites and, if the site meets our criteria, approve the site for
development of a Franchised Business. Pursuant to the Franchise Agreements and under their terms, we
will offer and perform the training, instruction, assistance and other activities for which the Franchise
Agreements provide.

9. YOUR DUTIES
9.1. Payments to Us. In addition to all other payments under this Agreement, you agree to pay us (or
our affiliates) immediately upon demand:

9.1.1. All sales taxes, trademark license taxes and any other taxes, imposed on, required to be
collected, or paid by us or our affiliates (excluding any corporate income taxes imposed on us or our
affiliates) because we or our affiliates have furnished services or products to you or collected any fee from
you.

9.1.2.  All amounts we advanced, or which we have paid, or for which we have become obligated
to pay, on your behalf for any reason.

9.1.3.  All amounts due to us (or our affiliates) for any other reason.

All payments due to us from you under this Agreement must be paid by check transmitted to our
headquarters address, except that we reserve the right to require deposit of payments elsewhere and/or
payment by wire transfer or other form of electronic funds transfer.

9.2. Compliance with Franchise Agreements and Laws, Rules and Regulations. You agree to abide
by and faithfully adhere to the terms of each Franchise Agreement signed pursuant to this Agreement. You
further agree to develop and operate the Franchised Businesses in strict compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations of all governmental authorities; to comply with all applicable wage, hour and other
laws and regulations of the federal, state and local governments; to prepare and file all necessary tax returns;
to pay all taxes imposed upon you related to the Franchised Businesses; and, to obtain and keep in good
standing all necessary licenses, permits and other required forms of governmental approval required of you.

9.3.Indemnification. You hereby agree that you will, at your sole cost, at all times defend us, our
affiliates, and the corporate affiliates, subsidiaries, successors, assigns and designees of each, and the
respective directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, shareholders, designees, contractors and
representatives of each (we and all others referenced above, the "Indemnitees"), and indemnify and hold
harmless us and the other Indemnitees to the fullest extent permitted by law, from all claims, loss, liability
and costs (including court costs, attorneys’ fees and experts’ fees) incurred in connection with any action,
suit, proceeding, claim, demand, investigation, or formal or informal inquiry (regardless of whether reduced
to judgment) or any settlement which actually or allegedly, directly or indirectly arises out of, is based
upon, is a result of or is related to any of the following:

9.3.1. Claims of any type or nature advanced by or against you or any of your officers, directors,
shareholders, partners, proprietors, management, agents, employees, affiliates representatives and
contractors (or any third party acting on your behalf or at your direction) by a third party (or, as applicable,
against a third party) or between or among themselves;

9.3.2. Your alleged or actual infringement or violation of any patent, trademark, service mark,
copyright or other intellectual property or proprietary right owned or controlled by third parties;

9.3.3.  Your alleged or actual violation or breach of any contract, federal, state, local, foreign or
other law, rule or regulation;

9.3.4. Libel, slander or any other form of defamation by you;

9.3.5. Your alleged or actual violation or breach of any warranty, representation, agreement or
obligation set forth in this Agreement;

9.3.6. Your ownership and operation of your Franchised Businesses;
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9.3.7. Your failure to pay (or withhold) when due any levies, taxes or assessments that you may
be required by applicable law to pay (or withhold);

9.3.8. Any acts, errors, neglects or omissions by you and/or your officers, directors, shareholders,
management, employees, agents, servants, contractors, partners, proprietors, affiliates or representatives (or
any third party acting on your behalf or at your direction); or

9.3.9. Any damage to the property of you, us, any of our affiliates, or their, our or your officers,
directors, management, agents, employees and contractors.

You agree to give us written notice of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or
investigation that could be the basis for a claim for indemnification by any Indemnitee within three (3) days
of your actual or constructive knowledge of'it. At your expense and risk, we may elect to assume (but under
no circumstance will we be obligated to undertake) the defense and/or settlement of the action, suit,
proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation. However, we will seek your advice and counsel and
keep you informed with regard to the defense or contemplated settlements. Our undertaking of defense
and/or settlement will in no way diminish your obligation to indemnify us and the other Indemnitees and
to hold us and them harmless.

We will have the right, at any time we consider appropriate, to offer, order, consent or agree to
settlements or take any other remedial or corrective actions we consider expedient with respect to the action,
suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation if, in our sole judgment, there are reasonable
grounds to do so. Under no circumstances will we or the other Indemnitees be required to seek recovery
from third parties or otherwise mitigate our or their losses to maintain a claim against you. You agree that
any failure to pursue recovery from third parties or mitigate loss will in no way reduce the amounts
recoverable by us or the other Indemnitees from you. The indemnification obligations of this Section 9.3
will survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement.

9.4. Business Entity Multi-Unit Operator Requirements. In the event that you are a corporation or
desire to conduct business in a corporate capacity, said corporate entity or assignment to a corporate entity
(which may include a corporation, limited liability company or partnership) must receive our prior written
approval and you agree to comply with the provisions hereinafter specified below. As a business entity,
you must comply with the following requirements (which will also apply to any business entity assignee of
yours):

9.4.1. You or those individuals disclosed on Exhibit C attached hereto shall be the legal and
beneficial owner of not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of the outstanding equity of said entity and shall
act as such entity’s principal officer.

9.4.2. Furnish us with your articles of incorporation, bylaws, partnership, agreement, limited
partnership agreement, limited liability company agreement and other governing documents; list of officers,
directors, shareholders, partners (limited and general), proprietors or members (including type, number and
percentage of interests held); the Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreements required under Section
10.2; and any other documents we may reasonably request, and any amendments to them.

9.4.3. Confine your activities to the operation of your Franchised Businesses developed
hereunder, and your governing documents must provide that your activities are confined exclusively to the
operation of your Franchised Businesses developed hereunder.

9.4.4. Maintain stop transfer instructions against the transfer on the records of any of your equity
securities, and not issue or have outstanding any securities on the face of which the following printed legend
does legibly and conspicuously appear:

"The transfer of this security is subject to the terms and conditions of a Multi-Unit Development
Agreement with Pizza Guys Franchising, Inc., dated . Reference is made to the provisions of
this Multi-Unit Development Agreement and to the governing documents of this issuer. This certificate is
not transferable and is not subject to sale, assignment, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, or transfer, by
operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Pizza Guys Franchising, Inc.."

9.4.5. Maintain a current list of all owners of record and all beneficial owners of any class of your
capital stock, general or limited partnership interests, membership interests or similar interests, and furnish
this list to us on request.

9.4.6. Ensure that your organizational documents expressly restrict the transfer (as defined in
Section 11.2) of any direct or indirect ownership interest in you, including your equity interests, and provide
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that such documents may not be modified without our prior written consent.

The assignment to a corporate entity will not relieve you of personal liability to us for performance
of any of the obligations under this Agreement. Any subsequent transfer of voting rights of the equity of
the entity or assignee entity, and any transfer or issuance of equity of the entity or assignee entity shall be
subject to our prior written approval. We agree that we will not unreasonably restrict the issuance or transfer
of equity, provided that you comply with the provisions of Article 11 below, and provided that in no event
shall any equity of such corporate entity or assignee corporate entity be sold, transferred or assigned to a
business competitor of ours.

9.5. Best Efforts; Cooperation with Us. You agree to act in good faith and use your best efforts to
comply with your obligations under this Agreement, and to cooperate with us in accomplishing the purposes
of this Agreement.

9.6. Your Participation in Operations; Multi-Unit Operations Directors. You agree to devote your
full time and efforts to the performance of your duties under this Agreement, and a failure to do so will
constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which, unless cured as provided in Section 14.3 of this
Agreement, will result in this Agreement being terminated in accordance therewith. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, you acknowledge and agree that we may require you to, at all times employ, at your own expense,
a designated operations director to oversee the day to day operations of all of your Franchised Businesses
and to serve as our main point of daily contact with authorization to communicate directly with us and to
make management decisions in connection with same (the “Multi-Unit Operations Director”). Should we
require that you hire a Multi-Unit Operations Director, you acknowledge and agree that your proposed
Multi-Unit Operations Director must satisfy our educational and business criteria, be approved by us in
advance and complete our Initial Training Program. You further agree that you must arrange to have your
Multi-Unit Operations Director execute our then-current form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition
Agreement.

Upon the death, disability or termination of employment of the Multi-Unit Operations Director, for
any cause or reason, you shall immediately notify us, and designate and obtain our prior written approval
of an interim or acting Multi-Unit Operations Director and, no later than ninety (90) days following the
death, disability or termination of the predecessor Multi-Unit Operations Director, you must designate a
successor Multi-Unit Operations Director. Each successor Multi-Unit Operations Director must be certified
to manage multi-unit operations and attend and successfully complete our next scheduled Initial Training
Program (as described in the first Franchise Agreement we sign for your first Franchised Business, attached
hereto as Exhibit D). The failure to employ and train a successor Multi-Unit Operations Director shall
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

9.7. Terrorism. You represent and warrant to us that, as of the date of this Agreement and at all times
during the Term hereof, and to your actual or constructive knowledge, neither you, any affiliate of yours,
any individual or entity having a direct or indirect ownership interest in you or any such affiliate (including
any sharcholder, general partner, limited partner, member or any type of owner), any officer, director or
management employee of any of the foregoing, nor any funding source you utilize is or will be identified
on the list of the U.S. Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC); is directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the government of any country that is subject to an embargo imposed by the United States
government or by any individual that is subject to an embargo imposed by the United States government;
is acting on behalf of any country or individual that is subject to such an embargo; or, is involved in business
arrangements or other transactions with any country or individual that is subject to an embargo. You agree
that you will immediately notify us in writing immediately upon the occurrence of any event which would
render the foregoing representations and warranties incorrect. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, you may not allow, effect or sustain any transfer, assignment or other disposition of this
Agreement to a Specially Designated National or Blocked Person (as defined below) or to an entity in which
a Specially Designated National or Blocked Person has an interest. For the purposes of this Agreement,
“Specially Designated National or Blocked Person” means: (i) a person or entity designated by OFAC (or
any successor officer agency of the U.S. government) from time to time as a “specially designated national
or blocked person” or similar status; (ii) a person or entity described in Section 1 of U.S. Executive Order
13224, issued on September 23, 2001; or, (iii) a person or entity otherwise identified by any government or
legal authority as a person with whom you (or any of your owners or affiliates) or we (or any of our owners
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or affiliates) are prohibited from transacting business.
You further agree that you will not hire, retain, employ or otherwise engage the services of any
individual or entity in contravention of the Patriot Act; any law, rule or regulation pertaining to immigration
or terrorism; or, any other legally prohibited individual or entity.

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; COVENANTS NOT TO COMPETE

10.1. Restrictions on Use of Confidential Information. You agree that you will not, during the
Term of this Agreement or thereafter, divulge to or use for the benefit of yourself or any other person(s),
partnership, proprietorship, association, corporation or entity, any confidential information, knowledge or
know-how concerning your or our systems of operation, programs, services, products, customers or
practices and/or pertaining to the Franchised System which may be communicated to you. Any and all
information, knowledge, know-how, techniques and information which we, our affiliates, or their respective
officers, designate as confidential will be deemed confidential for the purposes of this Agreement, except
information which you can demonstrate came to your attention before our disclosure or which, at or after
the time of our disclosure to you, has become a part of the public domain through publication or
communication by others.

10.2. Covenants Not to Compete

10.2.1. During the Term and any Renewal Term of this Agreement, you are prohibited from
directly or indirectly engaging in any Competitive Business as a proprietor, partner, investor, shareholder,
director, member, officer, manager, employee, principal, agent, adviser, or consultant. In addition, you
agree not to divert any business that should be handled by your franchised business to any other person or
entity.

10.2.2. For a continuous uninterrupted period commencing five (5) years immediately following
the expiration, termination of or transfer of all your interest in this Agreement for any reason, except as
otherwise approved in our sole and absolute discretion, you shall not, directly or indirectly, for yourself, or
through, on behalf of or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership, or corporation:

10.2.2.1.  divert, or attempt to divert, any business or customer of the Franchised
Business(es) hereunder to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform,
directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Proprietary
Marks or the System;

10.2.2.2. employ, or seek to employ, any person who is at that time or was within the
preceding ninety (90) days employed by us, or by any other franchisee or multi-unit operator of ours, or
otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave that person’s employment, except as may be
permitted under any existing multi-unit development agreement or franchise agreement between us and
you; or

10.2.2.3.  own, maintain, operate, engage in, or have any financial or beneficial interest in
(including any interest in corporations, partnerships, trusts, unincorporated associations or joint ventures),
advise, assist or make loans to any Competitive Business, which business is, or is intended to be, located
within: (a) your Development Area; (b) ten (10) miles of the perimeter of your Development Area; or (c) a
ten (10) miles radius of the location of any Pizza Guys® business, then-existing or under development, in
the System (whether company-owned, franchised or otherwise established and operated).

10.2.2.4.  For the purposes of this Article 11, the term “Competitive Business” shall refer to
any other business that primarily offers takeout and delivery pizza.

10.2.3. It is the intention of these provisions to preclude not only direct competition but also all
forms of indirect competition, such as consultation for Competitive Businesses, service as an independent
contractor for Competitive Businesses, or the provision of any assistance or transmission of information of
any kind which would be of any material assistance to a competitor. Nothing in this Section will prevent
you from owning for investment purposes no more than an aggregate of five percent (5%) of the capital
stock of any Competitive Business you do not control and whose stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange or the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System. It is the intention
of these provisions that any person or entity with any legal or beneficial interest in or traceable to or through
you be bound by the provisions of this covenant.
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10.2.4. You agree to obtain the execution of our Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit E from the following persons and to cause them to refrain from the competitive
activities described above: (i) before employment or any promotion: (1) your General Manager and
Assistant General Managers; (2) any personnel you employ who have received or will receive training from
us; (3) all your other managerial employees; and (4) any other persons to whom you grant access to
Confidential Information; and (b) if you are a Business Entity, all your officers, directors, equity holders,
members and those of any Business Entity directly or indirectly controlling you, at the same time as the
execution of this Agreement (or at such later time as they assume such status). You must furnish us with
copies of all signed Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreements no later than ten (10) days following
their execution. You agree to prosecute to the fullest extent permitted by law breaches of any Confidentiality
and Non-Competition Agreement executed pursuant to this Section 10.2 and you acknowledge our right, to
be exercised in our sole business judgment, to ourselves enforce the terms of each executed Confidentiality
and Non-Competition Agreement.

10.2.5. If all or any portion of the covenants not to compete set forth in this Article 10 are held
unreasonable, void, vague or illegal by any court or agency with competent jurisdiction over the parties and
subject matter, the court or agency will be empowered to revise and/or construe the covenants to fall within
permissible legal limits, and should not by necessity invalidate the entire covenants. You agree to be bound
by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of this Article 10 as if the resulting covenants were
separately stated in and made a part of this Agreement.

10.3. Enforcement of Confidentiality Covenant and Covenants Not to Compete. You
acknowledge that violation of the covenants in Section 10.1 and 10.2 of this Agreement would result in
immediate and irreparable injury to us for which no adequate remedy at law will be available. You therefore
consent to the entry of an injunction prohibiting any conduct by you in violation of the terms of these
covenants, without the necessity of our posting any bond or security. You agree that it may conclusively be
presumed that any violation of the terms of the covenants not to compete was accomplished by and through
your unlawful use of our Confidential Information, know-how, methods and procedures. You also agree
that any claims you may have against us, whether or not arising from this Agreement, will not constitute a
defense to our enforcement of the covenants not to compete in this Agreement. You agree to pay all costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees that we incur, in connection with the
enforcement of the covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement.

11. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

11.1. Transfer By Us. We may transfer or assign this Agreement or any or all of the rights,
interests, benefits or obligations arising under it without restriction. Upon any transfer or assignment of this
Agreement by us, we will be released from all obligations and liabilities arising or accruing in connection
with this Agreement after the date of such transfer or assignment

11.2. Transfer By You — General. This Agreement, and your rights and obligations under it,
are and will remain personal to you. As used in this Agreement, the term “Transfer” will mean any sale,
lease, assignment, gift, pledge, mortgage or any other encumbrance, transfer by bankruptcy, transfer by
your disability or death or by judicial order, merger, consolidation, share exchange, transfer by operation
of law or otherwise, whether direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary, of this Agreement or any interest
in it, or any rights or obligations arising under it, or of any material portion of your assets used to operate
your Franchised Business, or of any interest in you, or if you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability
company or other entity, a transfer, pledge, assignment, or other disposition of direct or indirect control or
ownership of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of any interest in your entity. In addition, if there are two
(2) individuals signing this Agreement as Franchisee, and one (1) of those individuals is no longer involved
in the ownership of your Franchised Business, the withdrawal of that person will be considered a “Transfer.”
A “Transfer” will also be deemed to occur when there are more than two (2) people listed as the Franchisee
and there is a change in the ownership of your Franchised Business such that less than a majority of the
original signers continue to have a majority interest in the equity of the business. Unless otherwise provided
in this Agreement, we will not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition our consent to a Transfer, subject
to all of the following conditions being satisfied:

11.2.1. you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you have no uncured defaults, and all your
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debts and financial obligations to us and our affiliates are current;

11.2.2. you provide us with all information we may require concerning the proposed transaction
(including a copy of the purchase agreement and all related documents), and the proposed transferee;

11.2.3. we are satisfied that the proposed transferee (and if the proposed transferee is an entity, all
holders of any interest in such entity) meets all of the requirements for our new Multi-Unit Operators,
including, but not limited to, good reputation and character, business experience, and financial strength,
credit rating and liquidity, and that the sale price is not excessive;

11.2.4. you sign a written agreement in a form satisfactory to us in which you and your investors
covenant to observe all applicable post-term obligations and covenants contained in this Agreement and
release us and our affiliates from any claims you may have against us, or any further obligations we may
have to you;

11.2.5. the proposed transferee enters into a new Multi-Unit Development Agreement with us, on
the terms we then generally offer to new Multi-Unit Operators (including fees payable and size of territory);
provided, however, the term of that Multi-Unit Development Agreement, unless otherwise agreed, will be
the remaining term of your Multi-Unit Development Agreement;

11.2.6. prior to the date of the proposed Transfer, the proposed transferee’s Designated Principal
successfully completes such training and instruction as we deem necessary;

11.2.7. you and all holders of an interest in you sign a general release, in the form prescribed by
us, releasing, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all claims that you or any of your investors may have
against us and our affiliates, including our and their respective shareholders, officers, directors and
employees, in both their individual and corporate capacities; and

11.2.8. prior to the Transfer, you pay us a transfer fee of fifty percent (50%) of our then current
initial franchise fee (the “Transfer Fee”) to cover our reasonable costs in effecting the Transfer.

Our consent to a Transfer of any interest in you, this Agreement or in the development rights
pursuant to this Section shall not constitute a waiver of any claims we may have against the transferring
party, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this
Agreement by the transferee.

11.3. Transfer By You — To a Business Entity You Form. We will not unreasonably withhold
or delay our consent to your assignment to a business entity that you form solely for the convenience of
entity ownership if all the following conditions are met: (i) the business entity is newly formed and each
requirement in Sections 9.4 and 17.19 has been satisfied; (ii) each individual involved in the new entity has
the same proportionate ownership interest in the new entity as he or she had in the Business before the
assignment; (iii) you and the new entity sign an agreement with us under which you and the new entity are
jointly and severally liable for all the obligations under this Agreement and bound by all the terms,
conditions and covenants of this Agreement; (iv) each present and future equity holder in the new entity
signs our Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement in the form of Exhibit E to this Agreement.

11.4. Transfer By You — Transfer Upon Death or Disability. Upon your death or long-term
disability (if you are an individual) or the death or disability of your last surviving owner (if you are a
business entity), that person's rights will pass to his or her estate, heirs, legatees, guardians or
representatives, as appropriate (collectively, the "Estate"). The executor, administrator or personal
representative of the Estate shall transfer your or your last surviving owner’s interest to a third party, subject
to our approve and terms and conditions set forth in Section 11.2 above, within three (3) months of the date
such executor, administrator or personal representative is appointed to represent the Estate.

Until an executor, administrator or personal representative is appointed to represent the Estate, the
Estate will continue the operation of the Franchised Businesses, and the existing Multi-Unit Operations
Director will continue to oversee the operations of the Franchised Businesses developed pursuant this
Agreement until the executor, administrator or personal representative of the Estate has consummated the
Transfer. If a Multi-Unit Operations Director has not been appointed and approved by us in accordance
with Section 9.6, then the Estate must provide a competent and qualified individual acceptable to us to serve
as the Multi-Unit Operations Director and assume oversight of the operations of the Franchised Businesses
within one (1) month of the date of death or disability. If the Multi-Unit Operations Director has been
approved by us, he or she will immediately assume, on a full-time basis, the oversight of the operations of
the Franchised Businesses developed pursuant to this Agreement. If we reject the Estate’s proposed Multi-
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Unit Operations Director, then the Estate will provide us with another proposed candidate for our
consideration within fifteen (15) days of the date of our rejection. Once an acceptable Multi-Unit Operations
Director has been approved by us, he or she will oversee the operations of the Franchised Businesses until
the executor, administrator or personal representative of the Estate has consummated the Transfer of your
or your last surviving owner’s interest. If the Estate does not designate a Multi-Unit Operations Director or
the Estate’s Multi-Unit Operations Director does not assume full-time oversight of the operations of the
Franchised Businesses within one (1) month from the date your or your last surviving owner’s death or
disability, this will be a material breach of this Agreement which, unless cured by the Estate as provided in
Section 14.3, will result in this Agreement being terminated immediately.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may (but are under no obligation) to manage the operations of
your Franchised Businesses developed hereunder, in order to prevent any interruption of the operations of
your Franchised Businesses, which could cause harm to said businesses. Should we elect to exercise our
right to manage your Franchised Businesses and/or your existing Franchised Businesses developed
hereunder, then all monies from the operation of the Franchised Businesses shall be kept in separate
accounts, and we will deduct our expenses for travel, lodging, meals and all other expenses and fees from
each Franchised Businesses respective Gross Sales and also pay ourselves a management fee equal to ten
percent (10%) of each Franchised Businesses monthly Gross Sales (“Management Fee”). This Management
Fee will be in addition to any amounts due to us under each Franchised Businesses respective Franchise
Agreement. We will then remit any remaining funds to the Estate. If we undertake the obligation to manage
your Franchised Businesses developed pursuant to this Agreement, we will not be responsible for any
operational losses of your Franchised Businesses, nor will we be obligated to continue operating your
Franchised Businesses developed pursuant to this Agreement. You agree to indemnify and hold harmless
us and any representative of ours who may act hereunder, from any and all acts which we may perform, as
regards the interests of you or third parties.

11.5. Our Right of First Refusal. If you receive from an unaffiliated third party and desire to
accept a bona fide written offer to purchase your development rights, your Franchised Businesses, any
interest in the Franchised Businesses developed hereunder, you (if you are a business entity) (including any
capital stock, membership, partnership or proprietary interest of you or anyone who controls you) or any
other interest hereunder, voluntarily or by operation of law (as provided above), such transfer shall be
subject to our right of first refusal, except in the instance of your Transfer pursuant to Section 11.3, (the
“Right of First Refusal”), which Right of First Refusal we may freely assign to any individual or entity.
Should we elect to exercise our Right of First Refusal, we will exercise such right in the following manner:

11.5.1. You must deliver to us a true and complete copy of the proposed transferee’s offer (the
"Offer") including all its material terms and furnish to us any additional information concerning the
proposed transaction and the proposed transferee that we reasonably request. In order that we may have
information sufficient to enable us to determine whether to exercise this option, we may require you to
deliver to us certified financial statements as of the end of your most recent fiscal year and such other
information about your business and operations as we may request.

11.5.2. Within thirty (30) days after our receipt of the Offer (or, if we request additional
information, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the additional information), we may either consent or
withhold our consent to the Transfer, in accordance with this Article, or at our option accept the Transfer
to ourselves or to our designee, on the terms and conditions specified in the Offer. If we or our designee
accept the Transfer, we will be entitled to all of the customary representations and warranties given by the
seller of development rights. Any dispute regarding the value of all or any part of the development rights
proposed to be transferred and/or the consideration proposed to be paid or payable to you or any third party
in connection with the proposed transfer shall be determined by a reputable independent appraiser we select,
and you and we equally share the expense of, whose determination will be final and binding on us.

11.5.3. Our credit will be considered at least equal to the credit of any proposed transferece. We
may substitute cash for the fair market value of any other form of payment proposed in the offer.

11.5.4. If we give notice of exercise of our Right of First Refusal, we will be given at least sixty
(60) days after our notice to prepare for closing.

11.5.5. If we elect not to exercise our Right of First Refusal and we consent to the proposed
Transfer, then you will, subject to the provisions of this Article, be free to assign this Agreement, your
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development rights, the Franchised Businesses developed hereunder, any interest in the Franchised
Businesses developed hereunder or you to your proposed transferee on the terms and conditions specified
in the Offer if you satisfy the conditions of Section 11.2 for our approval of a Transfer and if you close the
transaction within sixty (60) days (or such further time as may be stipulated by law, rule or regulation). If,
however, the terms specified in your notice are changed, the changed terms will be considered a new offer,
and we will have an identical Right Of First Refusal with respect to this new offer. Further, if you fail to
close the assignment transaction within sixty (60) days (or such further period of time as may be stipulated
by applicable law, rule or regulation), then our Right Of First Refusal hereunder shall be restored and we
may elect to exercise same within thirty (30) days thereafter.
Our election not to exercise our Right Of First Refusal with regard to any offer will not affect our

Right Of First Refusal with regard to any later or modified offer. If we do not exercise our Right Of First
Refusal, this will not constitute approval of the proposed transferee or the transaction itself. You and any
proposed transfer must comply with all the criteria and procedures Transfer of this Agreement, your
development rights, your Franchised Businesses developed hereunder, any interest in the Franchised
Businesses developed hereunder or you as specified in this Article 11.

11.6. No Encumbrance. You will have no right to pledge, encumber, hypothecate or otherwise
give any third party a security interest in this Agreement or the Franchise Agreements in any manner
without our prior written permission, which we may withhold for any reason.

12. PROPRIETARY MARKS

12.1. Not a License of the Proprietary Marks. You acknowledge and agree that nothing
contained in this Agreement will be deemed to constitute a license to you to use or display any of the
Proprietary Marks in any manner. You will acquire a limited, non-exclusive license to use the Proprietary
Marks only pursuant to, and to the extent that these rights are granted by, Franchise Agreements executed
by you and us pursuant to this Agreement.

12.2. Non-Use of Trade Name. If you are a business entity, you may not use our Proprietary
Marks or any confusingly similar words or symbols, in your entity name.
12.3. Injunction. You explicitly affirm and recognize the unique value and secondary meaning

attached to the System and the Proprietary Marks. Accordingly, you agree that any non-compliance by you
with the terms of this Agreement, or any unauthorized or improper use of System or the Proprietary Marks
by you, will cause irreparable damage to us and other multi-unit operators and franchisees. You therefore
agree that if you engage in this non-compliance, or unauthorized and/or improper use of System or the
Proprietary Marks, during or after the period of this Agreement, we will be entitled to both temporary and
permanent injunctive relief against you from any court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to all other
remedies which we may have at law. Y ou consent to the entry of these temporary and permanent injunctions
without the requirement that we post a bond of any type or nature, or any other form of security, and without
the requirement to prove the adequacy of money damages as a remedy, and without waiving any other
rights or remedies at law or in equity. You will be responsible for payment of all costs and expenses,
including reasonable attorneys' and expert fees, which we and/or our affiliates may incur in connection with
our efforts to secure such injunctive relief.

13. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

13.1. Contractor; No Third Party Beneficiaries. It is understood and agreed by the parties
hereto that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them. You are and will be our
independent contractor under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to create a
partnership, joint venture, agency, employment or fiduciary relationship of any kind. Neither you nor any
of your employees whose compensation you pay may in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly or by
implication, be construed to be our employee for any purpose. You will be solely responsible for your
employees and all employment related decisions, including, without limitation, decisions concerning wages
and benefits, hiring and discharging, training and supervision and work schedules of employees. You are
not empowered to, and may not, make any express or implied agreements, warranties, guarantees or
representations or incur any debt or other obligations in our name or for our account (or for those of any of
our affiliates). Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, we will have no control or access to your
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funds or their expenditure or in any other way exercise control over your Businesses.

You agree to conspicuously identify yourself, your Franchised Businesses, and any other facilities
of your Franchised Businesses in all dealings with third parties as an independent contractor and to place
notice of independent ownership on all forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, signs and other
materials in the manner that we specify and require from time to time, in our Manual or otherwise.

All of our obligations under this Agreement are to you alone and no other party is entitled to rely
on, enforce or obtain relief for breach of any of our obligations hereunder, either directly or by subrogation.

13.2. Your Required Means of Identification. You agree that you will do business and be
identified as a Multi-Unit Operator, but not an agent of, Franchisor.

14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

14.1. Termination By Us — Automatic Termination Without Notice. You will be in default
of this Agreement, and all rights granted in this Agreement will immediately and automatically terminate
and revert to us without notice to you, if: you or your Franchised Business is adjudicated as bankrupt or
insolvent; all or a substantial part of the assets thereof are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor; a
petition in bankruptcy is filed by or against you, the Franchised Businesses developed hereunder and is not
immediately contested and/or dismissed within sixty (60) days from filing; a bill in equity or other
proceeding for the appointment of a receiver or other custodian of you, any of the Franchised Businesses
developed hereunder or assets of such businesses is filed and consented to by you; a receiver or other
custodian (permanent or temporary) of all or part of your assets or property is appointed by any court of
competent jurisdiction; proceedings for a composition with creditors under any state or federal law are
instituted by or against you, any of the Franchised Businesses developed hereunder; you are dissolved;
execution is levied against you, any of the Franchised Businesses or your property; or, the real or personal
property of or any of the Franchised Businesses is sold after levy thereon by any governmental body or
agency, sheriff, marshal or constable.

14.2. Termination By Us Upon Notice — No Opportunity To Cure. You will have materially
breached this Agreement and we will have the right to terminate this Agreement and all rights granted under
this Agreement, without giving you any opportunity to cure the breach, effective immediately upon your
receipt of notice (which, whether sent by certified mail, registered mail, overnight courier or personal
physical delivery, will be deemed to have been received by you upon delivery or first attempted delivery
of the notice to you) upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

14.2.1. You fail to meet the Development Schedule.

14.2.2. You omit or misrepresent any material fact in the information that you furnished to us in
connection with our decision to enter into this Agreement, approve any site for your Franchised Businesses
or enter into a Franchise Agreement for any Franchised Business.

14.2.3. We and you agree in writing to terminate this Agreement.

14.2.4. You (or any principal of a corporate, partnership, proprietorship or other entity multi-unit
operator) are convicted of a felony, fraud, crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime or offense
which we reasonably believe is related to your duties under this Agreement and/or your operation of any of
the Franchised Businesses, or is likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the Proprietary Marks, the
goodwill associated with the Proprietary Marks or our interest in the System or Proprietary Marks.

14.2.5. You (or any principal of a corporate, partnership, proprietorship or other entity franchisee)
purport to transfer any rights or obligations under this Agreement, any interest in you or any of the
Franchised Businesses to any third party in violation of the terms of this Agreement.

14.2.6. You do not comply with the covenant not to compete during the term of this Agreement;
violate the restrictions pertaining to the use of Confidential Information contained in this Agreement; or,
do not obtain the execution of the additional covenants required in Article 10 of this Agreement.

14.2.7. You fail to obtain our prior written approval, including, but not limited to, site approval, as
expressly required by this Agreement.

14.2.8. You use or duplicate any aspect of our System, services, programs or products in an
unauthorized fashion.

14.2.9. If you, or any shareholder or principal, if you are corporate entity, or any of your affiliates
cease to operate all of the Franchised Businesses opened pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
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14.2.10.If you open any Franchised Business for business before a Franchise Agreement for such
Franchised Business has been fully executed and the initial franchise fee due to us has been paid.
14.2.11.You engage in any business or market any service or product under a name or mark which,
in our opinion, is confusingly similar to our Proprietary Marks.
14.2.12.You engage in conduct which reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation and
reputation of the Franchised Businesses, us or the System.

14.3. Termination By Us — Fifteen Days to Cure. Except as specifically provided elsewhere in
this Agreement, you will have fifteen (15) calendar days following our delivery of written notice to you to
cure any default under this Agreement and provide us with evidence that you have done so. If you have not
cured any default within that time, this Agreement will terminate immediately upon expiration of the fifteen
(15) day period, unless we otherwise agree in writing. You will be in default of this Agreement for any
failure to comply with any of your obligations under this Agreement.

14.4. Description of Default. The description of any default in any notice that we transmit to
you will in no way preclude us from specifying additional or supplemental defaults under this Agreement
or any related agreements in any action, proceeding, hearing or lawsuit relating to this Agreement or the
termination of this Agreement.

14.5. Cross Default. Any default or breach by you (or any of your affiliates) of any other
agreement between us or our Affiliates and you (or any of your affiliates) will be considered a default under
this Agreement, and any default or breach of this Agreement by you will be considered a default or breach
under any and all other agreements between us (or any of our Affiliates) and you (or any of your affiliates).
If the nature of the default under any other agreement would have permitted us to terminate this Agreement
if the default had occurred under this Agreement, then we (or our Affiliate) will have the right to terminate
all the other agreements between us (or any of our Affiliates) and you (or any of your affiliates) in the same
manner provided for in this Agreement for of this Agreement. Your “affiliates” include any persons or
entities controlling, controlled by, or under common control with you.

14.6. Notice Required By Law. If any valid, applicable law or regulation of a competent
governmental authority with jurisdiction over this Agreement or the parties to this Agreement limits our
rights of termination under this Agreement or requires longer notice or cure periods than those set forth
above, then this Agreement will be considered modified to conform to the minimum notice, cure periods
or restrictions upon termination required by the laws and regulations. We will not, however, be precluded
from contesting the validity, enforceability or application of the laws or regulations in any action,
proceeding, hearing or dispute relating to this Agreement or the termination of this Agreement.

15. OTHER OBLIGATIONS AND RIGHTS ON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

15.1. Other Obligations and Rights on Termination or Expiration. The termination of this
Agreement upon breach of your development obligations, as set forth in Exhibit B, will not terminate any
of the Franchise Agreements executed by you before the effective date of termination of this Agreement
and for which you have already commenced the Franchised Business(es) covered by the Franchise
Agreement(s), but after the effective date of the termination, you will have no right to develop or operate
any additional Franchised Business without first obtaining our express written consent, which we may
withhold without cause.

Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement for whatever reason, you agree to:

15.1.1. Immediately pay all sums due and owing to us or our affiliates, plus interest, and all sums
due and owing to any landlord, employees, taxing authorities, advertising agencies and all other third
parties.

15.1.2. If we terminate because of your default, pay us all losses and expenses we incur as a result
of the default or termination, including all damages, costs, and expenses, and reasonable attorneys' and
experts' fees directly or indirectly related thereto, such as (without limitation) lost profits, lost opportunities,
damage inuring to our Proprietary Marks and reputation, travel and personnel costs and the cost of securing
a new multi-unit operator for the Development Area. This obligation will give rise to and remain, until paid
in full, a lien in our favor against any and all of assets, property, furnishings, equipment, signs, fixtures and
inventory owned by you and any of the Franchised Businesses at the time of termination and against any
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of your money which we are holding or which is otherwise in our possession.

15.1.3. Immediately execute all agreements necessary to effectuate the termination in a prompt
and timely manner.

15.1.4. Strictly comply with the post-termination/post-expiration covenants not to compete set
forth in Article 10 of this Agreement.

15.1.5. Continue to abide by those restrictions pertaining to the use of our Confidential
Information, trade secrets and know-how set forth in Article 10 of this Agreement.

15.2. No Prejudice. The expiration or termination of this Agreement will be without prejudice
to our rights against you, and will not relieve you of any of your obligations to us at the time of expiration
or termination, or terminate your obligations which by their nature survive the expiration or termination of
this Agreement.

16. UNAVOIDABLE DELAY OR FAILURE TO PERFORM

16.1. Unavoidable Delay or Failure to Perform (Force Majeure). Any delay in our or your
performance of any duties under this Agreement, or any non-performance of such duties, that is not your
or our fault (as applicable) or within your or our reasonable control — including, but not limited to, fire;
floods, natural disasters; Acts of God; war; civil commotion; any governmental act or regulation; any delays
or defaults in deliveries by common carriers and/or postal services and/or overnight couriers; computer
network outages; late deliveries or non-deliveries of goods or non-furnishing of services by third party
vendors; strikes; and any other similar event beyond such party's control) will not constitute a breach or
cause a default under this Agreement, provided, however, that we or you (as applicable) will take all steps
reasonably possible to mitigate damages caused by such failure or delay.

Upon the occurrence of any event of the type referred to herein, the party affected thereby shall
give prompt notice thereof to the other parties, together with a description of the event, the duration for
which the party expects its ability to comply with the provisions of the Agreement to be affected thereby
and a plan for resuming operation under the Agreement, which the party shall promptly undertake and
maintain with due diligence. Such affected party shall be liable for failure to give timely notice only to the
extent of damage actually caused.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such failure or delay continues for more than one hundred
eighty (180) days, we will have the right at any time thereafter during the continuance of such failure or
delay to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to you.

17. MISCELLANEOUS

17.1. Waiver and Delay. No waiver or delay in either party's enforcement of any breach of any
term, covenant or condition of this Agreement will be construed as a waiver by that party of any preceding
or succeeding breach, or any other term, covenant or condition of this Agreement. Without limiting any of
the foregoing, the acceptance of any payment specified to be paid by you under this Agreement will not be,
nor be construed to be, a waiver of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement.

17.2. Notice of Our Alleged Breach. You agree to give us immediate written notice of any
alleged breach or violation of this Agreement after you have constructive or actual knowledge of, believe,
determine or are of the opinion that there has been an alleged breach of this Agreement by us, including
any acts of misfeasance or nonfeasance. If you do not give written notice to us of any alleged breach of this
Agreement within one year from the date that you have knowledge of, believe, determine or are of the
opinion that there has been an alleged breach by us, then our alleged breach will be considered to be
condoned, approved and waived by you and will not be considered to be a breach of this Agreement by us,
and you will be permanently barred from commencing any action against us for the alleged breach or
violation.

17.3. Our Right To Cure Defaults. In addition to all other remedies granted pursuant to this
Agreement, if you default in the performance of any of your obligations, or breach any term or condition
of this Agreement or any related agreement, then we may, at our election, immediately or at any time
thereafter, without waiving any claim for breach under this Agreement and without notice to you, cure the
default on your behalf. Our cost of curing the default and all related expenses will be due and payable by
you on demand.
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17.4. Our_Withholding of Consent — Your Exclusive Remedy. If you make any claim or
assertion that we have unreasonably withheld or delayed any consent or approval to a proposed act by you
under the terms of this Agreement, you agree that your sole remedy for the claim will be an action or
proceeding to enforce the Agreement provisions, for specific performance or for declaratory judgment.

17.5. Integration of Agreement; No Oral Agreements or Representations. Neither you nor
we wish to enter into a business relationship with the other in which any terms or obligations are the subject
of alleged oral statements or in which oral statements serve as the basis for creating rights or obligations
different than or supplementary to the rights and obligations set forth herein. Accordingly, you and we agree
that this Agreement, all Exhibits to this Agreement and all related agreements signed at the same time as
this Agreement: (a) constitute the entire agreement between the parties with reference to the subject matter
of this Agreement and supersede any and all prior negotiations, understandings, representations and
agreements, and (b) supersede and cancel any prior and/or contemporaneous oral or written
communications (whether described as representations, inducements, promises, agreements or any other
term) between you or anyone acting on your behalf and us or anyone acting on our behalf, which might be
taken to constitute agreements, representations, inducements, promises or understandings (or any
equivalent to such terms) with respect to the relationship between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof and that no reliance is being or will be placed on any such written or oral communications;
provided, however, that nothing in this or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the
representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document that we provided to you.

No change, modification, amendment or waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be
effective and binding upon either party unless it is in writing, specifically identified as an amendment to
this Agreement or waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement, and signed by the party against whom
enforcement of such writing is sought.

17.6. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement must be in
writing; must be delivered to the other party either personally, by certified mail (return receipt requested,
postage prepaid), or by documented overnight delivery with a reputable carrier; and, will be effective on
the date that delivery is documented to have been first attempted. Any notice to us will be addressed to us
at:

Notices to Franchisor: Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.
2731 Citrus Road, Suite A
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742

Any notice to you will be addressed to your address as set forth on the first page of this Agreement.
Either party to this Agreement may, in writing, on ten (10) days’ notice, inform the other of a new or
changed address or addressee(s) to which notices under this Agreement should be sent. We may provide
any notice under this Agreement (including, without limitation, any notice of termination) sufficiently in
advance of any event to permit compliance with any notice requirements under state or other laws.

17.7. Execution, Construction and Interpretation; Further Acts.

17.7.1. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will be
considered an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile
execution signatures will be considered as binding and conclusive as if original, provided, however, that
any party so executing must use all commercially reasonable efforts to furnish to the other party(ies) the
originally executed document(s) at the earliest opportunity.

17.7.2. The titles and subtitles of the various articles and sections of this Agreement are inserted
for convenience and will not affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms, provisions, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement. The language of this Agreement will in all cases be construed simply
according to its fair and plain meaning and not strictly for or against us or you.

17.7.3. It is agreed that if any provision of this Agreement is capable of two constructions, one of
which would render the provision void and the other of which would render the provision valid, then the
provision will have the meaning which renders it valid.

17.7.4. The parties agree to execute all other documents and perform all further acts necessary or
desirable to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.
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17.7.5. Each reference in this Agreement to a corporation or partnership will also refer to a limited
liability company, general or limited partnership, and any other entity or similar organization. Each
reference to the organizational documents, shareholders, directors, officers and stock of a corporation in
this Agreement will also refer to the functional equivalents of the organizational documents, shareholders,
directors, officers and voting and/or equity rights, as applicable, in the case of a limited liability company,
general partnership, limited partnership or any other entity or similar organization (this specifically includes
members and managers, general and limited partners, membership interests and general and limited
partnership interests).

17.8. Business Judgment. You and we recognize, and any mediator or judge is affirmatively
advised, that certain provisions of this Agreement describe our right to take (or refrain from taking) certain
actions in the exercise of our business judgment based on our assessment of the overall best interests of the
System. Where such discretion has been exercised, and is supported by our business judgment, neither a
mediator nor a judge may substitute his or her judgment for the judgment we have so exercised. “Business
judgment” is a defined term for the purposes of this Agreement and is not intended to incorporate principles
related to the application of any business judgment rule in a corporate law context.

17.9. Exercise of Rights. You understand and agree that whenever we have reserved a right in
this Agreement, we have the uncontrolled and unfettered right to do what we have reserved.
17.10. Severability. Nothing contained in this Agreement may be construed as requiring the

commission of any act contrary to law. Whenever there is any conflict between any provision of this
Agreement and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation required to be made applicable
to this Agreement, the latter will prevail, but the affected provision of this Agreement will be curtailed and
limited only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirement of the law. If any article, section,
sentence or clause of this Agreement is held to be indefinite, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the entire
Agreement will not fail for this reason, and the balance of the Agreement will continue in full force and
effect. If any court of competent jurisdiction deems any provision of this Agreement (other than for the
payment of money) so unreasonable as to be unenforceable as a matter of law, the court may declare a
reasonable modification of this Agreement and this Agreement will be valid and enforceable, and the parties
agree to be bound by and perform this Agreement as so modified.

17.11. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs of Enforcement. The prevailing party will be entitled to
recover from the other party reasonable attorneys' fees, experts' fees, court costs and all other expenses of
litigation in any action instituted against the other party to secure or protect the prevailing party’s rights
under this Agreement, to enforce the terms of this Agreement, or in any action commenced or joined in by
the other party against the prevailing party.

17.12. Attorneys’ Fees — Third Party Actions. If we become a party to any action or proceeding
commenced or instituted against us by a third party arising out of or relating to any claimed or actual act,
error or omission of yours and/or any of your officers, directors, shareholders, management, employees,
contractors and/or representatives, your Franchised Business by virtue of statutory, "vicarious",
"principal/agent" or other liabilities asserted against or imposed on us as a result of our status as Franchisor;
or if we become a party to any litigation or any insolvency proceeding involving you pursuant to any
bankruptcy or insolvency code (including any adversary proceedings in conjunction with bankruptcy or
insolvency proceedings), then you will be liable to, and must promptly reimburse us for, the reasonable
attorneys' fees, experts' fees, court costs, travel and lodging costs and all other expenses we incur in such
action or proceeding regardless of whether such action or proceeding proceeds to judgment. In addition, we
will be entitled to add all costs of collection, interest, attorneys' fees and experts' fees to our proof of claim
in any insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding you file.

17.13. Governing Law. This Agreement; all relations between the parties; and, any and all
disputes between the parties, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, is to be exclusively construed
in accordance with and/or governed by (as applicable) the law of the State of California without recourse
to California (or any other) choice of law or conflicts of law principles. If, however, any provision of this
Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of California, and if the Franchised Business(es) is
located outside of California and the provision would be enforceable under the laws of the state in which
the Franchised Business(es) is located, then the provision (and only that provision) will be interpreted and
construed under the laws of that state. Nothing in this Section 17.13 is intended to invoke the application
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of any franchise registration and disclosure, franchise relationship, business opportunity, antitrust, "implied
covenant", unfair competition, fiduciary or any other doctrine of law of the State of California, or any other
state, which given its jurisdictional scope (and absent this choice of law provision) would not otherwise
apply, and Multi-Unit Operator agrees to never contend otherwise.

17.14. Venue. Any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement; any breach of this
Agreement; the relations between the parties; and, any and all disputes between the parties, whether
sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, will be instituted exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction
in Sacramento, California. You agree that any dispute as to the venue for this litigation will be submitted
to and resolved exclusively by a state of federal court of competent jurisdiction situated in state, county and
judicial district in Sacramento, California. You (and your affiliates, and the owners, members, officers,
directors or managers of each of the foregoing) hereby irrevocably submit themselves to the jurisdiction of
any such court and waive all questions of personal jurisdiction for the purpose of carrying out this provision.
You, on behalf of yourself and your affiliates, and the owners, members, officers, directors or managers of
each of the foregoing, hereby waive and covenant never to assert or claim that the venue designated for
litigation by this Agreement is for any reason improper, inconvenient, prejudicial or otherwise inappropriate
(including any claim under the judicial doctrine of “forum non conveniens”). The parties agree that this
Section 17.14 shall not be construed as preventing either party from removing an action or proceeding from
state to federal court. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, with respect to any action for monies owed,
injunctive or other extraordinary or equitable relief, or involving possession or disposition of, or other relief
relating to, your Franchised Business, we may bring such an action in any state or federal district court
which has jurisdiction.

17.15. Waiver of Jury Trial. The parties to this Agreement (as denominated in the preamble
hereto) explicitly waive their respective rights to a jury trial in any litigation between them and hereby
stipulate that any such trial shall occur without a jury.

17.16. Punitive Damages. In no event will we be liable to you for punitive, exemplary, incidental,
indirect, special, consequential or other similar damages in any action or proceeding arising out of or
relating to this Agreement; any breach, termination, cancellation or non-renewal of this Agreement; or, in
any other action or proceeding whatsoever between the parties to this Agreement and/or any of their
affiliates. You hereby waive and covenant never to advance any such claim for punitive damages. You (and
your affiliates, and the owners, members, officers, directors or managers) agree that in the event of a dispute,
you and they shall be limited to the recover from us any actual damages sustained by you or them.

17.17. No Consolidated or Class Actions. You (and your affiliates, owners, members, officers,
directors or managers) may only pursue any claim you have against us or our Affiliates in an individual
legal action or proceeding. Neither you nor any of your affiliates, owners, members, officers, directors or
managers shall join or combine its/their legal action or proceeding in any manner with any action or claim
of any other multi-unit operator, franchisee or other claimant, nor will you or your affiliates, owners,
members, officers, directors or managers maintain any action or proceeding against us or our Affiliates,
owners, members, officers, directors or managers in a class action, whether as a representative or as a
member of a class or purported class, nor will you or your affiliates, owners, members, officers, directors
or managers seek to consolidate, or consent to the consolidation of, all or part of any action or proceeding
by any of them against us or our affiliates, owners, members, officers, directors or managers with any other
litigation against us or our affiliates, owners, members, officers, directors or managers.

17.18. Limitations of Actions. Any and all legal actions or proceedings brought by you against
us or our Affiliates, owners, members, officers, directors or managers arising out of or related to this
Agreement, the Franchised Business(es) or any related agreement; any breach of this Agreement or any
related agreement; the relations between such parties; and, any and all disputes between such parties,
whether sounding in law or equity, must be commenced within two (2) years from the occurrence of the
acts, errors and/or omissions giving rise to such legal action or proceeding. If not, then you irrevocably
covenant and agree that such action or proceeding shall be barred.

17.19. Guarantee. If you are a business entity, the following persons must sign our standard form
Guarantee, attached hereto as Exhibit F, at the same time as the execution of this Agreement or at such later
time as they assume such status: (i) if you are a corporation or limited liability company, all shareholders
or members (as applicable) owning 5% or more of your issued and outstanding stock or membership
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interests, as applicable; (ii) if you are a partnership, all general partners owning a 5% or greater interest in
you; and, (iii) if you are a limited partnership, the general partner and all shareholders owning a 5% or
greater interest in the general partner.

If you are in breach or default under this Agreement, we may proceed directly against each such
individual and/or entity (each, a guarantor) without first proceeding against you and without proceeding
against or naming in the suit any other guarantors. Your obligations and those of each guarantor will be
joint and several. Notice to or demand upon guarantor will be considered notice to or demand upon you and
all guarantors, and no notice or demand need be made to or upon all guarantor. The cessation of or release
from liability of you or any guarantor will not relieve any other guarantor from liability under this
Agreement, except to the extent that the breach or default has been remedied or money owed has been paid.

17.20. Survival. Any provision of this Agreement which imposes an obligation following the
termination or expiration of this Agreement will survive the termination or expiration and will continue to
be binding upon the parties to this Agreement. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns.

17.21. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely between you and us.
Other than our Affiliates or as expressly set forth in this Agreement, there is no intended third party
beneficiary of this Agreement and you agree that none is to be presumed or deemed to exist.

17.22. Execution in Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be an original, and all of which shall constitute one and
the same instrument. Electronic and facsimile signatures will be considered as binding and conclusive as if
original.

17.23. Joint and Several Obligations. All references herein to the masculine, neuter or singular
shall be construed to include the masculine, feminine, neuter or plural, where applicable. If Multi-Unit
Operator consists of more than one person or entity, or a combination thereof, the obligations and liabilities
of each such person or entity to us under this Agreement are joint and several.

17.24. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. All rights and remedies of the parties to this
Agreement shall be cumulative and not alternative, in addition to and not exclusive of any other rights or
remedies which are provided for herein or which may be available at law or in equity in case of any breach,
failure or default or threatened breach, failure or default of any term, provision or condition of this
Agreement or any other agreement between you or any of your affiliates and us. The rights and remedies
of the parties to this Agreement shall be continuing and shall not be exhausted by any one or more uses
thereof, and may be exercised at any time or from time to time as often as may be expedient; and any option
or election to enforce any such right or remedy may be exercised or taken at any time and from time to
time. The expiration, earlier termination or exercise of our rights pursuant to Article 17 of this Agreement
shall not discharge or release you from any liability or obligation then accrued, or any liability or obligation
continuing beyond, or arising out of, the expiration, the earlier termination or the exercise of such rights
under this Agreement.

17.25. Multi-State Addendum. The parties hereby incorporate herein the state addenda, in the
form attached to this Agreement.
17.26. Other Franchises. You acknowledge that other franchisees of the System have or will be

granted franchises at different times and in different situations, and further acknowledge that the provisions
of such franchises may vary substantially from those contained in this Agreement. You also acknowledge
that because complete and detailed uniformity under varying circumstances may not be practical, there may
be variations we grant to our other locations (whether franchised, or centers that we or our affiliates
operate), and you will not be entitled to require us to grant similar variations or privileges to you.

17.27. Your_ Acknowledgment. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.



23
18. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT
18.1. Submission of Agreement. The submission of this Agreement to you does not constitute
an offer. This Agreement will become effective only upon the execution of this Agreement by both us and
you. Our date of execution will be considered the date of execution of this Agreement.

THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE BINDING ON US UNLESS AND UNTIL IT HAS BEEN
ACCEPTED AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF OURS.

YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE FOREGOING AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT AND AGREE TO
EACH AND ALL OF THE PROVISIONS, COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS OF THE FOREGOING
AGREEMENT.

[Signatures on following page]
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FRANCHISEE

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)

(City State Zip)

(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone No.)

/
(Date of Birth)

(SSN)

(Driver’s License No. and Issuing State)

(Signature)

(Typed or printed name and capacity of Signer)

(Residence Address)
(City State
Zip)
/
(Res. Telephone No. Bus. Telephone
No.)
/

(SSN) (Date of Birth)

(Driver’s License No. and Issuing State)

FRANCHISOR

PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By:

Shahpour M. Nejad, President
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EXHIBIT A
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
DEVELOPMENT AREA

The following describes the Development Area within which Multi-Unit Operator may locate
Pizza Guys® Franchised Businesses under this Agreement:
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EXHIBIT B
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

This Agreement authorizes and obliges Multi-Unit Operator to establish and operate

(__ ) Pizza Guys® Locations within the trade areas pursuant to a Franchise
Agreement for each Franchised Business. The following is Multi-Unit Operator’s Development
Schedule:

Minimum Cumulative Number

of Franchised Businesses to be located

and Operating

Within the Development Area By this Date

Total:
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EXHIBIT C
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
OWNERSHIP OF MULTI-UNIT OPERATOR

The following is a list of all shareholders, partners, owners or other investors in Multi-Unit
Operator, including all investors who own or hold a direct or indirect interest in Multi-Unit

Operator, and a description of the nature of their interest:

Name Percentage of Ownership/ Nature of Interest
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EXHIBIT D
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FIRST FRANCHISE AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED BY MULTI-UNIT
OPERATOR

[SEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND ITS EXHIBITS
IN EXHIBIT 1 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT]
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EXHIBIT E
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

NAME:
MULTI-UNIT OPERATOR:
HOME ADDRESS:

HOME TELEPHONE:
CLASSIFICATION:

(Owner, Shareholder, Officer, Director, Attorney, Employee, Etc.)

(“Multi-Unit Operator”) is a Multi-Unit Operator of Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc. ("Franchisor") pursuant to a Multi-Unit Development Agreement entered into by
Multi-Unit Operator and Franchisor dated (the "Multi-Unit
Development Agreement"). I agree that, unless otherwise specified, all terms in this Agreement
have those meanings ascribed to them in the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

I agree that during the term of my employment by, ownership participation in, association with or
service to Multi-Unit Operator, or at any time thereafter, I will not communicate, divulge or use
for the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, proprietorship, association, corporation
or entity any confidential information, knowledge or know-how concerning the systems of
operation, services, products, clients or practices of Multi-Unit Operator and/or Franchisor which
may be communicated to me ("Confidential Information"), and I will not divert any business to
competitors of Multi-Unit Operator and/or Franchisor.

Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, techniques and information which the entities
mentioned above or their officers designate as confidential will be Confidential Information for
the purposes of this Agreement, except information which I can demonstrate came to my attention
before disclosure or which had become or becomes a part of the public domain through publication
or communication by others (unless the publication or communication is in violation of a similar
confidentiality agreement), but in no event through any act of mine.

I specifically understand that, without limitation, the following constitute Confidential Information
of Franchisor: all products, services, equipment, technologies and procedures relating to all
systems of operation, services, programs, products, procedures, policies, standards, techniques,
specifications and criteria which now comprise or in the future may comprise a part of the
Franchisor’s system for establishing and operating Pizza Guys® businesses (the “System”);
Franchisor's Confidential Operating Manual (as same may be amended from time to time, the
“Manual”); supplements and/or amendments to the Manual; records pertaining to customers or
billings; methods of advertising and promotion; customers; instructional materials; staff
composition and organization systems; quality assurance programs; supervision systems;
recommended services; recordkeeping systems and materials; bookkeeping systems and materials;
business forms; product and service order forms; general operations materials; revenue reports;
standards of interior and exterior design and decor; activity schedules; job descriptions;
advertising, promotional and public relations materials/campaigns/guidelines/philosophy;
specifications, systems, standards, techniques, philosophies and materials, guidelines, policies and
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procedures concerning the System; additions to, deletions from, and modifications and variations
of the components constituting the System or the systems and methods of operations which are
now, or may in the future, be employed by Franchisor, including all standards and specifications
relating thereto and the means and manner of offering and selling same; and, all other components,
specifications, standards, requirements and duties imposed by Franchisor or its Affiliates.

I will at no time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce any of the Confidential Information
or material containing it, in whole or in part, store them in a computer retrieval or data base, nor
otherwise make them available to any unauthorized person. Upon the expiration or other
termination for any reason of my employment, association, service or ownership participation, I
agree to return to Franchisor or Multi-Unit Operator, as the case may be, all Confidential
Information or material containing it (in whole or in part) in my possession utilized during my
employment, association, service or ownership participation.

I further agree that during the term of my employment/service/association/ownership participation,
and under the circumstances set forth in the following paragraph, for a period of one year
immediately following its expiration or termination for any reason, [ will not, directly or indirectly,
engage or participate in any other business which engages in any of the activities which the Multi-
Unit Development Agreement contemplates will be engaged in by Multi-Unit Operator under the
Franchise Agreements; or, which offers or sells any other service, product or component which
now or in the future is part of Pizza Guys System, or any confusingly similar product or service. I
agree that I am prohibited from engaging in any competitive business as a proprietor, partner,
investor, shareholder, director, officer, employee, principal, agent, advisor, or consultant.

For a period of five years immediately following the expiration or termination of my
employment/service/association/ownership participation, I am prohibited from engaging in any
competitive business, if the other business is located within Multi-Unit Operator's Development
Area, within ten (10) miles of the boundaries of Multi-Unit Operator's Development Area, or
within ten (10) miles of (or within) any other Development Area or Business Territory (whether
Company owned, franchised or otherwise established and operated).

It is the intention of these provisions to preclude not only direct competition but also all forms of
indirect competition, such as consultation for competitive businesses, service as an independent
contractor for competitive businesses, or any assistance or transmission of information of any kind
which would be of any material assistance to a competitor. Nothing herein will prevent me from
owning for investment purposes up to an aggregate of 5% of the capital stock of any competitive
business, so long as the competitive business is a publicly held corporation whose stock is listed
and traded on a national or regional stock exchange, or through the National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System (NASDAQ), and so long as I or Multi-Unit
Operator do not control the company in question.

It is the intention of these provisions that any person or entity having any legal or beneficial interest
in or traceable to, down or through me to be bound by the provisions of this covenant, including
(without limitation) my spouse, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, parent, parent-in-law,
child, son-in law or daughter-in-law; any direct or indirect beneficiary; any partner (general or
limited) or proprietor of mine; and, any other such related person or entity, regardless of how many
levels or tiers there may be between any such described person or entity and me. I further agree
that upon the expiration or termination of my term of employment/service/association, I will
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immediately refrain from any and all contacts with customers, for any purpose whatsoever.

I acknowledge that violation of the covenants not to compete contained in this Agreement would
result in immediate and irreparable injury to Franchisor and Multi-Unit Operator for which no
adequate remedy at law will be available. Accordingly, I hereby consent to the entry of an
injunction procured by Franchisor or Multi-Unit Operator (or both) prohibiting any conduct by me
in violation of the terms of those covenants not to compete and/or restrictions on the use of
confidential information set forth in this agreement. I expressly agree that it may conclusively be
presumed in any legal action that any violation of the terms of these covenants not to compete was
accomplished by and through my unlawful utilization of Franchisor's Confidential Information.

Further, 1 expressly agree that any claims I may have against Franchisor will not constitute a
defense to Franchisor's enforcement of the covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement.
I further agree to pay all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees)
incurred by Franchisor in connection with the enforcement of those covenants not to compete set
forth in this Agreement.

If all or any portion of this covenant not to use confidential information and not to compete 1s held
unreasonable, void, vague or illegal by any court or agency having valid jurisdiction in an
unappealed final decision to which Multi-Unit Operator and/or Franchisor is a party, the court or
agency will be empowered to revise and/or construe the covenant to fall within permissible legal
limits, and should not invalidate the entire covenant. I expressly agree to be bound by any lesser
covenant subsumed within the terms of this Agreement as if the resulting covenant were separately
stated in and made a part of this Agreement.

I agree that this Agreement and all relations and disputes between myself on the one hand, and
Multi-Unit Operator or Franchisor on the other hand, whether sounding in contract, tort, or
otherwise, are to be exclusively construed in accordance with and/or governed by (as applicable)
the law of the State of California without recourse to California (or any other) choice of law or
conflicts of law principles. If, however, any provision of this Agreement would not be enforceable
under the laws of California, and if the franchised Business is located outside of California and the
provision would be enforceable under the laws of the state in which the franchised Business is
located, then the provision (and only that provision) will be interpreted and construed under the
laws of that state. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to invoke the application of any franchise,
business opportunity, antitrust, "implied covenant", unfair competition, fiduciary or any other
doctrine of law of the State of California or any other state, which would not otherwise apply.

I further agree that any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement; any breach of this
Agreement; and, all relations and any and all disputes between myself on the one hand, and Multi-
Unit Operator or Franchisor on the other hand, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise,
will be instituted exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in Sacramento, California. [ agree
that any dispute as to the venue for this litigation will be submitted to and resolved exclusively by
a court of competent jurisdiction situated in Sacramento, California.

I hereby waive and covenant never to assert or claim that said venue is for any reason improper,
inconvenient, prejudicial or otherwise inappropriate (including, without limitation, any claim
under the judicial doctrine of forum non conveniens).
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(Signature)

(Print Name)

(Date)



33
EXHIBIT F
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
GUARANTEE OF THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In consideration of the execution by Franchisor of the Multi-Unit Development Agreement (the
"Multi-Unit Development Agreement") dated the day of , , between
Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. ("Franchisor") and
("Multi-Unit Operator") and for other good and valuable consideration, each of the undersigned,
for themselves, their heirs, successors, and assigns, do jointly, individually and severally hereby
absolutely and unconditionally guarantee the payment of all amounts and the performance of all
of the covenants, terms, conditions, agreements and undertakings contained and set forth in said
Multi-Unit Development Agreement and in any other agreement(s) by and between Multi-Unit
Operator and Franchisor.

If more than one person has executed this Guarantee, the term "the undersigned", as used herein,
shall refer to each such person, and the liability of each of the undersigned hereunder shall be joint
and several and primary as sureties.

The undersigned, individually and jointly, hereby agree to be personally bound by each and every
covenant, term, condition, agreement and undertaking contained and set forth in said Multi-Unit
Development Agreement and any other agreement(s) by and between Multi-Unit Operator and
Franchisor, and agree that this Guarantee shall be construed as though the undersigned and each
of them executed agreement(s) containing the identical terms and conditions of the Multi-Unit
Development Agreement and any other agreement(s) by and between Multi-Unit Operator and
Franchisor.

The undersigned hereby agree, furthermore, that without the consent of or notice to any of the
undersigned and without affecting any of the obligations of the undersigned hereunder: (a) any
term, covenant or condition of the Multi-Unit Development Agreement may be amended,
compromised, released or otherwise altered by Franchisor and Multi-Unit Operator, and the
undersigned do guarantee and promise to perform all the obligations of Multi-Unit Operator under
the Agreement as so amended, compromised, released or altered; (b) any guarantor of or party to
the Multi-Unit Development Agreement may be released, substituted or added; (c) any right or
remedy under the Agreement, this Guarantee or any other instrument or agreement between
Franchisor and Multi-Unit Operator may be exercised, not exercised, impaired, modified, limited,
destroyed or suspended; and, (d) Franchisor or any other person may deal in any manner with
Multi-Unit Operator, any of the undersigned, any party to the Multi-Unit Development Agreement
or any other person.

Should Multi-Unit Operator be in breach or default under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement
or any other agreement(s) by and between Multi-Unit Operator and Franchisor, Franchisor may
proceed directly against any or each of the undersigned without first proceeding against Multi-
Unit Operator and without proceeding against or naming in such suit any other Multi-Unit
Operator, signatory to the Multi-Unit Development Agreement or any others of the undersigned.

Notice to or demand upon Multi-Unit Operator or any of the undersigned shall be deemed notice
to or demand upon Multi-Unit Operator and all of the undersigned, and no notice or demand need
be made to or upon any or all of the undersigned. The cessation of or release from liability of
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Multi-Unit Operator or any of the undersigned shall not relieve any other Guarantors from liability
hereunder, under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement, or under any other agreement(s)
between Franchisor and Multi-Unit Operator, except to the extent that the breach or default has
been remedied or moneys owed have been paid.

Any waiver, extension of time or other indulgence granted by Franchisor or its agents, successors
or assigns, with respect to the Multi-Unit Development Agreement or any other agreement(s) by
and between Multi-Unit Operator and Franchisor, shall in no way modify or amend this Guarantee,
which shall be continuing, absolute, unconditional and irrevocable.

It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that the provisions, covenants and conditions of
this Guarantee shall inure to the benefit of the Franchisor, its successors and assigns. This
Guarantee may be assigned by Franchisor voluntarily or by operation of law without reducing or
modifying the liability of the undersigned hereunder.

This Guarantee is to be exclusively construed in accordance with and/or governed by the law of
the State of California without recourse to California (or any other) choice of law or conflicts of
law principles. If, however, any provision of this Guarantee would not be enforceable under the
laws of California, and if the business franchised under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement
is located outside of California and the provision would be enforceable under the laws of the state
in which the franchised business is located, then the provision (and only that provision) will be
interpreted and construed under the laws of that state. Nothing in this Guarantee is intended to
invoke the application of any franchise, business opportunity, antitrust, "implied covenant", unfair
competition, fiduciary or any other doctrine of law of the State of California or any other state,
which would not otherwise apply.

Any litigation arising out of or related to this Guarantee will be instituted exclusively in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Sacramento, California. The undersigned agree that any dispute as to the
venue for this litigation will be submitted to and resolved exclusively by a court of competent
jurisdiction situated in Sacramento, California. The undersigned hereby waive and covenant never
to assert or claim that said venue is for any reason improper, inconvenient, prejudicial or otherwise
inappropriate (including, without limitation, any claim under the judicial doctrine of forum non
conveniens).

Should any one or more provisions of this Guarantee be determined to be illegal or unenforceable,
all other provisions shall nevertheless be effective.

[Signatures on following page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this Guarantee effective as of
the date of the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

(Signature)
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(Print Name)

(Date)
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EXHIBIT G
TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
STATE ADDENDA TO THE MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO MULTI-UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the PB Asset
Group, Inc. Multi-Unit Development Agreement, the following provisions
shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all PB Asset Group,
Inc. franchises offered and sold in the State of California:

This California Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of
California or if your business is located in California.

1. Section 17.18 of the Multi-Unit Development Agreement is
hereby amended in its entirety as follows:

Limitations of Actions. Any and all legal actions or proceedings
brought by you against us or our Affiliates, owners, members, officers,
directors or managers arising out of or related to this Agreement, the
Franchised Business(es) or any related agreement; any breach of this
Agreement or any related agreement; the relations between such parties; and,
any and all disputes between such parties, whether sounding in law or equity,
must be commenced within four (4) years from the occurrence of the acts,
errors and/or omissions giving rise to such legal action or proceeding. If not,
then you irrevocably covenant and agree that such action or proceeding shall
be barred.

2. The Multi-Unit Development Agreement requires Multi-Unit
Operator to execute a general release of claims upon transfer of the Multi-Unit
Development Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512
provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any
person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that
law or any rule or order thereunder is void. Section 31512 voids a waiver of
your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations
Code Section 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise
Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 - 20043)). To
the extent required by such laws, Multi-Unit Operator shall not be required to
execute a general release.

3. The Multi-Unit Development Agreement contains a covenant
not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This
provision may not be enforceable under California law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this
Addendum as of the date first set forth above.
(Signatures on following page)



Franchisor:

PB Asset Group, Inc.

By:

Multi-Unit Operator:

Print Name:

Its:

Date:

By:

Print Name:

Its:

Date:
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THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT.
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE
ADVISED THAT NO CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAD AUDITED
THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS/HER OPINION WITH REGARD TO
THE CONTENT OR FORM.



Balance Sheet

Pizza Guys Franchise Inc.
As of March 31, 2023

MAR 31, 2023
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equival
PGF BOA Checking 946,446.83
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 546,446.89
AR Trade 67917.01
Chedes in Transit (12,604.56)
Deferred Income Tax Asset 1,440.00
Total Current Assets 1,003,199.34
Fixed Assets
Computer Equipment 3728200
FFAE 18241651
Leasehold improvernents 64,630.73
Mach. & Equip. 136,588.00
Vehicles 614,656.19
Less A lated Dep (714,387.43)
Total Fixed Assets 321,185.54
Total Assets 1,%24,386.28
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable - Trade 4166508
CalSavers Payable 72813
Creditor Debt 2,686.95
Incomne Tax Payable (6,694.00)
Net Payroll Payable 46,911.66
Payroll Taxes Payable 1447673
Capital One Credit Card 2301859
PGF_Amex_CC 2475
Total Current Liabilities 128,821.90
Total Liabilities 128,821.90
Equity
Shareholder Contributions 155,000.00
Common Stock 21,813.00
Current Year Eamings §9,055.06
Retained Earnings 750,203.04

Balance Sheet | Plaza Guys Franchise Inc.




Balance Sheet

MAR 31, 2023

Retained Earnings3 7345228
10U from RSM 100,000.00
Total Equity 1,195,563.38
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,324,385.28

Balance Shoet | Plzza Guys Franchise Inc.



Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

Pizza Guys Franchise Inc.
For the 3 months ended March 31, 2023

JAN-MAR 2023
Income
Royalty Income 843,157.84
Revenue - Franchise Fee {22,500.00)
Revenue-Advertising 6345527
Revenue-Rebate 155477.47
Revenue - Transfer Fee 104,708.00
Total Income 1,144,298.58
Gross Profit 1,144 298,58
Operating Expenses
Accounting 1,935.00
Advertising Reimbursement 6,542
Advertising/Marketing 34782710
Auto and Truck Expense 9.5%6.57
Bank Charges 1,726.64
Car Insurance 17396
Consulting Fees 11,000.00
Entertainment 28957.92
Franchise Meeting 634.08
Health and Life Insurance 22,065.27
Legal and Professional 11,854.58
Licenses and Fees 30.00
Mecting and Seminar 1522275
Office Expense 9167295
Parking 2,847.40
Pest Control 85.00
Postage 437297
Rent 30,132.00
Repairs and Maintenance 98217
Payroll E
Salaries and Wages 350,045.96
Tames - Payroll 2930224
Total Payroll Expense 379,348.20
Services EER SR
Software 653.48
Supplies 16,242.583
Taxes - Other 677.86

Income Statement (Profitand Loss)l | Pizza Guys Franchise Inc.



Income Statement (Profit and Loss)

JAN-MAR 2023

Telephone and Internet 492463
Travel 25,185.13
Utilities 126.87
Workmen's Comp. 51890
Total Operating Expenses 1,085,203.52
Operating Income £9,095.06
NetIncome £9,095.06

Income Statement (Profit and Lossd Pizza Guys Franchise Inc.
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Kawana & Gong, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
1827 E. Fir Avenue, Suite 103
Fresno, California 93720

Tel. (559) 226-6664
Fax (559) 226-7174
www kgllpcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

April 7, 2023

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.
(a California corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the related statements of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evident we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.



12

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but it is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as

a whole. The supplementary information on Schedule I on page 17 is presented for the purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
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responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.

Kawara X ng, LLp
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Accounts receivable:
Trade

Prepaid expenses
Estimated income taxes
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - at cost:
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation
OTHER ASSETS:

Operating lease right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax asset

$

$

December 31,

2022 2021
632,123 $ 695,735
238,622 184,820

32,584

5,927 3,600
876,672 916,739
136,588 136,588
182,417 56,636
614,656 464,355
37,282 37,282
64,631 64,631

1,035,574 759,492
714,387 673,192
321,187 86,300
233,759

1,320 1,440
235,079 1,440
1,432,938 § 1,004,479

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable:
Trade
Credit cards

Payroll taxes payable

Accrued wages and salaries

Accrued expenses

Current maturities on long-term debt

Current maturities on operating lease liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES, net of current maturities
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY:

Common stock, no par value;
authorized 1,200,000 shares; issued
and outstanding 1,200,000 shares

Retained earnings

December 31,
2022 2021
$ 116,817 $ 7,077
13,066 25
18,584 18,990
45,128 46,234
765 4,951
3,233
174,224
368,584 80,510
59,535
145,954
27,813 27,813
977,006 750,202
1,004,819 778,015
$ 1,432,938 § 1,004,479
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

SALES:
Franchise royalties
Franchise fees
Transfer fees
Advertising income
Rebate income
Returns and allowances

EXPENSES:
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):

Gain on extinguishment of debt
Interest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAXES:

Current
Deferred

NET INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
3,430,139 3,255,650

227,311 150,000
123,689 66,000
223,259 261,705
305,891 279,915
(6,307)

4,310,289 4,006,963

4,194,988 3,502,427
41,196 38,913
4,236,184 3,541,340
74,105 465,623
10,000
(614) (5,904)
(614) 4,096
73,491 469,719
1,567 3,377
120 35
1,687 3,412
71,804 466,307

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

3
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(Continued)
Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
RETAINED EARNINGS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 750,202 $ 983,895
SHAREHOLDER'S CONTRIBUTIONS 155,000
SHAREHOLDER'S WITHDRAWALS 700,000
RETAINED EARNINGS,
END OF YEAR $ 977,006 $ 750,202

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
4
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Deferred income taxes benefit
Gain on extinguishment of debt
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Estimated income taxes
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and salaries
Payroll taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Operating lease liabilities
Income taxes payable
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
NET CASH USED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments - long-term debt
Shareholder's contributions
Shareholder's withdrawals

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

5

Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
71,804 $ 466,307
41,196 38,913
120 35
(10,000)
(53,802) 118,697
32,584 (32,584)
(2,327) (3,600)
(233,759)
122,781 (97,280)
(1,106) 2,852
(406) (1,492)
(4,186) 4,951
233,759
(4,566)
206,658 482,233
(276,083) (30,755)
(276,083) (30,755)
(149,187) (509)
155,000
(700,000)
5,813 (700,509)
(63,612) (249,031)
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)
Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 695,735 $ 944,766
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 632,123 $ 695,735
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes $ 3894 § 11,543
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 413,759 $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
6
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. (the “Company”), a California S corporation, was
formed on April 7, 1995 to offer franchises for the operation of pizza takeout and delivery
stores. The Company operates under the accrual method of accounting. The Company has
1,200,000 shares of no stated value common stock authorized, issued, and outstanding as of
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. is
presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial statements. The financial
statements and notes are the representations of the Company’s management who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements. Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 7, 2023,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all unrestricted
investment instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were no cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred while renewals and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line and declining-balance method over estimated useful lives.

Accounts Receivable

Bad debts are charged to operations in the year in which the account is determined
uncollectible. Trade receivables are due no more than 30 days after issuance of the invoice.
Receivables past due more than 60 days are considered delinquent. All accounts receivable
are considered by management to be fully collectible.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences for sick pay and vacation time have not been accrued since
they cannot be reasonably estimated. The Company’s policy is to recognize these costs when
actually paid.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as
incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021 were $1,542,565 and $1,228,177, respectively.

Presentation of Sales Tax

The State of California, and various counties, localities and districts impose a sales
tax on all of the Company’s sales to nonexempt customers. The Company collects the sales
tax from customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The Company’s accounting
policy is to not include the tax collected and remitted to the State in revenues.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as an S corporation under the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the financial statements do not include provision for
federal income taxes because the Company does not incur federal income taxes. Instead, the
stockholders are taxed on their proportionate share of the Company’s taxable income. The
state of California does impose a corporate level franchise tax on S corporations. A provision
for this tax has been recorded.

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
recognized for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement
and income tax purposes. The differences relate primarily to depreciation, prepaid expenses,
and other current liabilities for financial reporting purposes over tax purposes. The deferred
tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences,
which will either be deductible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are recovered or
settled.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income Taxes (continued)

The Company classifies interest related to the underpayment of income taxes and any
related penalties as operating expenses in the Statement of Income. There were no penalties
related to income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the state of
California. The Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns from 2020 to the current year
remain open to examination, while the California income tax returns from 2019 to the current
year remain open to examination.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of risk
consist principally of accounts receivable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable contracts are due to the majority of customers being located within
California. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and,
generally, requires no collateral.

The Company maintains all of its cash accounts in one commercial bank located in
Rancho Cordova, California. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 the
amounts in excess of the insured limits were $447,085 and $927,779, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from franchise fees, franchise royalties and
advertising income. Generally, revenue is recognized when the performance obligations have
been fulfilled (see note on Franchising). General and administrative expenses are expensed as
incurred. Bad debts are charged to operations in the year in which the account is determined
uncollectible.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES — NO RESTATEMENT

Adoption of FASB ASC 842

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted FASB ASC 842, Leases. The
Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease at inception based on whether the
Company has the right to control the asset during the contract period and other facts and
circumstances. The Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the
transition guidance within the new standard, which among other things, allowed it to carry
forward the historical lease classification.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES — NO RESTATEMENT (continued)
Adoption of FASB ASC 842 (continued)

The adoption of FASB ASC 842 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use-assets,
net of prepaid lease payments and lease incentives, and lease liabilities as of January 1, 2022
as follows:
Assets Liabilities

Operating lease $__ 402,849 $__ 402,849

$_402849  $__402.849
Results for periods beginning prior to January 1, 2022 continue to be reported in
accordance with our historical accounting treatment. The adoption of FASB ASC 842 did not

have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or debt covenants (see
note on Leases-Lessees (After the adoption of FASB ASC 842)).

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

Depreciation expense was computed as follows:

Estimated Years Ended
Useful December 31 December 31
Years 2022 2021
Machinery and equipment 5 $ 1,647 § 1,647
Furniture and fixtures 7 10,357 96
Leasehold improvements 15 2,332 2,332
Vebhicles 5 26.860 34.838

$ 41,196 § 38913

10
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT
Years Ended
December 31,  December 31,
2022 2021
Note payable to U.S Small Business Administra-
tion, annual interest rate 3.75%, due in monthly
installments of principal and interest of $731.00,
starting on May 9, 2021, secured by inventory,
chattel paper, accounts receivable, equipment,
general intangibles and fixtures. The loan
matures May 9, 2050. $ $_ 149,187
149,187
Less current portion 3.233
$ $___145954

COMMITMENTS

Contract Commitments

The Company has an annual advertising contract with NBC Sports California for the
NBA basketball season, with the latest contract commencing in October 2022. Advertising
expense paid for this contract was $55,746 and $164,086 for the years ended December 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

LEASES—LESSEES (After the adoption of FASB ASC 842)

The Company leases its office in Rancho Cordova, California from a related company
owned by one of the shareholders on a five-year operating lease. (See notes on Related Party
Transactions.)

INCOME TAXES

The components of deferred taxes included in the balance sheets as of December 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Deferred tax assets:
Depreciation—state $ 1,320 $ 1,440

11
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Revenues and Purchases

The Company has routine business transactions with an affiliated company that owns
seven franchises. The Company has conducted the following routine business transactions
with the affiliated company:

Years Ended
December 31,  December 31,
2022 2021
Advertising income b 38919 § 163,219
Purchases from affiliated company -0- 428

Office Lease (After the Adoption of FASB ASC 842)

The Company leases its office in Rancho Cordova, California from a related company
owned by one of the shareholders on a five-year operating lease, commencing on April 1,
2014. The Company has the option to renew the lease three times, each for an additional five
years. The Company exercised the option to renew the lease for another five years on April 1,
2019. The terms remained the same. The lease calls for monthly payments of $15,000.

The following summarizes the line items in the balance sheet which include amounts
for the operating lease as of December 31, 2022:

Operating
Lease

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 413,759
Less accumulated amortization 180,000
Total lease right-of-use asset $___233.759
Current maturities on operating lease liabilities $ 174,224
Operating lease liabilities, net of current maturities 59.535
Total operating lease liability $___233.759

12
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Office Lease (After the Adoption of FASB ASC 842 continued)

The components of operating lease expenses that are included in “General and
administrative expenses” in the statement of income and retained earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Rent expense $ 180,000

The following summarizes the cash flow information related to the operating lease for
the year ended December 31, 2022:

Lease asset obtained in exchange for lease liability:
Operating lease $ 413,756

Weighted average lease term and discount rate as of December 31, 2022 were as
follows:

Weighted average remaining lease term — operating lease 2.33 years
Weighted average discount rate — operating lease 3.74%

The maturities of lease liability as of December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Operating
Year Lease
2023 $ 180,000
2024 60,000
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter
Total lease payments 240,000
Less interest 6.241
Present value of lease liability $___233.759

13
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRANCHISING

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company offers franchises to operate pizza restaurants throughout the state of
California. The majority ofits franchised stores are located in northern California. The Company
is dependent on the restaurant industry and its ability to collect payments due from its
franchisees. In general, the Company’s franchise agreements provide for the payment of a
franchise fee for each opened franchised location. Franchisees pay royalty fees of 5% of gross
sales per week. The Company collects advertising fees for ongoing regional media, which are
based on a minimum of 7% of net sales or $5,500, whichever is less. Franchisees may generally
renew their agreement upon expiration subject to approval and payment of their renewal fees.
Invoices are due either upon receipt or 30 days after the invoice date. There are no special
arrangements or discounts given for early payments. All invoices are billed and payments
collected via an electronic third-party website so that payments are assured.

Performance Obligations

Initial franchise fees of $20,000 are generally recognized when substantially all services
or conditions relating to the franchise sale have been performed or satisfied by the Company.
Services provided by the Company include assistance in site selection, franchisee and operator
training, and implementation of an accounting and quality control system.

Royalty fees (royalty income) are billed to franchisees on a monthly basis and generally
recognized at the time of billing. The Company accesses an electronic platform on a weekly
basis to retrieve gross sales amount for that one week for each franchised restaurant and
calculates and bills the franchisees 6% of gross sales for royalty fees.

Adpvertising fees (advertising income) are billed to franchisees on a monthly basis based
on 2% of that month’s gross revenue and are generally recognized at the time of billing. The
Company promotes the sales of pizzas via marketing, local, regional, national, or international
advertising, public relations, promotions, surveys, test marketing, research and development,
administration (including the Company’s salaries, accounting, collection, legal, and other costs),
related expenses, and any media costs.

Renewal fees are billed to franchisees when a franchisee renews its contact upon
expiration but subject to management’s approval and payment of the renewal fees. The
Company generally recognizes renewal fees as income when a renewal agreement
becomes effective.

14
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRANCHISING (continued)

Performance Obligations (continued)

Franchise revenue consists of the following:

Years Ended
December 31 December 31
2022 2021
Franchise royalties $ 3430,139 §$ 3,255,650
Franchise fees 227,311 150,000
Transfer fees 123,689 66,000
Advertising income 223,259 261,705
Rebate income 305,891 279,915
Returns and allowances (6.307)
Total franchise revenue $_ 4310289 $__4,006963

As territory is assigned to each franchisee sold, the Company may reach the point
where existing markets become saturated and initial franchising revenue declines. Unless
new markets are entered into, franchise revenues after market saturation will come primarily
from continuing and renewal fees for existing franchises. In 2022, three new franchises were
opened and a total of 73 franchises were in operation.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would
be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a liability of an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most
advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value shall be calculated based on
assumptions that the market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on
assumptions specific to the Company.

FASB ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use
based upon market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs). In
accordance with FASB ASC 820, the following summarizes the fair value hierarchy:

o Level 1 Inputs — Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in
an active market that the Company has the ability to access.

e Level 2 Inputs — Inputs, other than quoted prices in level 1, that are observable either
directly or indirectly.

15
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

e Level 3 Inputs — Inputs based on prices or valuation techniques that are both
unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurements.

As of December 31, 2022, none of the assets and liabilities were required to be
reported at fair value on a recurring basis. Carrying values of non-derivative financial
instruments, including cash, receivables, advances, prepaids, payables, accrued expenses, and
loans payable approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

16
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

SCHEDULE I

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021
GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

Adbvertising and promotion $ 1,542,565 § 1,228,177
Automobile expense 37,930 23,527
Bank service charges 8,884 8,860
Charitable contributions 20,790 24,839
Dues and subscriptions 84 25
Insurance expense 111,538 84,310
Legal and professional fees 40,394 25,013
Meals and entertainment 29,499 7,161
Miscellaneous 3,522 879
Office supplies 201,817 351,111
Officers salaries 86,000 86,000
Payroll taxes 106,843 98,249
Pest control 1,020 935
Postage and freight 2,603 3,083
Rent expense 180,000 180,000
Repairs and maintenance 5,485 30,649
Software expense 13,788 78,882
Taxes and licenses 1,352 1,663
Telephone expense 16,822 15,472
Operating supplies 38,529 7,952
Travel expense 68,974 14,546
Utilities 1,904 655
Uniform and laundry 4,442 11,283
Wages and salaries 1,274,065 1,116,514
Consulting 25,000 29,120
QOutside services 185,296 67,275

Meeting and seminars 185,842
Medical expense 6,247
4,194,988 3,502,427
DEPRECIATION 41,196 38,913

$ 4,236,184 g 3,541,340
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020



33

CONTENTS
Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Balance sheets 2

Statements of income and retained earnings 3-4

Statements of cash flows 5-6

Notes to financial statements 7-15

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Schedule I — General and administrative expenses 16



34

Kawana & Gong, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
1827 E. Fir Avenue, Suite 103
Fresno, Califomia 93720

Tel. (559) 226-6664
Fax (559) 226-7174
www kglipcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

March 25, 2022

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.
(a California corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evident we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Pizza Guys
Franchises, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but it is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as

a whole. The supplementary information on Schedule I on page 16 is presented for the purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
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responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.

Kawana X Gong, LLP
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS
December 31,
2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 695,735 $ 944,766
Accounts receivable:
Trade 184,820 156,480
Other 147,037
Prepaid expenses 32,584
Estimated income taxes 3,600
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 916,739 1,248,283
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - at cost:
Machinery and equipment 136,588 136,588
Furniture and fixtures 56,636 56,636
Vehicles 464,355 433,600
Computer equipment 37,282 37,282
Leasehold improvements 64,631 64,631
759,492 728,737
Less accumulated depreciation 673,192 634,279
86,300 94,458
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred income tax asset 1,440 1,475
1,440 1,475

$ 1,004,479 $ 1,344,216

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
2



LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable:
Trade
Credit cards

Payroll taxes payable

Accrued wages and salaries

Accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

Current maturities on long-term debt
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY:

Common stock, no par value;
authorized 1,200,000 shares; issued
and outstanding 1,200,000 shares

Retained earnings

$

December 31,

2021 2020
7077 % 78,076
25 26,306
18,990 20,482
46,234 43,382

4,951

4,566
3,233 13,333
80,510 186,145
145,954 146,363
27,813 27,813
750,202 983,895
778,015 1,011,708
1,004,479 § 1,344,216
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

SALES:
Franchise royalties
Franchise fees
Transfer fees
Advertising income
Rebate income
Returns and allowances

EXPENSES:
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Other income
Interest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAXES:

Current
Deferred

NET INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020
3,255,650 $ 2,706,690

150,000 40,000
66,000 55,000

261,705 244,349

279,915 152,102
(6,307)

4,006,963 3,198,141

3,502,427 2,806,335

38,913 47,368
3,541,340 2,853,703
465,623 344,438
10,000 177,500
10,000
(5,904) (2,719)
4,096 184,781
469,719 529,219
3,377 9,379
35 (125)
3,412 9,254
466,307 519,965

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

3
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

SHAREHOLDER'S CONTRIBUTIONS
SHAREHOLDER'S WITHDRAWALS

RETAINED EARNINGS,
END OF YEAR

(Continued)

$

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020
983,895 § 263,930
200,000
700,000
750,202 $ 983,895

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Deferred income taxes benefit
Gain on extinguishment of debt
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Estimated income taxes
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and salaries
Payroll taxes payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
NET CASH USED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments - long-term debt
Loan advances - long-term debt
Shareholder's contributions
Shareholder's withdrawals
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

5

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020
466,307 $ 519,965
38,913 47,368
35 (125)
(10,000)
118,697 (132,377)
(32,584) 5,800
(3,600) 4,013
(97,280) (13,346)
2,852 11,141
(1,492) 7,111
4,951 (2,069)
(4,566) 4,566
482,233 452,047
(30,755) (34,981)
(30,755) (34,981)
(509)
152,701
200,000
(700,000)
(700,509) 352,701
(249,031) 769,767
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)
Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 944,766 $ 174,999
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 695,735 $ 944,766
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes $ 11,543  §

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
6
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. (the “Company™), a California S corporation, was
formed on April 7, 1995 to offer franchises for the operation of pizza takeout and delivery
stores. The Company operates under the accrual method of accounting. The Company has
1,200,000 shares of no stated value common stock authorized, issued, and outstanding as of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. is
presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial statements. The financial
statements and notes are the representations of the Company’s management who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the
financial statements. Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2022,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all unrestricted
investment instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there were no cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred while renewals and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line and declining-balance method over estimated useful lives.

Accounts Receivable

Bad debts are charged to operations in the year in which the account is determined
uncollectible. Trade receivables are due no more than 30 days after issuance of the invoice.
Receivables past due more than 60 days are considered delinquent. All accounts receivable
are considered by management to be fully collectible.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences for sick pay and vacation time have not been accrued since
they cannot be reasonably estimated. The Company’s policy is to recognize these costs when
actually paid.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as
incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020 were $1,228,177 and $612,674, respectively.

Presentation of Sales Tax

The State of California, and various counties, localities and districts impose a sales
tax on all of the Company’s sales to nonexempt customers. The Company collects the sales
tax from customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The Company’s accounting
policy is to not include the tax collected and remitted to the State in revenues.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as an S corporation under the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the financial statements do not include provision for
federal income taxes because the Company does not incur federal income taxes. Instead, the
stockholders are taxed on their proportionate share of the Company’s taxable income. The
state of California does impose a corporate level franchise tax on S corporations. A provision
for this tax has been recorded.

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
recognized for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement
and income tax purposes. The differences relate primarily to depreciation, prepaid expenses,
and other current liabilities for financial reporting purposes over tax purposes. The deferred
tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences,
which will either be deductible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are recovered or
settled.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income Taxes (continued)

The Company classifies interest related to the underpayment of income taxes and any
related penalties as operating expenses in the Statement of Income. There were no penalties
related to income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the state of
California. The Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns from 2019 to the current year
remain open to examination, while the California income tax returns from 2018 to the current
year remain open to examination.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of risk
consist principally of accounts receivable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable contracts are due to the majority of customers being located within
California. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and,
generally, requires no collateral.

The Company maintains all of its cash accounts in one commercial bank located in
Rancho Cordova, California. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 the
amounts in excess of the insured limits were $927,779 and $846,201, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from franchise fees, franchise royalties and
advertising income. Generally, revenue is recognized when the performance obligations have
been fulfilled (see note on Franchising). General and administrative expenses are expensed as
incurred. Bad debts are charged to operations in the year in which the account is determined
uncollectible.
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

Depreciation expense was computed as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Years
Machinery and equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 7
Leasehold improvements 15
Vehicles 5

LONG-TERM DEBT

Note payable to U.S Small Business Administra-
tion, annual interest rate 3.75%, due in monthly
installments of principal and interest of $731.00,
starting on May 9, 2021, secured by inventory,
chattel paper, accounts receivable, equipment,
general intangibles and fixtures. The loan
matures May 9, 2050.

Note payable to U.S Small Business Administra-
tion, annual interest rate 1.00%, deferment
period six months from May 1, 2020, forgive-
ness amount remitted on December 20, 2020.
Loan matures February 12, 2021. (PPP Loan)

Less current portion

10

Years Ended
December 31 December 31,
2021 2020
$ 1,647 § 1,647

96 201

2,332 583
34,838 44,937
$ 38913 § 47,368

Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

$ 149,187 § 149,696
10,000
149,187 159,696
3.233 13,333
$__145954 $___146,363
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Maturities of long-term debt for each of the next five years are as follows:

Aggregate

Year Ending Obligations
December 31, 2022 $ 3,233
December 31, 2023 3,356
December 31, 2024 3,484
December 31, 2025 3,617
December 31, 2026 3,755
Thereafter 131,742
$__149.187

The Company applied for and received a Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”)
loan under a new federal program designed to support small businesses during the novel
coronavirus COVID-19 (“COVID”) global health pandemic. The PPP loan program was
part of The CARES Act, which was signed into law on March 27, 2020, and is being
implemented by the SBA with cooperation from private banks. PPP loans may be fully or
partially forgiven by application to the SBA if proceeds are expended based on federal
guidelines. Management applied for the PPP loan to fund payroll and other allowable costs
while the Company responded to government restrictions on business operations and
anticipated reduced revenues from the economic downturn associated with the pandemic.
A loan in the amount of $10,000 was received from U.S. Small Business Administration
in 2020. In January 2021, the Company received full forgiveness of the $10,000 PPP loan
amount.

COMMITMENTS
Contract Commitments

The Company has an annual advertising contract with NBC Sports California for the
NBA basketball season, with the latest contract commencing in October 2021. Advertising

expense paid for this contract was $164,086 and $80,194 for the years ended December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

11
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAXES

The components of deferred taxes included in the balance sheets as of December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Years Ended
December 31 December 31
2021 2020
Deferred tax assets:
Depreciation—state $ 1440 $ 1,475

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Revenues and Purchases

The Company has routine business transactions with an affiliated company that owns
seven franchises. The Company has conducted the following routine business transactions
with the affiliated company:

Years Ended
December 31 December 31,
2021 2020
Advertising income $ 163219 § 44,479
Purchases from affiliated company 428 1,630

Office Lease

The Company leases its office in Rancho Cordova, California from a related company
owned by one of the shareholders on a five-year operating lease, commencing on April 1,
2014. The Company has the option to renew the lease three times, each for an additional five
years. The Company exercised the option to renew the lease for another five years on April 1,
2019. The terms remained the same. The lease calls for monthly payments of $15,000. For
the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, rent of $180,000 and $180,000,
respectively, was paid and expensed.

12
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Office Lease (continued)

Future minimum lease income under the Company’s operating lease is as follows:

Aggregate

Year Ending Obligations
December 31, 2022 $ 180,000
December 31, 2023 180,000
December 31, 2024 45.000
$__405,000

FRANCHISING

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company offers franchises to operate pizza restaurants throughout the state of
California. The majority of its franchised stores are located in northern California. The Company
is dependent on the restaurant industry and its ability to collect payments due from its
franchisees. In general, the Company’s franchise agreements provide for the payment of a
franchise fee for each opened franchised location. Franchisees pay royalty fees of 5% of gross
sales per week. The Company collects advertising fees for ongoing regional media, which are
based on a minimum of 7% of net sales or $5,500, whichever is less. Franchisees may generally
renew their agreement upon expiration subject to approval and payment of their renewal fees.
Invoices are due either upon receipt or 30 days after the invoice date. There are no special
arrangements or discounts given for early payments. All invoices are billed and payments
collected via an electronic third-party website so that payments are assured.

Performance Obligations

Initial franchise fees of $20,000 are generally recognized when substantially all services
or conditions relating to the franchise sale have been performed or satisfied by the Company.
Services provided by the Company include assistance in site selection, franchisee and operator
training, and implementation of an accounting and quality control system.

Royalty fees (royalty income) are billed to franchisees on a monthly basis and generally
recognized at the time of billing. The Company accesses an electronic platform on a weekly
basis to retrieve gross sales amount for that one week for each franchised restaurant and
calculates and bills the franchisees 6% of gross sales for royalty fees.

13
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES. INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRANCHISING (continued)
Performance Obligations (continued)

Advertising fees (advertising income) are billed to franchisees on a monthly basis based
on 2% of that month’s gross revenue and are generally recognized at the time of billing. The
Company promotes the sales of pizzas via marketing, local, regional, national, or international
advertising, public relations, promotions, surveys, test marketing, research and development,
administration (including the Company’s salaries, accounting, collection, legal, and other costs),
related expenses, and any media costs.

Renewal fees are billed to franchisees when a franchisee renews its contact upon
expiration but subject to management’s approval and payment of the renewal fees. The
Company generally recognizes renewal fees as income when a renewal agreement
becomes effective.

Franchise revenue consists of the following:

Years Ended
December 31,  December 31,
2021 2020

Franchise royalties $ 3,255,650 § 2,706,690
Franchise fees 150,000 40,000
Transfer fees 66,000 55,000
Advertising income 261,705 244,349
Rebate income 279,915 152,102
Returns and allowances (6,.307)
Total franchise revenue $__4006963 $__3,198,141

As territory is assigned to each franchisee sold, the Company may reach the point
where existing markets become saturated and initial franchising revenue declines. Unless
new markets are entered into, franchise revenues after market saturation will come primarily
from continuing and renewal fees for existing franchises. In 2021, three new franchises were
opened and a total of 73 franchises were in operation.

14
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes,
include cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and other current
liabilities. The Company estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at
December 31, 2021 does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying value of the
financial instruments recorded in the accompanying balance sheet. The estimated fair value
amounts have been determined by the Company using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is necessarily required in
interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value, and, accordingly, the estimates
are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a current
market exchange.

COVID-19 IMPLICATIONS

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a
coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic. As a result, economic uncertainties have arisen which are
likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur though such potential
impact is unknown at this time.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 9, 2022, the Company paid off the term loan with the U.S. Small
Business Administration.

15
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

SCHEDULE I

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31,
2021 2020
GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

Adpvertising and promotion $ 1,228,177 § 612,674
Automobile expense 23,527 23,451
Bank service charges 8,860 8,625
Charitable contributions 24,839 33,739
Dues and subscriptions 25 288
Insurance expense 84,310 85,183
Legal and professional fees 25,013 48,963
Meals and entertainment 7,161 4,779
Miscellaneous 879 370
Office supplies 351,111 146,136
Officers salaries 86,000 96,000
Payroll taxes 98,249 103,826
Pest control 935 3,279
Postage and freight 3,083 6,914
Rent expense 180,000 180,000
Repairs and maintenance 30,649 4,636
Software expense 78,882 118,922
Taxes and licenses 1,663 1,769
Telephone expense 15,472 12,898
Operating supplies 7,952 41,181
Travel expense 14,546 9,320
Utilities 655 923
Uniform and laundry 11,283 11,606
Wages and salaries 1,116,514 1,150,622
Consulting 29,120 15,226
Outside services 67,275 39,034

Medical expense 6,247
Awards to franchisee 42,085
Meeting and seminars 3,886
3,502,427 2,806,335
DEPRECIATION 38,913 47,368

$ 3,541,340 g 2,853,703

16
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EXHIBIT 4

STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS



California

State Administrator and Agents for Service of

Process:

Commissioner of Financial Protection and
Innovation of the Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation

320 W. 4 Street, #750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500

(866) 275-2677

New York
Administrator:

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 215 Floor
New York, NY 10005
(212) 416-8222 (Phone)
(212) 416-6042 (Fax)

Agents for Service of Process:

New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 5" Fl
Albany, NY 12231-0001

(518) 473-2492

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities of the State of
Hawaii

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

(808) 586-2722

Agents for Service of Process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of
Hawaii

Department of Commerce

and Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

(808) 586-2722

Rhode Island

Department of Franchise Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Complex, Bldg. 69-1
Cranston, RI 02920

(401) 462-9527

Illinois

Illinois Attorney General
Chief, Franchise Division
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

South Dakota

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-3563




Indiana

Secretary of State

Securities Division

302 West Washington Street, Room E-018
Indianapolis, IN 46204

(317) 232-6681

Virginia

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, 9th Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Agents for Service of Process:

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 E. Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Maryland

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place, 20" Floor
Baltimore, MD 21202

(410) 576-6360

Agents for Service of Process:

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020

Washington

Dept. Of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, WA 98501

P.0. Box 9033
Olympia, WA 98507
(360) 902-8760

Fax: (360) 902-0524

Michigan

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, M1 48913

(517)373-7117

Wisconsin

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

201 W. Washington Avenue
Madison, WI 53703

(608) 266-3364




Minnesota

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Securities-Franchise Registration

85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101-3165

(651) 539-1600

Agents for Service of Process:

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101-3165

(651) 539-1600

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
600 East Boulevard

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-4712

Agents for Service of Process:

Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
600 East Boulevard

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-4712
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EXHIBIT 5

PREAUTHORIZED BANK DEDUCTION PROCEDURE
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AUTHORIZATION TO HONOR CHECKS DRAWN BY & PAYABLE TO
PI1ZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

MY NAME EXACTLY AS IT APPEARS ON MY BANK ACCOUNT:

MY BANK ACCOUNT NO.: MY PIZZA GUYS® FRANCHISE NO.:

MY FULL NAME:

MY STREET ADDRESS:

MY CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE:

I, the above-named account holder, hereby authorize and direct you to pay and charge to my account, checks
(or other debit entries by electronic or paper means) drawn on the above account by and payable to the order
of PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC. Your rights in respect to each such check (or other debit entry by
electronic or paper means) shall be the same as if it were a check drawn on you and signed personally by me.

In order to induce you to honor checks (or other debit entries by electronic or paper means) presented for
payment pursuant to this preauthorized deduction procedure, I hereby release, indemnify and agree to
defend you from and against any obligation, loss, liability or damage caused by, or related to, the honor of
any and all checks (or other debit entries by electronic or paper means) presented for payment pursuant to
this preauthorized bank deduction procedure.

I hereby direct you not to cancel this preauthorized bank deduction procedure. I further direct you to
provide PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC. written notice 30 days in advance of any change which would
affect such preauthorized bank deduction procedure. This directive is to remain in full force and effect until
you receive written notification of its termination from PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC. in such time and
in such manner so as to afford you a reasonable time to act upon it. The directives contained herein are
irrevocable by me.

BANK FULL NAME:

BANK STREET ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE:

ATTACHED HERETO IS MY VOIDED CHECK

(to provide you necessary information regarding my checking account)

Date

(My signature exactly as it appears on my bank account
records)

TO: THE ABOVE-NAMED BANK
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If you have any questions regarding this document, please direct them to:
Reza Kalantari, Chief Financial Officer
Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc.
2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A
Rancho Cordova, CA 95742
(916) 852-2222
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TRANSFER ADDENDUM
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TRANSFER ADDENDUM
This Transfer Addendum made and entered into on
by and between
Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee”).
RECITALS

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to a Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated
(the “Effective Date”) as a result of an approved store transfer;

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee wish to amend the Agreement to reflect Franchisee’s status as a
transferee franchisee for the Franchised Business described as Pizza Guys® # located at
; and

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Transfer Addendum shall have the same
meaning as in the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. The following Sections of the Agreement are null and void only to the extent that they deal with
the purchase of a new, nonoperational, Pizza Guys Franchise and not a transfer, and shall have no force or
effect: 2.01, 2.02, 5.01(a), and 6.01. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Franchisee has completed
or shall be required to complete all necessary training as defined in Article 3 of the Agreement to
Franchisor’s satisfaction

2. This Transfer Addendum constitutes the entire and complete agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior agreements. No
amendment, change, or variance from this Transfer Addendum shall be binding on either party unless
mutually agreed to in a writing signed by both parties.

3. This Transfer Addendum forms an integral part of the Agreement. Except as modified or
supplemented by this Transfer Addendum, the terms of the Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Franchisor and Franchisee have executed this Transfer Addendum effective
as of the date set forth in the preamble of this Transfer Addendum.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
PIZZA GUYS FRANCHISES, INC.

By: By:
Printed: Printed:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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STORE OPERATIONS MANUAL
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Table of Contents

Contents
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Providing Exceptional Service 6
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Section: 3 Opening Procedures 11
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Setting up the Three-Compartment Sink 14
Sanitization Buckets 15
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Setting up the Order Taking Station 16
Setting up the Cut and Box Station 17
Counting Petty Cash and Register Drawers 18
Managing Team Members and Labor 18
When using a job assignment strategy or Job Assignments there are several ideas to consider, such
as: 18
Opening Checklist Summary 19
Section: 4 Pre and Post Rush 21
Pre-Rush 22
Pre-Rush Checklist Summary 22
The Pre-Rush Checklist is divided into the following categories: 22
Staging Dough "For a Better Bake” 22
Stocking the Workstations 23
The stations are: 23
Post Rush 26
Post-Rush Checklist 26
Coaching and Team Development 26
Sanitation and Cleanliness 27,
Re-Stocking Stations 27
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Food Preparation
Labor Controls
Section: 5 Closing Procedures
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Store Exterior
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Safety and Security

The following safety and security procedures should be followed at night before leaving the
restaurant and going home:

When you and your employees are ready to leave for the evening, use the following procedure:

Section: 6 Phone Training
How to answer the phones
The following phone script must be used every time you answer the phone:
How to Upsell
Review the order and offer the following if they haven’t ordered it:
For pick up orders
If they are paying by credit card
If the customer asks for specials
What to do if a customer has one coupon and they order multiple pizzas?
How to handle customer complaints
How the loyalty points work
Phone Recording
Section: 7 Slap Station
Slap Station Position
The key duties for this position are:
Section: 8 Sauce and Cheese
Pizza Sauce
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Saucing 50
Cheese 52
Cheesing 52
Section: 9 Pizza Topping 53
Pizza Maker “Topper” 54
The duties are as follows: 54
Pizza Maker “Finisher" 54
The duties are as follows: 54
Section: 10 Cut and Box 55
Oven Tending Position 56
The oven tending position performs the following duties: 56

Cut & Box Position 56
The duties are as follows: 56
Slice chart by size 57
Section: 11 Delivery Driver 58
Delivery Drivers 59
The Delivery Driver position duties are as follows: 59
Driver’s Do’s and Don’ts 60
DO’S 60
DON'TS 61
Driver Safety 62
Driver action steps 62
Common Sense 62
Section: 12 Inventory Management 64
Purchasing and Usage 65
Purchasing and Inventory Control 65
Purchasing Factors 65
Weekly and Monthly Inventory 66
Order Guide Developing Usage Forecasts 66
Other factors to consider are: 66

The following terms are used on the order guide: 67
Usage Values 67

The following formula shows you your USAGE value on any product: 67
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Inventory Buffer 67
Preparing your Food and Supply Order 67
When preparing your food and supply orders use the following steps: 68
If you have just finished a weekly inventory: 68
If you have not completed an inventory within the last 24 hours: 68
Pizza Guys Ordering Guide 69
The example ordering guide shows the following information from left to right (below): 69
Establishing Your Food and Supply Budget 70
Inventory Consistency 70
Food Preparation Planning 70
Daily Preparation Charts 71
The use of the food preparation charts establishes the following: 71
Inventory Process 71
Scheduling Inventory ¥
Use the following guidelines for scheduling your inventory: 72
Inventory Counting Categories 72
Use the following three methods of counting inventory as listed below: 72
Organized Inventory Counting 73
Use these key points for doing an organized count: 73
Totaling Inventory Counts 74
Finding Food Cost 75
Types of Food Cost 75
Troubleshooting Food Cost 76
e Verify scales are accurate 76
e Make sure the scale is used 76
e  Waste s high 76
° Do not over-prep 76
e Inspect finished pizzas for accuracy 77
e  Don't waste usable food 77
e  Scrape inserts, cans, and gallon jugs 77
e  Keep slicer, grader attachments & knives sharp 77
e  Make sure product is stored correctly 77
e  Use usage values to place orders 77
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e Always check in your orders 77
e  Evaluate dough preparation levels 77
e  Perform quick counts 77
e Monitor and ring up all employee meals 78
e Do trash audits 78
e  Make sure all boxes are broken down: 78
e Don't allow friends of employees to loiter 78
e  Make unannounced visits 78
e  Monitor Voids 78
e  Keep the back door locked 78
e  Organize storage areas 78

e  Reserve the counting of inventory to an Inventory trained member of management staff 78

e Audit your prices for accuracy: 78

e Double-check your totals 78

e  Track all transfers: 79

e  (Charge for extras 79

e Make sure the 2-liter cooler is attractive and well stocked: 79

e  Train staff on upselling and food cost 79
Food and Supply Waste 79
Each restaurant must use the following waste procedures: 79
Section: 13 Emergency Procedures 81
Emergency Procedures 83
Fire 84
At the Store 84
In the Area 84
Flood 85
At the Store 85
In the Area 85
Power Outage 86
Only the Restaurant 86
The Restaurant and the surrounding or immediate area 86
Short-Term outages 86
Long-Term outages 86
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Foodborne lliness and Infectious Disease 90
Foodborne Iliness can become a crisis when: 90
Procedures for Dealing with Foodborne Iliness 91
Use the form provided on the following page and then: 91
What not to Do: 91
When Dealing with The Media 91
Earthquakes 93
If an earthquake occurs: 93
After an Earthquake 93
Food Tampering 94
Random Violence 95
Drive by Shooting: 95
Hostage Taking 95
Section: 14 COVID-19 96
COVID-19 97
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Section: 15 Americans with Disabilities Act 100
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At the time you receive your food and supply order check the invoice for the following:

Product Storage

Dry Storage

Paper Supplies

Cleaning Supplies

Frozen Storage

Refrigerated Storage and Walk-in Refrigerator
Product Storage Chart
Shelf Life Chart

Section: 23 Dough Procedure

Contact Sheet
My Store Number is: Phone Number:
My Franchise Field Rep is: Phone Number:

Pizza Guys Franchises, Inc. Phone Number: (916) 852 — 2222
PGFI Director of Operations: Reza Kamalian Phone Number: (916) 390 - 6400

PGFI VP of Operations: Michael Morgan Phone Number: (916) 293 — 2002
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My closest Police/Sheriff Department Phone Number:

My Electricity Provider is:

Account: Phone Number:
My Internet Provider is:

Account: Phone Number:
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Account: Phone Number:
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of California only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

Registration of this franchise does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement
by the Commissioner.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim
of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the right to
rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee’s investment. Any statements or
representations signed by a franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed
made only based upon the franchisee’s understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee’s
investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

Risk Factors
1. The California franchise investment law requires that acopy of all proposed
agreements relating to the sale of the franchise be delivered together with the offering
circular.

2. OUR WEBSITE, www.pokibowl.com, HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR
APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION
AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS
WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

3. Each owner of the franchise is required to execute a personal guaranty.
Doing so could jeopardize the marital assets of non-owner spouses domiciled in
community property states such as California.

Item 3

Neither franchisor nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure document
is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities
exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending
or expelling such persons from membership in that association or exchange.

Item 6

With respect to the Late Fee described in Item 6, this Item is amended to disclose that the
maximum rate of interest permitted under California law is 10%.

Item 17

The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17 of the Disclosure Document
pursuant to regulations promulgated under the California Franchise Investment Law:
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California Law Regarding Termination, Transfer, and Nonrenewal. California
Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to franchisees
concerning termination, transfer, or nonrenewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement contains
a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

Termination Upon Bankruptcy. The franchise agreement provides for termination upon
bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec.
101 et. seq.).

Post-Termination Noncompetition Covenants. The franchise agreement contains a
covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision
may not be enforceable under California law.

Arbitration. The franchise agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will
occur at Santa Clara County, California, with the costs being borne by the non-prevailing party.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the
applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section
20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions
of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

Modification. Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you
a disclosure document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or
order require, before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

General Releases. You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise.
California Corporations Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment
Law (California Corporations Code §§31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code
§20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions
Code §§20000 through 20043).

Item 19
The following is added to Item 19:

The earnings claims figures do not reflect the costs of sales, operating expenses,
or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales
figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent
investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your Poki Bowl
business. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the offering circular, may be
one source of this information.
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following States require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered
or filed with the State, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana,
Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date

California
Hawaii
Illinois
Indiana
Maryland
Michigan
Minnesota
New York
North Dakota
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans.



RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Pizza Guys offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-
days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate
in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

If Pizza Guys does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 29580 and
the state agency listed in Exhibit 4.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is: Shahpour M. Nejad, 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1, Rancho Cordova, California 95742,
(916) 852-2222, Reza Kalantari, 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1, Rancho Cordova, California 95742,
(916) 852-2222, and Michael Morgan, 2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1, Rancho Cordova, California
95742, (916) 852-2222.

Issuance Date: April 17, 2023

PIZZA GUYS’ registered agent authorized to receive service of process is: Shahpour M. Nejad,
2731 Citrus Road, Ste. A-1, Rancho Cordova, California 95742.

I received a Disclosure Document dated April 17, 2023, that included the following Exhibits:

Franchise Agreement

Multi-Unit Development Agreement

Financial Statements

State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
Preauthorized Bank Deduction Procedure

Transfer Addendum

Store Operations Manual - Table of Contents
California State Addendum

XN R DD

(Signature) Date Received:

(Print Name) Date Signed:
individually and as an
officer or partner of

(a corporation)
(a partnership)
(a limited liability co.)
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